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GK Services is market eader in branded

work appare programs and faciUty services

or TrQth 100 yr aeber

commated to enhanunq maqo and safety

in the workpace

Founded in 1902 OAK Services has nearly 500 employees serving approximately

165000 customers We are headquartered Minneapolis Minnesota with more than

160 facilioes in North America OAK Services shares are traded on the NASDAM lohal

Select Market under the symbol GKSR

OAK Services is built on strong business model characterized by

Important personalized products Stable longterm contracts

and services Significant barriers to entry

Large growirg market Consistent strong cash flow

Diverse customer base



Focus on always satisfying customers by achieving outstanding quality in all we do

Operate with
integrity especially ensuring safety and environmental stewardship

Help people and teams develop and succeed together

Feel an obligation to speak up challenge listen and be open with each other



In fiscal 2010 we embarked on new game plan that redirected

our company and strengthened our business We made

measurable progress in the fiscal year and laid the foundation

for even better business results ahead

2010 Resuks

For the fiscal year revenue totaled $833.6 million compared to

$g36.O million in the prior year The revenue decline resulted

from continued difficult economic and employment conditions

and the divestiture of non-core businesses However the

companys rentai revenue after adjusting for divestitures and

foreign currency translation continued to stabilize during the

year doing so for all four quarters of fiscal 20W

GKs fiscal year net income totaled $1.56 per diluted share

includ.ing $0.40 per diluted share of unusual items This

compared to prior-year net loss of $3.04 per
diluted share

of which $5.67 per diluted share related to asset impairment

and other unusual items Accordingly our adjusted earnings

of $1.16 per diluted share compared to $1.73 per diluted share

in the prior fiscal year Our fiscal 2010 earnings were impacted

by the lower revenue much of this impact was offset by

lower cost structure and gains from specific location profit

improvement actions

Consistent with our focus on earning our right to grow as you

can see from the chart on this page we generated positive

trend line in operating margin despite the continued difficult

economic conditions

Throughout the year we continued to focus on maximizing

cash flow generating cash flow from operations of $72.7 million

We utilized our strong cash flow to reduce debt net of cash

by $66.7 million and recently announced significant increase

to our quarterly dividend.This marks the fifth consecutive year

weve increased our quarterly dividend

Driving Our New Game Pan

The landmark event of the year was the launching of our

new game plan which is based on four pillars redoubling

our focus on customer satisfaction improving day-to-day

execution increasing cost management focus and addressing

underperforming locations Let me highlight our progress
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ust rn sat stact on rrvr prof tab growth In tic

to build and grow ou rr pany we sharper ed our hrttior

of ust rsaisfa or ar sccrf tdn or

Cutor or iTo on ti ro first pog old
mopor Oo dI gm rod

all resources ar activities across the con par to ensure we

deliver against this prcrnse every day

We re exam ned key bus ness processes str pprng out

comp uxity and cmphas zirg bnsic blocking and tackl ng

This re ulted lower costs ar better performam cc

We established aggressive cost mar agement as contra

tenant of how we jr our company We contir ue to anage

our overhead with corporate spendng dec ining more thar

$9.0 mill on from 2009 We on spend money on what creates

value for our customers

Finally we focused on several underperforming ocat or and

drove discplrned approach toward stronger managemi ent

including some restructurirg ard divestiture tkat producd

remarkab resu ts As we exited the fiscal
year our under

perforndng locations had increased operating ncomc by rearly

$3.0 million or guarte ly run rate basis

Looking Ahead

Movng forward well cont nue to ute our new game

nOn Customers endorse ir our team behnd ir and mTosl

importantly the plan showinj up our results

do/I mrs irmO

Morcoser after one II year we Air mi plan

we cIt ortant tuhi sf org terw hr ur Ca cal

our hareholders ear motiva iona goal for our tean

rd rg ntk rtn 5ucd or /lOgorrls
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lopercentoperatirgnargnwitfir two ofouryear

Leadership

Before do ing would Ike to recogr ize and thar recent

retired board member Pau Baszucki whose commitment to

CJC spanned more than 15 years Lven in the fort tiwe we

vorked together fourd hs counsel nvaluable

Summary
In cbs ng would Ike to thank our team have the privilege of

leading group of people who are up to meet ng
the challenges

ahead of us every respect As fellow shareholders in our

company assure you that you car count or them do

Were cted about our prospect and look forward to working

witf ourteam to urther improve the conpanys operatirg

perfor ance and positior CsK for long term succes

Regards

Dougas Mflroy

CF id Lxcutive Officer
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Eleven-Year Summary
GK Services Inc and Subsidiaries

20101 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 20001

Per Share diluted

Revenues 45.43 50.90 49.44 43.39 41.45 36.86 35.09 34.10 32.80 32.09 30.55

Assets 44.36 46.62 51.94 46.29 44.75 42.20 38.41 37.64 33.00 30.31 29.04

Equity 25.45 23.78 27.49 27.63 25.76 22.42 20.55 18.55 16.58 14.79 13.26

Earnings 1.56 3.94 2.27 2.02 1.97 1.78 1.61 1.54 1.75 1.56 1.74

Dividends 0.30 0.28 0.20 0.16 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07

Price High 28.83 38.15 44.46 40.06 43.10 45.25 40.96 37.00 41.60 30.25 54.00

Low 19.95 15.32 28.08 31.12 34.17 35.97 28.26 21.57 21.86 17.00 14.75

Income Data 000s

Revenues $833592 $935965 $1002395 $929542 $880843 $788775 $733447 $705588 $677591 $656381 $625855

Operating lncome/Loss 59621 76043 90523 79362 74863 72666 66221 65970 73456 70483 76140

Interest Expense 13849 13996 15543 13901 13226 11338 11966 13691 13609 17239 16702

Pretax lncome/Loss 45772 90039 74980 65461 61637 61328 54255 52279 59847 53244 59438

Provision/Benefit for

Incomelaxes 17160 17575 28901 22271 19786 23149 20617 20433 23708 21405 23864

Net lncome/Loss41 28612 72464 46079 43190 41851 38179 33638 31846 36139 31839 35574

Average Diluted

Shares Outstanding 18348 18389 20277 21424 21253 21400 20900 20691 20660 20457 20487

Balance Sheet 000s

CurrentAssets $239132 $261202 292457 $276727 $271237 $236511 $207367 $192044 $185810 $188671 $176302

Net Fixed Assets 194988 216736 253041 255996 249001 243307 240609 250757 230530 225965 216434

Total Assets 813868 857292 1053174 991814 951092 903169 802747 778806 681699 619963 594952

Current Liabilities 102002 125426 123200 163244 129021 132686 119594 95526 73568 127772 115938

Long-Term Debt 160398 224781 280428 149005 195355 210462 184305 236731 214977 148951 167345

StockholdersEquity 466896 437356 557476 591988 547388 479750 429462 383720 342503 302585 271674

Cash Flow Data 000s

Cashfrom Operations 72710 $103180 103058 80389 69521 63534 96267 96913 79679 84930 83314

Property Plant and

Equipment Additions Net 16710 23330 27057 31515 31968 19408 17349 31403 291 56 34115 43699

Ratio Analysis

Operating Margin3 7.2% 8.1% 9.0% 8.5% 8.5% 9.2% 9.0% 9.3% 10.8% 10.7% 12.2%

Pretax Margin 5.5% 9.6% 7.5% 7.0% 7.0% 7.8% 7.4% 7.4% 8.8% 8.1% 9.5%

EffectiveTax Rate 37.5% 19.5% 38.5% 34.0% 32.1% 37.7% 38.0% 39.1% 39.6% 40.2% 40.1%

Net Margin 3.4% 7.7% 4.6% 4.6% 4.8% 4.8% 4.6% 4.5% 5.3% 4.9% 5.7%

Return on Assets 141 3.3% 69% 4.6% 4.5% 4.6% 4.8% 4.3% 4.7% 5.8% 5.4% 6.6%

Return on Average Equity4 6.3% 14.6% 8.0% 7.6% 8.1% 8.4% 8.3% 8.8% 11.2% 11.1% 14.1%

11The company utilizes 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday nearest June 30 Fiscal 20102004 and 2000 results are based on 53 weeks whereas the remaining years shown

reflect 52 weeks

21 Fiscal 2010 results include benefit from change in
accounting

related to certain in-service merchandise items of $0.23 per diluted share gains from divestiture activities of $0.21 per

diluted share and charges from cost reduction activities and reserves for certain matters of $0.04 per diluted share Fiscal 2009 results include charges per diluted share of $5.13 for

goodwill and other impairment charges $0.43 for cost reduction activities and reserves for certain matters and $0.11 for leadership transition charges

Fiscal 2010 results include benefit from change in accounting related to certain in-service merchandise items of $665tgains from divestiture activities of $51 18 and charges from

cost reduction activities and reserves for certain matters of $1114 Fiscal 2009 results include pretas charges of $126719 for goodwill and other impairment charges $10358 for cost

reduction activities and reserves for certain matters and $2986 for leadership transition charges

Fiscal 2010 results include benefit from change in accounting related to certain in-service merchandise items of $4199 gains from divestiture activities of $3836 and charges from

cost reduction activities and reserves for certain matters of $688 Fiscal 2009 results include after-tue charges of $94358 for goodwill and other impairment charges $7838 for cost

reduction activities and reserves for certain matters and $2019 for leadership transition charges

Based on beginning amounts

CAK Services 2010 Annual Peport
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PART

item Business

GK Services Inc founded in 1902 and headquartered in Minnetonka

Minnesota is market leader in providing branded work apparel and facility

services programs that enhance image and
safety

in the workplace We serve

wide
variety

of NOrth American industrial service and high-technology

companies providing them with work apparel and
facility

services products

such as floor mats dust mops wiping towels restroom supplies and selected

linen items We believe that the existing North American rental market is

approximately $7.0 billion while the existing portion of the direct sale market

targeted by us is approximately $5.0 billion

We have over 160 locations in North America These locations serve customers

in 90 of the top 100 metropolitan markets in the United States and Canada

We target our marketing efforts towards customers and industries in

market segments that are expanding and need work apparel and
facility

services solutions Further we are dedicated to providing superior customer

service and high quality products through multiple sales channels and best

in class
program management abilities

Customers Products and Services

We serve approximately 165000 customers from Fortune 100 companies

to small and midsize firms No single customer represents more than 2.0%

of our total revenues We serve customers in virtually all industries

including automotive warehousing distribution transportation energy

manufacturing food processing pharmaceutical retail restaurants hospi

tality and many others Over 1.1 million people wear our work apparel

every work day

Customers use branded work apparel programs to meet variety of critical

business needs in the workplace including

Image work apparel helps companies project professional image

through their employees and frame the perception of credibility

knowledge trust and commitment to quality to their customers

Uniformed employees are perceived as trained competent and

dependable

Organization safety and security work apparel helps identify employ

ees working for particular organization or department

Brand awareness work apparel promotes companys brand
identity

and employees serve as walking billboards

Employee retention work apparel enhances worker morale and helps

build teamwork attitude in addition to providing tangible employee

benefit

Worker protection work apparel helps protect workers from difficult

environments such as heavy soils heat flame or chemicals

Product protection work apparel and facility services help protect

products against sources of contamination in the food pharmaceutical

and health care industries

We provide our work apparel-rental customers with full range of services

and solutions consultative approach is used to advise and assist our

customers in creating specialized solutions which include garment

application decisions setting service and distribution requirements and

choosing the appropriate fabrics styles
and colors to meet their branding

identity and safety needs We can quickly source and access new and used

garments to provide rapid response as customer needs change due to

increases decreases or turnover in their work force Professional cleaning

finishing repair embellishment and replacement of uniforms in use is

normal part of the rental service Soiled uniforms are picked up at the

customers location and returned clean and in good condition on service

cycle frequency that meets the needs of the customer with all merchandise

subject to rigorous seven point inspection program
The most common

service
cycle provides for weekly service

Work apparel rental programs offer
flexibility

in styles colors and quanti

ties as customer requirements change assure consistent image with

professional cleaning finishing repair and replacement of items in use

and provide freedom from the operating labor energy
and maintenance

expense
environmental exposure and management time necessary to

administer an on premise laundry

Our
facility

services programs provide wide range of dust control

maintenance hand care and hygiene products and services They include

floor mat offerings traction control logo message scraper and anti-

fatigue dust microfiber and wet mops wiping towels fender covers

selected linen items and restroom hygiene products These products

support customers efforts in maintaining clean safe and attractive

environment within their facilities for their employees and customers

We also offer direct sale of work apparel through comprehensive uniform

programs and through catalog programs Comprehensive direct sale

uniform programs to large national account customers are provided

through our Lion Uniform Group Lion Lion serves many different

industries and specializes in serving the security transportation airline

and convenience store/retail industries They handle all aspects of the

uniform program including design sourcing inventory management

distribution embellishment information reporting customer service and

program management The direct sale uniform programs can be used for

departments and/or customers that require highly customized and branded

apparel particularly for customer facing employees or for workers who do

not start at the same location each day and need work apparel they can

launder themselves and can be more economical approach for high

turnover positions Direct sale and custom-embroidered logo apparel

catalog programs are also offered to meet customer branded identity

needs Our catalog programs can be used for uniform programs employee

rewards and recognition trade shows events or customer/vendor appreci

ation programs

Acquisitions

We have participated in the industry consolidation from many family

owned and small local providers to several large providers Our acquisition

strategy is focused on acquisitions that expand our geographic presence

and/or expand our local market share and further leverage our existing

production facilities

We did not complete any acquisitions related to our uniform rental

business during fiscal 2010 or fiscal 2009 however we did make several

small acquisitions in fiscal 2008 The pro forma effect of these acquisitions



had they been acquired at the beginning of fiscal
year 2008 was not

material individually or in the aggregate The total purchase consideration

including related acquisition costs of these transactions was $63.8 million

in fiscal 2008 The total purchase price exceeded the estimated fair values

of assets acquired and liabilities assumed by $51.7 million in fiscal 2008

Competition

Customers in the work apparel and
facility services industry choose

suppliers primarily based
upon

the excellence of the service they receive

and the quality fit comfort price
and breadth of products offered and the

fIt with their unique business environment and brand positioning needs

While we rank among the nations largest work apparel suppliers we

encounter competition from many companies in the geographic areas we

serve Competitors include large publicly held companies such as Cintas

Corporation UniFirst Corporation and others We also compete with

numerous regional and local businesses that vary by geographic region

We believe that we compete effectively
in our lines of business because of

the quality and breadth of our product line segmented marketing

solutions that meet customers unique needs the service excellence we

provide and our proven ability as trusted outsource partner

Manufacturing and Suppliers

We manufactured approximately 55% of the work apparel garments that

we placed into service in fiscal 2010 These garments are primarily

manufactured in the Dominican Republic Various outside vendors are used

to supplement our additional product needs including garments floor

mats dust mops wiping towels linens and related products We are not

aware of
any

circumstances that would limit our ability to obtain raw

materials to support the manufacturing process or to obtain garments or

other items to meet our customers needs

Environmental Matters

Our operations like those of our competitors are subject to various federal

state and/or local laws rules and regulations respecting the environment

including potential discharges into wastewater and air and the generation

handling storage transportation and disposal of waste and hazardous

substances We generate certain amounts of waste in connection with our

laundry operations including detergent wastewater wastewater sludge

waste oil and other residues Some of these wastes are classified as

hazardous under these laws We continue to make significant investments

in properly handling and disposing of these wastes to ensure compliance

with these regulations

We discuss certain
legal

matters in this Annual Report on Form 10-K under

Part Item 1A Risk Factors Compliance with environmental laws and

regulations could result in
significant

costs that adversely affect our

operating results Item Legal Proceedings Part II Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

under Environmental Matters and Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data in Note 13 entitled Commitments and Contingencies

of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Any environmental

liability relating to such matters could result in
significant expenditures

that if aggregated and assumed to occur within single fiscal year could

be material to our results of operations or financial position While it is

impossible to ascertain the ultimate legal and financial liability with

respect to contingent liabilities including lawsuits legal matters claims

and environmental contingencies based on information currently available

and our best assessment of the ultimate amount and timing of environ

mental-related events we believe that the cost of these environmental-

related matters are not expected to have material adverse effect on our

results of operations of financial position While we believe the
possibility

is remote there is potential that we may incur additional losses in excess

of established reserves due to the imposition of clean-up obligations the

discovery of alleged contamination or other changes

Employees

Our U.S operations had approximately 6200 employees as of July 2010

which includes approximately 3100 production employees and 3100 sales

office route and management personnel Unions represent approximately

12% of our U.S employees Management believes its U.S employee

relations are satisfactory

Our Canadian operations had approximately 1300 employees as of July

2010 which includes approximately 650 production employees and 650

sales office route and management personnel Unions represent approx

imately 65% of our Canadian employees Management believes its

Canadian employee relations are satisfactory

Foreign and Domestic Operations

Financial information
relating

to foreign and domestic operations is set

forth in Note 14 of our Consolidated Financial Statements included in

Item of this Form 10-K

Intellectual Property

We own portfolio of registered trademarks trade names and licenses

and certain U.S and foreign process and manufacturing patents relating
to

our business These proprietary properties in the aggregate constitute

valuable asset We do not believe however that our business is dependent

upon any single proprietary property or any particular group of proprietary

properties

Seasonality and Working Capital

We do not consider our business to be seasonal to any significant
extent or

subject to any unusual working capital requirements

Available Information

Our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 1O-Q current

reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports are available

free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically
file

such material with or furnish it to the Securities and Exchange Commis

sion These reports are available on our website at

http//www.gkservices.com Information included on our website is not

deemed to be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K



Item 1A Risk Factors

The statements in this section as well as statements described elsewhere

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or in other SEC
filings describe risks

that could materially and adversely affect our business financial condition

and results of operations and the trading price
of our securities These risks

are not the only risks that we face Our business financial condition and

results of operations could also be materially affected by additional factors

that are not presently known to us or that we currently consider to be

immaterial to our operations

In addition this section sets forth statements which constitute our

cautionary statements under the Private Securities
Litigation

Reform Act of

1995

Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities
Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 provides safe harbor

from civil
litigation

for forward-looking statements Forward-looking

statements may
be identified by words such as estimates anticipates

projects plans expects intends believes seeks could

should may and will or the negative versions thereof and similar

expressions and by the context in which they are used Such statements

are based upon our current expectations and speak only as of the date

made These statements are subject to various risks uncertainties and

other factors that could cause actual results to differ from those set forth

in or implied by this Annual Report on Form 10-K Factors that might cause

such difference include but are not limited to the possibility of greater

than anticipated operating costs lower sales volumes the performance

and costs of integration of acquisitions or assumption of unknown

liabilities in connection with acquisitions fluctuations in costs of materials

and labor costs and possible effects of union organizing activities loss of

key management uncertainties regarding any existing or newly-discovered

expenses and liabilities related to environmental compliance and remedia

tion failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls for financial

reporting required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the initiation or

outcome of
litigation

or governmental investigation higher than assumed

sourcing or distribution costs of products the disruption of operations from

catastrophic events disruptions in
capital markets the

liquidity
of counter-

parties in financial transactions changes in federal and state tax laws

economic uncertainties and the reactions of competitors in terms of
price

and service We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking

statements to reflect events or circumstances
arising

after the date on

which they are made except as required by law

Also note that we provide the following cautionary discussion of risks

uncertainties and assumptions relevant to our businesses Actual results

may differ from certain assumptions we have made causing actual events

to vary from expected results These are factors that individually or in the

aggregate we think could cause our actual results to differ materially from

expected and historical results We note these factors for investors as

permitted by the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 You

should understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all such

factors Consequently you should not consider the following to be

complete discussion of all potential risks or uncertainties

General economic factors may adversely affect our financial

performance

General economic conditions may adversely affect our financial perfor

mance Continued high levels of unemployment inflation tax rates and

other changes in tax laws and other economic factors could adversely

affect the demand for our products and services Increases in labor costs

including healthcare and insurance costs higher material costs for items

such as linens and textiles higher fuel and other energy costs higher

interest rates inflation higher tax rates and other changes in tax laws and

other economic factors could increase our costs of rental and direct sales

and
selling

and administrative expenses and could adversely affect our

operating results

Increased competition could adversely affect our financial

performance

We operate in highly competitive industries and compete with national

regional and local providers Product design price quality service and

convenience to the customer are the primary competitive elements in

these industries If existing or future competitors seek to gain or retain

market share by reducing prices we may be required to lower prices

which could be detrimental to our operating results Our competitors also

generally compete with us for acquisition candidates which can increase

the price for acquisitions and reduce the number of available acquisition

candidates In addition our customers and prospects may decide to

perform certain services in-house instead of outsourcing such services

These competitive pressures could adversely affect our sales and operating

results

Risks associated with potential impairment of goodwill and

intangible assets

In fiscal 2009 we recorded non-cash impairment charge of $107.0 mil

lion which reduced the carrying value of our goodwill to $319.9 million as

of June 27 2009 We continue to monitor relevant circumstances including

customer spending levels general economic conditions and the market

price
for our common stock and the potential impact that such circum

stances might have on the valuation of our goodwill It is possible that

changes in such circumstances or in the numerous variables associated

with the judgments assumptions and estimates made by us in assessing

the appropriate valuation of our goodwill could require us to further

reduce our goodwill and record related non-cash impairment charges If

we were required to further reduce our goodwill and record related non-

cash impairment charges our financial position and results of operations

would be adversely affected

Risks associated with the suppliers from whom our products are

sourced could adversely affect our operating results

The products we sell are sourced from variety of domestic and

international suppliers Global sourcing of many of the products we sell is

an important factor in our financial performance All of our suppliers must

comply with applicable laws including without limitation labor and

environmental laws and otherwise be certified as meeting our required

supplier standards of conduct Our
ability to find

qualified suppliers who

meet our standards and to access products in timely and efficient



manner can be
significant challenge especially with respect to suppliers

located and goods sourced outside the United States Political and

economic stability in the countries in which foreign suppliers are located

the financial stability of suppliers suppliers failure to meet our supplier

standards labor problems experienced by our suppliers the
availability

of

raw materials to suppliers currency exchange rates transport availability

and cost inflation and other factors relating to the suppliers and the

countries in which they are located are beyond our control In addition

United States and Canadian foreign trade policies tariffs and other

impositions on imported goods trade sanctions imposed on certain

countries the limitation on the importation of certain types of goods or of

goods containing certain materials from other countries and other factors

relating to foreign trade are beyond our control These and other factors

affecting our suppliers and our access to products could adversely affect

our operating results

Failure to comply with the regulations of the U.S Occupational

Safety and Health Administration and other state and local

agencies that oversee safety compliance could adversely affect

our results of operation

The Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 as amended or OSHA

establishes certain employer responsibilities including maintenance of

workplace free of recognized hazards
likely to cause death or serious injury

compliance with standards promulgated by OSHA and various record

keeping disclosure and procedural requirements Various OSHA standards

apply to our operations We have incurred and will continue to incur

capital and operating expenditures and other costs in the ordinary course

of our business in complying with OSHA and other state and local laws and

regulations Any failure to comply with these regulations could result in

fines by government authorities and payment of damages to private

litigants
and affect our ability

to service our customers and adversely affect

our results of operation

Compliance with environmental laws and regulations could

result in significant costs that adversely affect our operating

results

Our operating locations are subject to stringent environmental laws rules

and regulations relating to the protection of the environment and health

and safety matters including those governing the potential discharges of

pollutants to the air and water the management and disposal of hazardous

substances and wastes and the clean-up of contaminated sites The

operation of our businesses entails risks under environmental laws and

regulations We could incur significant costs including without limitation

clean-up costs fines sanctions and claims by regulators or third parties for

property damage and personal injury as result of violations or liabilities

under these laws and regulations As result of violations of these laws

and regulations among
other things we could be required to reduce or

cease use of certain equipment and/or limit or stop production at certain

facilities These consequences could have material adverse affect on our

results of operations and financial condition and disrupt customer relation

ships We are currently involved in limited number of
legal

matters and

remedial investigations and actions at various locations While it is

impossible to ascertain the ultimate legal and financial liability with

respect to contingent liabilities including lawsuits legal
matters and

environmental contingencies based on information currently available and

our assessment of the ultimate amount and timing of environmental-

related events we believe that the cost of these environmental-related

matters are not reasonably likely to have material adverse effect on our

results of operations or financial position It is possible however that our

future financial position or results of operations for any particular future

period could be materially affected by changes in our assumptions or

strategies related to these contingencies the imposition of clean-up

obligations and the discovery of alleged contamination or changes out of

our control In addition potentially significant expenditures could be

required to comply with environmental laws and regulations including

requirements that may be adopted or imposed in the future

Under environmental laws an owner or operator of real estate may be

required to pay the costs of removing or remediating hazardous materials

located on or emanating from property whether or not the owner or

operator knew of or was responsible for the presence of such hazardous

materials While we regularly engage in environmental due diligence in

connection with acquisitions we can give no assurance that locations that

have been acquired or leased have been operated in compliance with

environmental laws and regulations during prior periods or that future

uses or conditions will not make us liable under these laws or expose us to

regulator or third-party actions including tort suits

Additionally we must maintain compliance with various permits and

licenses issued to us in connection with our operations or we must apply

for and obtain such permits and licenses Any failure on our part to

maintain such compliance or to apply for and receive such permits and

licenses could have material effect on our ability
to continue operations

at particular location At each reporting period we assess our operations

to determine whether the costs of resolution of
legal

matters or of

investigation and remediation of environmental conditions are probable

and can be reasonably estimated as well as the adequacy of our reserves

with respect to such costs At July 2010 our reserves for environmental

matters were approximately $3.2 million We cannot guarantee that our

reserves with respect to environmental matters will be sufficient or that

the costs of resolution of
legal

matters or of remediation and investigation

will not substantially exceed our reserves as new facts circumstance or

estimates arise

Volatility in the global economy could adversely affect results

Global financial markets have experienced disruption in recent years

including among other things volatility in security prices diminished

liquidity
and credit availability rating downgrades of certain investments

and declining valuations of others There can be no assurance that there

will not be further change which could lead to challenges in our business

and negatively impact our financial results The continued tightening of

credit in financial markets adversely affects the
ability

of our customers

and suppliers to obtain financing for significant purchases and operations

and could result in decrease in orders and spending for our products and

services In addition changes in the economic environment could adversely

impact assumptions we use to value our pension plan assets and



obligations which could result in material adverse impact to our financial

results in future periods

Fluctuations in demand for our products and services may harm

our financial results and are difficult to forecast

Current uncertainty in global economic conditions poses risk to the

overall economy as consumers and businesses may defer purchases in

response to tighter credit and negative financial news This could

negatively impact our customers and consequently have negative impact

on our financial performance If demand for our products and services

fluctuates as result of economic conditions or otherwise our revenue and

operating margin could be negatively impacted Important factors that

could cause demand for our products and services to fluctuate include

changes in business and economic conditions including further down

turns in
specific industry segments and/or the overall

economy

changes in consumer confidence caused by changes in market condi

tions including changes in the credit market expectations for inflation

and energy prices

competitive pressures including pricing pressures from companies that

have competing products and services

changes in customer needs

changes in our customers employment levels which impacts the

number of users of our products and services

strategic actions taken by our competitors and

market acceptance of our products and services

If our customers demand for our products and services decreases our

plant and manufacturing capacity could be underutilized and we may
be

required to record an impairment on our long-lived assets including

facilities and equipment as well as intangible assets which would increase

our expenses The change in demand for our products and services and

changes in our customers needs could have variety of negative effects

on our competitive position and our financial results and in certain cases

may reduce our revenue increase our costs lower our gross margin

percentage or require us to recognize impairments of our assets

Legal proceedings that may adversely affect our financial condi

tion and operating results

From time to time we are party to various
litigation claims and legal

proceedings Certain of these lawsuits or potential future lawsuits if

decided adversely to us or settled by us may result in
liability

that is

material to our financial condition and operating results We discuss these

lawsuits and other
litigation to which we are party in greater detail within

Item Legal Proceedings Part II Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations under Environ

mental Matters and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

in Note 13 entitled Commitments and Contingencies ofNotes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

Risks associated with our acquisition strategy could adversely

affect our operating results

Historically portion of our growth has come from acquisitions We

continue to evaluate opportunities for acquiring businesses that may

supplement our internal growth However there can be no assurance that

we will be able to
identify

and purchase suitable operations In addition

the success of any acquisition depends in part on our ability to integrate

the acquired company The process of integrating acquired businesses may

involve unforeseen difficulties and may require disproportionate amount

of our managements attention and our financial and other resources

Although we conduct due diligence investigations prior to each acquisition

there can be no assurance that we will discover all operational deficiencies

or material liabilities of an acquired business for which we may be

responsible as successor owner or operator The failure to successfully

integrate these acquired businesses or to discover such liabilities could

adversely affect our operating results

Increases in fuel and
energy costs could adversely affect our

results of operations and financial condition

Gasoline diesel natural gas and
electricity represent significant

cost

within our business The
price

of these commodities which are required to

run our vehicles and equipment can be unpredictable and can fluctuate

based on events beyond our control including geopolitical developments

supply and demand for oil and gas actions by OPEC and other oil and gas

producers war terrorism and unrest in oil producing countries regional

production patterns limits on refining capacities natural disasters and

environmental concerns Increases in these commodities could adversely

affect our results of operations and financial condition

Fluctuations in Canadian Dominican Republic and Ireland curren

cies could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and

financial condition

Certain of our foreign revenues and operating expenses are transacted in

local currencies Therefore our results of operations and certain receivables

and payables are subject to foreign exchange rate fluctuations

Failure to preserve positive labor relationships

Significant portions of our Canadian labor force are unionized and lesser

portion of United States employees are unionized Competitors within our

industry have been the target of unionization campaigns While we believe

that our Canadian and U.S employee relations are satisfactory we could

experience pressure from labor unions similar to those faced by our

competitors If we do encounter pressure from labor unions any resulting

labor unrest could disrupt our business by impairing our
ability

to produce

and deliver our products and services In addition significant
union

representation would require us to negotiate with many of our employees

collectively and could adversely affect our results by restricting our ability

to maximize the
efficiency of our operations

Inability to attract and retain employees could adversely impact

our operations

Our
ability

to attract and retain employees is important to our operations

Our ability to expand our operations is in part impacted by our ability to



increase our labor force In the event of labor shortage or in the event of

change in prevailing labor and/or immigration laws we could experience

difficulty
in delivering our services in high-quality or timely manner and

we could be forced to increase wages in order to attract and retain

employees which would result in higher operating costs

Loss of our key management or other personnel could adversely

impact our business

Our success is dependent on the skills experience and efforts of our senior

management and other key personnel If for any reason one or more

senior executives or key personnel were not to remain active in our

company our results of operations could be adversely affected

Unexpected events could disrupt our operations and adversely

affect our operating results

Unexpected events including without limitation fires at facilities natural

disasters such as hurricanes and tornados public health emergencies war

or terrorist activities unplanned utility outages supply disruptions failure

of equipment or systems or changes in laws and/or regulations impacting

our business could adversely affect our operating results These events

could result in disruption of customer service physical damage or tempo

rary
closure of one or more key operating facilities or the temporary

disruption of information systems

Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls could

adversely affect our business and stock price

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial

reports All internal control systems no matter how well designed have

inherent limitations Therefore even those systems determined to be

effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial

statement preparation and presentation While we continue to evaluate

our internal controls we cannot be certain that these measures will ensure

that we implement and maintain adequate controls over our financial

processes
and reporting in the future If we fail to maintain the adequacy

of our internal controls or if we or our independent registered public

accounting firm were to discover material weaknesses in our internal

controls as such standards are modified supplemented or amended we

may not be able to ensure that we can conclude on an ongoing basis that

we have effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance

with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Failure to achieve and

maintain an effective internal control environment could cause us to be

unable to produce reliable financial reports or prevent fraud This may

cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information

which could have material adverse effect on our stock price

Failure to execute our business plan could adversely affect our

business and stock price

We are in the process of executing new business plan with the goal of

improving our financial performance Successful execution of our business

plan is not assured as there are several obstacles to success including

continued difficult economic environment and competitive industry In

addition there can be no assurance that our efforts if properly executed

will result in our desired outcome of improved financial performance

Multi-Employer Union Pension plans may have material

adverse affect on our financial performance

We participate in number of union sponsored collectively bargained

multi-employer pension plans Union Plans We are responsible for our

proportional share of any unfunded vested benefits related to the Union

Plans The funded status of these various plans has substantially deterio

rated in the recent past In the future if local union employees vote to

decertify their respective union it could trigger liability
under the

associated Union Plan which could be greater than currently estimated

amounts The liability
if incurred could have material adverse impact on

our financial performance We do not have the ability to predict or

influence the timing of the votes to decertify Union We may
miss our

projected earnings per share and operating results during any given

quarter due to the inherent
difficulty

in predicting or controlling the events

which precipitate liability

Cash generated from operations could be affected by number

of risks and uncertainties

In fiscal 2011 we may actively
seek and consider acquisitions of business

assets The consummation of any acquisition could affect our liquidity

profile and level of outstanding debt However we believe that our

earnings and cash flows from operations existing credit facilities and our

ability to obtain additional debt or equity capital if necessary will be

adequate to finance acquisition opportunities

Access to the capital markets including bank financing to pro

vide sources of liquidity for general corporate purposes including

share repurchases

Although we believe that we will be able to maintain sufficient access to

the capital markets changes in current market conditions deterioration in

our business performance or adverse changes in the economy could limit

our access to these markets Although we cannot predict the availability of

future funding we do not believe that the current credit environment will

impede our
ability

to access the capital
markets because of our financial

position

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

We occupy over 160 facilities located in the United States Canada the

Dominican Republic and Ireland These facilities include our processing

branch garment manufacturing distribution and administrative support

locations We clean and supply rental items from approximately 53

facilities located in 41 cities in the United States cities in Canada and

one city in Ireland We own approximately 90% of our processing facilities

which average approximately 44000 square feet in size



Item Legal Proceedings

We are involved in variety of legal actions
relating

to personal injury

employment environmental and other legal matters arising in the normal

course of business including without limitation those described below

On February 19 2010 we settled the previously disclosed matter brought

against us by the Commissioner of Environmental Protection of the State

of Connecticut The aggregate settlement amount was within previously

established reserves

In August 2008 we became aware that our Des Moines Iowa
facility

allegedly violated the facilitys wastewater treatment permit In addition

we became aware that this facility allegedly did not properly report its

wastewater sampling results to the
City

of Des Moines We promptly

brought this matter to the attention of the
City

of Des Moines Attorneys

office and the City of Des Moines water reclamation authority We also

immediately launched our own investigation As part of our investigation

we learned among
other things that the City of Des Moines water

reclamation authority was aware of the situation and had referred this

matter to the U.S Environmental Protection Agency U.S EPA The

U.S EPA has also referred this matter to the U.S Attorneys office in Des

Moines Iowa We have reached settlement with the Des Moines Metropol

itan Wastewater Reclamation Authority and resolved this matter with the

city We are in the midst of resolving this matter with the U.S EPA and the

U.S Attorney

On July 24 2008 the U.S EPA inspected our facility
in South Chicago

Illinois As part of its inspection the U.S EPA identified certain alleged

deficiencies with respect to the operations at this facility including

potential recordkeeping violations and opportunities to improve the overall

environmental compliance and permitting of the
facility

The U.S EPA

provided written record of its inspection findings to us and identified

alleged noncompliance with certain provisions of the Resource Conserva

tion and Recovery Act The U.S EPA has subsequently visited this
facility

We have responded to the U.S EPA and will continue to work cooperatively

with the U.S EPA to resolve this matter

In the summer and fall of 2008 the U.S EPA inspected our facility in

Manchester New Hampshire As part of its inspection the U.S EPA

identified certain alleged deficiencies with respect to the operations at this

facility including potential recordkeeping violations and opportunities to

improve the
facilitys

overall environmental compliance and permitting

The U.S EPA requested additional information regarding our Manchester

and Portsmouth New Hampshire facilities to evaluate compliance with the

Clean Air Act and applicable state and federal regulations and the U.S EPA

issued testing order at the Manchester facility We have completed the

requested testing and submitted test report to the U.S EPA and the New

Hampshire Department of Environmental Services NHDES Subse

quently in September 2009 the U.S EPA issued Notice of Violation

alleging noncompliance with state and federal laws concerning air

emissions and permitting We will continue to work cooperatively with the

U.S EPA to resolve this matter

While we cannot predict the outcome of these matters with certainty we

currently do not expect any of these matters to have material adverse

effect on our results of operations or financial position However while we

believe the
possibility

is remote there is the potential that we may incur

additional losses in excess of established reserves and these losses could

be material

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security

Holders

None



PART II

ITEM Market for Registrants Common Stock Related

Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our Class Common Stock is quoted on the Global Select Market of The

NASDAQ Stock Market ftC under the symbol GKSR The following table

sets forth the high and low reported sales
prices

for the Class Common

Stock as quoted on the Global Select Market of The NASDAQ Stock Market

LLC for the periods indicated

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009

High Low High Low

1st Quarter $25.91 $19.95 $38.15 $30.08

2nd Quarter 26.55 19.97 35.45 18.73

3rd Quarter 28.33 23.05 21.00 15.32

4th Quarter 28.83 20.09 27.53 18.29

As of August 20 2010 we had 873 registered holders of record of our

common stock

We paid dividends of $5.6 million in fiscal 2010 $5.2 million in fiscal 2009

and $4.0 million in fiscal 2008 Dividends per share were $0.30 $0.28 and

$0.20 in fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively We anticipate

dividends in fiscal year 2011 to increase from $0.30 to $0.38 per share

which will result in approximately $7.1 million of dividends in fiscal year

2011 Our debt agreements contain restrictive covenants which under

specific circumstances could limit the payment of cash dividends we

declare during any fiscal year

Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

In May 2008 we announced the authorization to expand our share repurchase program from $100.0 million to $175.0 million which increases the share

repurchase program previously approved by our Board of Directors in May 2007 Under the program we did not repurchase any shares in fiscal 2010 In

fiscal 2009 we repurchased 650387 shares for $16.1 million At the end of fiscal 2010 we had approximately $57.9 million remaining under this

authorization Our debt agreements contain restrictive covenants which under certain circumstances could limit the amount of share repurchases

The following table sets forth certain information as of July 2010 with respect to equity compensation plans under which securities are authorized for

issuance

Number of Securities

Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to Weighted-Average
Future Issuance Under

be Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of
Equity Compensation Plans

Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Excluding Securities

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and
Rights

Reflected in Column

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders

2006 Equity
Incentive Plan2 811735 $33.40 541196

Employee Plans3 628842 34.94

1996 Directors Stock
Option

Plan 40500 35.79

Total 1481077 $34.13 541196

Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders

None

Total 1481077 $34.13 541196

See Note 10 to our audited financial statements included in the accompanying financial statements

Approved at the November 16 2006 shareholder meeting

Includes our 1989 Stock Option and Compensation Plan and 1998 Stock Option and Compensation Plan
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Stockholder Return Performance Graph

The following graph shows five-year comparison of the cumulative total return on $100 invested in our Common Stock the Standard and Poors SP
500 Stock Index and nationally recognized group of companies in the uniform services industry the Peer Index The companies included in the Old

Peer Index are Angelica Corporation Cintas Corporation and UniFirst Corporation The companies included in the New Peer Index are Cintas Corporation

and UniFirst Corporation which the
company

believes is the most appropriate comparison

The graph illustrates the cumulative values at the end of each succeeding fiscal year resulting from the change in the stock price assuming dividend

reinvestment

Comparison of Year Cumulative Total Return

Assumes Initial Investment of $100

July 2010

GK Services Inc SP 500 Index- Total Returns -ulr-- New Peer Group Old PeerGroup

Prepared by Lacks Investment Research Inc Used with permission All
rights

reserved Copyright 1980-2010

Index Data Copyright Standard and Poors Inc Used with permission All rights reserved

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain selected financial data All amounts are in millions except per share data

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Revenues $833.6 $936.0 $1002.4 $929.5 $880.8

Net lncome/Loss 28.6 72.5 46.1 43.2 41.9

Per Share Data

Basic earnings per share 1.56 3.94 2.29 2.03 1.98

Diluted earnings per share 1.56 3.94 2.27 2.02 1.97

Dividends per share 0.30 0.28 0.20 0.16 0.07

Total Assets 813.9 857.3 1053.2 991.8 951.1

Long-Term Debt 160.4 224.8 280.4 149.0 195.4

Stockholders Equity
466.9 437.4 557.5 592.0 547.4

We utilize 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday nearest June 30 Fiscal year 2010 was 53 week year Fiscal years 2006 through 2009 were

52 week
years

The net loss in fiscal year 2009 is the result non-cash impairment primarily related to goodwill which is fully
discussed in Note to our

audited financial statements included in the accompanying financial statements

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Finandal Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with

the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes thereto which are

included herein We utilize 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday

nearest June 30 Fiscal year 2010 was 53 week year Fiscal year 2009 and

2008 were 52 week years

Overview

GK Services Inc founded in 1902 and headquartered in Minnetonka

Minnesota is market leader in providing branded work apparel and

facility
services

programs
that enhance image and safety in the workplace

We serve wide variety of North American industrial service and high-

technology companies providing them with work apparel and facility

services products such as floor mats dust mops wiping towels restroom

supplies and selected linen items We believe that the
existing

North

American rental market is approximately $7.0 billion while the existing

portion of the direct sale market targeted by us is approximately

$5.0 billion

We have participated in the industry consolidation from family owned and

small local providers to several large providers Our acquisition strategy is

focused on acquisitions that expand our geographic presence and/or

expand our local market share and further leverage our existing production

facilities

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion of the financial condition and results of operations are

based upon the Consolidated Financial Statements which have been

prepared in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting

principles As such management is required to make certain estimates

judgments and assumptions that are believed to be reasonable based on

the information available These estimates and assumptions affect the

reported amount of assets and liabilities revenues and expenses and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements Actual results may differ from these estimates under different

assumptions or conditions

Critical accounting policies
are defined as those that are reflective of

significant judgments and uncertainties the most important and pervasive

accounting policies
used and areas most sensitive to material changes from

external factors See Note ito the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional discussion of the application of these and other accounting

policies

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our rental business is largely based on written service agreements whereby

we agree to collect launder and deliver uniforms and other related

products The service agreements generally provide for weekly billing upon

completion of the laundering process and delivery to the customer

Accordingly we recognize revenue from rental operations in the period in

which the services are provided Revenue from rental operations also

includes
billings to customers for lost or damaged uniforms and replace

ment fees for non-personalized merchandise that is lost or damaged

Direct sale revenue is recognized in the period in which the product is

shipped

We changed our business practices regarding the replacement of certain

in-service towel and linen inventory and accordingly during the fourth

quarter of fiscal year 2010 we modified our revenue recognition policy

related to the associated replacement fees This revenue which has

historically
been deferred and recognized over the estimated useful life of

the associated in-service inventory is now recognized upon billing The

effect of this change was to increase revenue and income from operations

by $6.7 million net income by $4.2 million and basic and diluted earnings

per common share by $0.23 in fiscal year 2010
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Estimates are used in determining the
collectability

of accounts receivable

Management analyzes specific accounts receivable and historical bad debt

experience customer credit worthiness current economic trends and the

age of outstanding balances when evaluating the adequacy of the

allowance for doubtful accounts Significant management judgments and

estimates are used in connection with establishing the allowance in any

accounting period

Inventories

Inventories consist of new goods and rental merchandise in service We

estimate our reserves for inventory obsolescence by periodically examining

our inventory to determine if there are indicators that carrying values of

the inventories exceed the net realizable value Experience has shown that

significant
indicators that could require the need for additional inventory

write-downs include the age of the inventory anticipated demand for our

products historical inventory usage revenue trends and current economic

conditions We believe that adequate reserves for inventory obsolescence

have been made in the Consolidated Financial Statements however in the

future product lines and customer requirements may change which could

result in additional inventory write-downs New goods are stated at lower

of first-in first-out FIFO cost or market net of any reserve for obsolete or

excess inventory Merchandise placed in service to support rental opera

tions is amortized into cost of rental operations over the estimated useful

lives of the underlying inventory items primarily on straight-line basis

which results in matching of the cost of the merchandise with the weekly

rental revenue generated by the merchandise Estimated lives of rental

merchandise in service range from six months to three years In establish

ing estimated lives for merchandise in service management considers

historical experience and the intended use of the merchandise

We review the estimated useful lives of our in-service inventory assets on

periodic basis During the fourth quarter of 2010 we completed an

analysis of certain in-service inventory assets which resulted in the

estimated useful lives for these assets being modified to better reflect the

estimated periods in which the assets will remain in service The effect of

the change in estimate in fiscal year 2010 was not material

Environmental Costs

We accrue various environmental related costs which consist primarily of

estimated cleanup costs fines and penalties when it is probable that we

have incurred
liability

and the amount can be reasonably estimated

When single amount cannot be reasonably estimated but the cost can be

estimated within range we accrue the minimum amount This accrued

amount reflects our assumptions regarding the nature of the remedy and

the outcome of discussions with regulatory agencies Changes in the

estimates on which the accruals are based including unanticipated

government enforcement actions or changes in environmental regulations

could result in higher or lower costs

Accordingly as investigations and other actions proceed it is
likely

that

adjustments in our accruals will be necessary to reflect new information

The amounts of any such adjustments could have material adverse effect

on our results of operations or cash flows in given period While we

cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these environmental matters

currently none of these actions are expected to have material adverse
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effect on our results of operations or financial position While we believe

the
possibility

is remote there is the potential that we may incur

additional losses in excess of established reserves and these losses could be

material

Accruals for environmental liabilities are included in the Other accrued

expenses line item in the Consolidated Balance Sheets Environmental

costs are capitalized if they extend the life of the related property
increase

its capacity and/or mitigate or prevent future contamination The cost of

operating and maintaining environmental control equipment is charged to

expense

For additional information see Note 13 Commitments and

Contingencies

Impairments of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not

be recoverable in accordance with applicable accounting standards Recov

erability
of assets in accordance with these standards compares the

projected undiscounted future cash flows from use and disposition of

assets to the carrying amounts of those assets When the sum of projected

undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount impairment

losses are recognized In determining such impairment losses discounted

cash flows are utilized to determine the fair value of the assets being

evaluated During the third quarter of fiscal 2009 we recorded an

impairment loss of $19.7 million related to certain long-lived assets and

included that loss in the Goodwill and other impairment charges line

item in the Consolidated Statements of Operations We did not record any

impairment losses on long-lived assets in the Consolidated Financial

Statements in fiscal 2010 or 2008

For additional information see Note Goodwill and Other Impairment

Charges

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually in our fourth quarter

for possible impairment or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwill may not

be recoverable Goodwill has been assigned to reporting units for purposes

of impairment testing Our reporting units are U.S Rental operations

Canadian Rental operations and Direct Sales operations The associated

goodwill balances were $259.7 million $63.4 million and $0 respectively

at July 2010 There have been no changes to our reporting units or in

the allocation of goodwill to each respective reporting unit in fiscal year

2008 2009 or 2010

The goodwill impairment test involves two-step process First we assess

whether the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying amount

of the unit including goodwill Our evaluation generally considers changes

in the operating environment competitive position market trends operat

ing performance quoted market prices for our equity securities fair value

models and research prepared by independent analysts and if

necessary

discounted cash flows If the carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds

its fair value we would perform second test and if necessary reduce the

reporting units goodwill to its implied fair value The second step requires



us to allocate the fair value of the reporting unit derived in the first step to

the fair value of the reporting units net assets with any fair value in

excess of amounts allocated to such net assets representing the implied

fair value of goodwill for that reporting unit There were no impairments

of goodwill in fiscal 2010 or 2008

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2009 there was significant

deterioration in general economic conditions and in the market value of

our stock The resulting decline in our market capitalization prompted us to

conduct goodwill analysis to determine if an impairment of goodwill

existed as of December 27 2008 Our analysis evaluated the estimated fair

value of each reporting unit relative to the net book value We prepared

discounted cash flow model to estimate fair value which validated the

reasonableness of the estimated market value plus control premium As

result of this analysis no impairment was recorded as of December 27

2008

The
significant job losses in the North American economy during the third

quarter of fiscal year 2009 and the resultant decline in the employment

levels of our customers and our associated financial results prompted us to

update our assessment of goodwill and adjust our cash flow assumptions

to reflect an extended economic downturn and more severe job losses than

were previously considered in our interim goodwill impairment analysis at

the end of the fiscal second quarter The adjusted assumptions assumed

that employment levels would continue to decline into fiscal 2010 and

begin to moderately improve in fiscal 2011 returning to more normalized

levels in fiscal 2012 and beyond This revision of assumptions drove

decrease in the calculated fair values of the U.S Rental and Direct Sales

reporting units which resulted in our goodwill impairment charge in the

third quarter of fiscal year 2009 After completing the assessment we

determined that the carrying value of our U.S Rental and Direct Sales

reporting units exceeded the fair value and as described in Note an

impairment charge of $107.0 million was required Please see the

discussion of our sensitivity analysis in Note for an understanding of the

impact that each significant assumption has on the calculated fair values

of each reporting unit

Determining reporting units discounted cash flows requires significant

management judgment with respect to sales gross margin and selling

general and administrative SGA expense rates capital expenditures and

the selection and use of an appropriate discount rate The projected sales

gross margin and SGA expense rate assumptions and capital expenditures

were based on our annual business plan and other forecasted results

Discount rates reflected market-based weighted average cost of capital

taking into consideration the risks associated with the projected cash flows

directly resulting from the use of those assets in operations The estimated

fair value of reporting units was based on the best information available as

of the date of the assessment The use of different assumptions would

have increased or decreased estimated discounted future operating cash

flows and could have increased or decreased any impairment charge As

identified in Note the terminal growth rate we used in our discounted

cash flow model was 2.5%-3.0% While we do not believe historical

operating results are necessarily indicative of future operating results we

believe our assumptions are reasonable when compared to our historical

10 year compound annual growth rate in operating cash flow of 3.3%

We performed our annual goodwill impairment test as of June 27 2009

and determined that no further impairment of goodwill occurred in fiscal

year 2009

Future events could cause management to conclude that impairment

indicators exist and that goodwill and other intangibles associated with

acquired businesses are impaired Any resulting impairment loss could

have material impact on our financial condition and results of

operations

For additional information see Note Goodwill and Other Impairment

Charges

Insurance

We
carry large deductible insurance policies for certain obligations related

to health workers compensation auto and general liability programs

These deductibles range from $0.4 million to $0.8 million Estimates are

used in determining the potential liability
associated with reported claims

and for losses that have occurred but have not been reported Manage

ment estimates generally consider historical claims experience escalating

medical cost trends expected timing of claim payments
and actuarial

analyses provided by third parties Changes in the cost of medical care our

ability to settle claims and the present value estimates and judgments

used by management could have material impact on the amount and

timing of expense for any period

Income Taxes

Provisions for federal state and foreign income taxes are calculated based

on reported pre-tax earnings and current tax law Significant judgment is

required in determining income tax provisions and evaluating tax posi

tions We periodically assess our liabilities and contingencies for all periods

that are currently open to examination or have not been effectively settled

based on the most current available information Where it is not more

likely than not that our tax position will be sustained we record our best

estimate of the resulting tax liability
and any applicable interest and

penalties in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for temporary differences

between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts

in the financial statements using statutory rates in effect for the year in

which the differences are expected to reverse We present the tax effects

of these deferred tax assets and liabilities separately for each major tax

jurisdiction The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in

tax rates is recognized in the results of operations in the period that the

changes are enacted We record valuation allowances to reduce deferred

tax assets when it is more likely
than not that some portion of the asset

may not be realized We evaluate our deferred tax assets and liabilities on

periodic basis We believe that we have adequately provided for our

future income tax obligations based upon current facts circumstances and

tax law
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Results of Operations

The percentage relationships to revenues of certain income and expense

items for the three fiscal years ended July 2010 June 27 2009 and

June 28 2008 and the percentage changes in these income and expense

items between years are presented in the following table

Percentage of Revenues Percentage Change

Years Ended Between Years

FY2O1O FY2009

vs vs

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 FY 2009 FY 2008

Revenues

Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0 10.9 16.6

Operating expenses

Cast of rental aperations 69.5 78.1 67.6 10.6 3.6

Castofdirectsales 740 74.2 72.6 23.5 0.1

Total cost of sales 69.9 70.4 68.0 11.7 3.3

Selling and administrative 23.0 24.2 22.9 15.2 1.7

Goodwill and other impairment charges 13.5 100.0

lncome/Loss from operations 7.2 8.1 9.0 178.4 184.0

Interesteopense 1.7 1.5 1.6 1.1 10.01

lncome/oss before income taxes 5.5 9.6 75 150.8 220.1

Prooision/Benefit for income taxes 2.1 1.9 2.9 197.6 160.8

Net income/foss 3.4% 7.7% 4.6% 139.5% 257.3%

Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009

Fiscal Years We operate on fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to

June 30 As result we will
periodically

have fiscal
year

that consists of

53 weeks Fiscal
year 2010 had 53 weeks and fiscal year 2009 had

52 weeks We estimate that the extra week of operations generated

incremental revenue of approximately $15.0 million and incremental

earnings of approximately $0.03 per share in fiscal year 2010

Revenues Total revenues in fiscal 2010 declined 10.9% to $833.6 million

from $936.0 million in fiscal 2009

Rental revenue decreased $84.8 million in fiscal 2010 9.9% decrease

from fiscal 2009 The organic rental growth rate was negative 11.5%

decrease from negative 5.25% in fiscal 2009 Our organic rental growth

was negatively impacted by significantly reduced customer employment

levels and lower new account sales due to adverse economic conditions

Organic rental revenue is calculated using rental revenue adjusted to

exclude foreign currency exchange rate changes divestitures acquisitions

and the impact of the 53rd week compared to prior-period results We

believe that the organic rental revenue reflects the growth of our existing

rental business and is therefore useful in analyzing our financial condition

and results of operations In addition rental revenue was positively

impacted by $12.4 million or 1.4% compared to the
prior year due to the

favorable impact of foreign currency translation rates $14.0 million due to

the extra week and $6.7 million due to the modification of our revenue

recognition policy related to certain towel and linen replacement fees

These positive impacts were offset by the divestiture of several operations

that resulted in decrease in rental revenue of approximately $22.3 million

or 2.6%

Direct sale revenue was $57.5 million in fiscal 2010 23.4% decrease from

$75.0 million in fiscal 2009 The organic direct sale growth rate was

approximately negative 28.25% in fiscal year 2010 compared to negative

1.5% in fiscal year 2009 The decrease in direct sale revenue was due to

the loss of
significant

customer at the end of fiscal year 2009 and the

continued difficult economic environment Also fiscal 2009 included

increased revenues from the rollout of an apparel program to major

airline industry customer These decreases were
partially

offset by several

large new customer accounts and the impact of the extra week

Cost of RentaL Cost of rental operations which includes merchandise

production and delivery expenses decreased 10.6% to $539.7 million in

fiscal 2010 from $603.5 million in fiscal 2009 As
percentage of rental

revenue our gross margin from rental sales increased to 30.5% in fiscal

2010 from 29.9% in the prior fiscal year During fiscal 2010 we

experienced significant margin pressure resulting from our 11.5% negative

organic rental growth the impact of higher vehicle leasing costs and the

impact of fixed costs absorbed over lower revenue base These decreases

in rental gross margin were offset by decrease in our merchandise

expense related to more
effectively using and sharing garments lower

energy prices
and cost control efforts

Cost of Direct Sales Cost of direct sales decreased to $42.6 million in fiscal

2010 from $55.7 million in fiscal 2009 Gross margin from direct sales

increased in fiscal 2010 to 26.0% from 25.8% in fiscal 2009 The slight

increase in gross margin is primarily due to the change in product mix to

include an increased percentage of higher margin items in fiscal 2010

compared to fiscal 2009

Selling and Administrative
Selling

and administrative
expenses decreased

15.2% to $191.7 million in fiscal 2010 from $226.1 million in fiscal 2009

As percentage of total revenues selling and administrative expenses

decreased to 23.0% in fiscal 2010 from 24.2% in fiscal 2009 The decrease

is primarily the result of cost reduction activities net gains associated with

the sale divestiture and write-down of certain business assets in fiscal

2010 of $4.0 million environmental and severance expense in the prior

year of $9.6 million that did not reoccur in the current year and lower

selling expenses as result of lower new account sales These decreases

were partially
offset by the impact of fixed costs absorbed over lower

revenue base

Goodwill and Other Impairment Charges As discussed in Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements during fiscal year 2009 we conducted

an impairment analysis for our goodwill and our intangible assets and

long-lived assets This analysis concluded that certain of our goodwill

intangible assets and long-lived assets carrying values exceeded their

related fair values by $126.7 million This non-cash charge consisted of

$107.0 million related to goodwill $16.2 million related to long-lived

assets and $3.5 million related to certain acquired customer lists

Interest Expense Interest expense was $13.8 million in fiscal 2010 as

compared to $14.0 million in fiscal 2009 The decreased interest
expense

associated with the reduction in overall debt balances was partially offset

by higher effective interest rates and increased debt closing costs amorti

zation related to the new revolving credit agreement

Rental operations

Direct sales

93.1% 92.0% 92.4% 9.9% 7.O%

6.9 8.8 7.6 23.4 2.1
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Provision for Income Taxes Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 increased

to 37.5% from 19.5% in fiscal 2009 The current year tax rate is lower than

our statutory rate due to the adjustment of deferred tax liabilities related

to Canada the enactment of provincial tax rate reduction and the

favorable tax treatment on the sale of certain assets offset by the

reduction of deferred tax asset associated with equity based compensa

tion The
prior year tax rate was significantly lower than our statutory rate

primarily due to the impact of nondeductible goodwill impairment charges

nondeductible environmental charges and the write-off of deferred tax

assets associated with certain expiring stock options Both periods included

adjustments resulting from the final calculation and filing of our annual

income tax returns and the decrease in tax reserves for uncertain tax

positions due to the expiration of certain tax statutes

Fiscal 2009 Compared to Fiscal 2008

Fiscal Years We operate on fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to

June 30 As result we will periodically have fiscal year
with 53 weeks

of results Fiscal years 2009 and 2008 both had 52 weeks

Revenues Total revenues in fiscal 2009 declined 6.6% to $936.0 million

from $1002.4 million in fiscal 2008

Rental revenue decreased $64.8 million in fiscal 2009 7.0% decrease

from fiscal 2008 The organic industrial rental growth rate was approxi

mately negative 5.25% decrease from approximately 3.0% in fiscal

2008 Our organic rental growth was negatively impacted by economic-

driven customer attrition reduced customer employment levels lower

usage
levels and lower new account sales due to difficult economic

conditions Organic rental revenue is calculated using rental revenue

adjusted for foreign currency exchange rate changes and revenue from

newly acquired businesses compared to prior-period results We believe

that the organic rental revenue reflects the growth of our existing rental

business and is therefore useful in analyzing our financial condition and

results of operations In absolute dollars rental revenue was negatively

impacted by approximately $20.8 million or 2.3% compared to the prior

year rental revenue due to the unfavorable impact of foreign currency

translation rates with Canada

Direct sale revenue was $75.0 million in fiscal 2009 2.1% decrease from

$76.6 million in fiscal 2008 The organic direct sale growth rate was

approximately negative 1.5% in fiscal year 2009 compared to negative

9.5% in fiscal year
2008 The decrease in direct sale revenue was due to

the non-renewal of contract with major customer during fiscal 2009

and by an economic driven decrease in demand from other customers

which was substantially offset by increased revenues from the rollout of an

apparel program to major airline industry customer

Cost of RentaL Cost of rental operations which includes merchandise

production and delivery expenses decreased 3.6% to $603.5 million in

fiscal 2009 from $626.3 million in fiscal 2008 As percentage of rental

revenue our gross margin from rental sales decreased to 29.9% in fiscal

2009 from 32.4% in the
prior year The decrease in rental gross margins

resulted from the effect of fixed cost absorption on lower sales volume

additional costs in fiscal 2009 associated with recent change in

compensation law of $3.3 million charge of $1.4 million associated with

expense reduction actions and increased healthcare costs

Cost of Direct Sales Cost of direct sales increased to $55.7 million in fiscal

2009 from $55.6 million in fiscal 2008 Gross margin from direct sales

decreased in fiscal 2009 to 25.8% from 27.4% in fiscal 2008 The decrease

in gross margin is primarily due to the impact of fixed cost absorption

associated with lower direct sales volume

Selling and Administrative Selling and administrative expenses
decreased

1.7% to $226.1 million in fiscal 2009 from $230.0 million in fiscal 2008 As

percentage of total revenues selling and administrative expenses

increased to 24.2% in fiscal 2009 from 22.9% in fiscal 2008 The increase is

primarily the result of approximately $4.6 million of expense associated

with certain environmental reserves for fines penalties and related

expenses approximately $5.0 million related to severance including

$2.9 million of severance costs contractually obligated to the former chief

executive officer and increased bad debt expense These increases were

partially
offset by cost reduction efforts and lower incentive based

compensation expense In addition we have maintained consistent

number of sales people which has resulted in an increase in selling

expense as percentage of revenue due to the declining revenue base

Goodwill and Other Impairment Charges As discussed in Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements during fiscal year 2009 we conducted

an impairment analysis for our goodwill and our intangible assets and

long-lived assets This analysis concluded that certain of our goodwill

intangible assets and long-lived assets carrying values exceeded their

related fair values by $126.7 million This non-cash charge consisted of

$107.0 million related to goodwill $16.2 million related to long-lived

assets and $3.5 million related to certain acquired customer lists

Interest Expense Interest expense was $14.0 million in fiscal 2009 as

compared to $15.5 million in fiscal 2008 The decrease was due primarily

to significantly lower average debt balances and lower average interest

rates

Provision for Income Taxes Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 decreased

to 19.5% from 38.5% in fiscal 2008 This decrease is due to the

nondeductible goodwill impairment charges the result of lower book

income weakening of the Canadian dollar and decrease in tax reserve

additions in the current year

Liquidity Capital Resources and Financial Condition

Financial Condition We believe our financial condition is strong In

assessing our financial condition we consider factors such as working

capital cash flows provided by operations capital expenditures and debt

service obligations We continue to fund our operations through

combination of cash flow from operations and debt financing We believe

we have sufficient access to capital
markets to fund our operations

Our primary sources of cash are net cash flows from operations and

borrowings under our debt arrangements Primary uses of cash are

payments on indebtedness capital expenditures acquisitions and general

corporate purposes

Working capital
at July 32010 was $137.1 million $1.3 million increase

from $135.8 million at June 27 2009
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Operating Activities Net cash provided by operating activities was

$72.7 million in fiscal 2010 $103.2 million in fiscal 2009 and $103.1 million

in fiscal 2008 Cash provided by operations in fiscal 2010 decreased

primarily due to lower net income when the prior year impairment charge

is excluded and decreased benefit from accounts receivable collections

Cash provided by operations increased
slightly

in fiscal
year 2009

compared to fiscal year 2008 primarily as result of strong cash collections

on accounts receivable and focus on inventory management These

improvements were mostly offset by lower net income

Investing Activities Net cash provided by investing activities was $4.9 mil

lion in fiscal 2010 Net cash used for investing activities was $23.3 million

in fiscal 2009 and $94.1 million in fiscal 2008 In fiscal 2010 we disposed

of certain business assets for $21.6 million which was partially offset by

capital expenditures of $16.7 million In fiscal 2009 cash was used largely

for acquisition of property plant and equipment In fiscal 2008 cash was

largely
used for acquisition of business assets and acquisition of property

plant and equipment

Financing Activities Financing activities used cash of $81.8 million in fiscal

2010 $78.3 million in fiscal 2009 and $19.4 million in fiscal 2008 Cash

used for financing activities in fiscal 2010 was used primarily for repayment

of debt Cash used for financing activities in fiscal 2009 was used primarily

for the repayment of debt and repurchases of our common stock Cash

used in fiscal 2008 was primarily the result of cash expended for our

common stock share repurchase program partially
offset by net borrow

ings under our credit facilities We paid dividends of $5.6 million in fiscal

2010 $5.2 million in fiscal 2009 and $4.0 million in fiscal 2008 Dividends

per
share were $0.30 $0.28 and $0.20 in fiscal years 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively We anticipate dividends in fiscal year 2011 to increase

from $0.30 to $0.38 per share which will result in an estimated total

dividend of $7.1 million in fiscal year 2011

Capita/Structure Total debt was $161.4 million at July 2010 decrease

of $71.1 million from the
prior year balance of $232.5 million This

decrease was primarily due to the decision to use our strong free cash flow

to reduce debt obligations during fiscal year 2010 The ratio of debt to

capitalization total debt divided by the sum of the stockholders equity

plus total debt was 25.7% at fiscal year end 2010 significant decrease

from 34.7% at fiscal year end 2009

We believe that we will be able to fund all of the currently anticipated

cash requirements for fiscal 2011 including scheduled debt repayments

new investments in the business share repurchases dividend payments

and possible business acquisitions from operating cash flow and our

revolving credit
facility

On July 2009 we completed new $300.0 million three-year unsecured

revolving credit facility with syndicate of banks which expires on July

2012 This
facility replaced our $325.0 million unsecured revolving credit

facility
which was scheduled to mature in August 2010 Borrowings in

U.S dollars under the new credit
facility will at our election bear interest

at the adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR for specified

interest periods plus margin which can range from 2.25% to 3.25%

determined with reference to our consolidated leverage ratio or

floating rate equal to the greatest of JPMorgans prime rate ii the
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federal funds rate plus 0.50% and iii the adjusted LIBOR for one month

interest period plus 1.00% plus in each case margin determined with

reference to our consolidated leverage ratio Swingline loans will at our

election bear interest at the rate described in clause above or ii

rate to be agreed upon by us and JPMorgan Borrowings in Canadian

dollars under the credit facility will bear interest at the greater of the

Canadian Prime Rate and the Adjusted LIBOR for one month interest

period on such day or if such day is not business day the immediately

preceding business day plus 1.00%

As of July 2010 borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit

facility were $64.5 million The unused portion of the revolver may be used

for general corporate purposes acquisitions share repurchases working

capital
needs and to provide up to $50.0 million in letters of credit As of

July 2010 letters of credit outstanding against the revolver totaled

$23.6 million and primarily relate to our property and casualty insurance

programs No amounts have been drawn upon
these letters of credit

Availability
of credit under this new facility requires that we maintain

compliance with certain covenants In addition there are certain restricted

payment limitations on dividends or other distributions including share

repurchases The covenants under this agreement are the most restrictive

when compared to our other credit facilities The following table illustrates

compliance with regard to the material covenants required by the terms of

this
facility as of July 32010

Required Actual

Covenant Covenant

Amount Amount

Maximum Leverage Ratio Debt/EBITDA 3.50 1.77

Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio EBITDA/lnterest

Expense 3.00 7.53

Minimum Net Worth $315.9 $466.9

Our maximum leverage ratio and minimum interest coverage ratio

covenants are calculated by adding back non-cash charges as defined in

our debt agreement

Advances outstanding as of July 2010 bear interest at weighted

average all-in rate of 3.03% LIBOR plus 2.50% for the Eurocurrency rate

loans and an all-in rate of 3.25% Lender Prime Rate for overnight

Swingline Base Rate loans We also
pay

fee on the unused daily balance

of the revolving credit
facility

based on leverage ratio calculated on

quarterly basis At July 2010 this fee was 0.3% of the unused
daily

balance

We have $75.0 million of variable rate unsecured private placement notes

The notes bear interest at 0.60% over LIBOR and are scheduled to mature

on June 30 2015 The notes do not require principal payments until

maturity Interest payments are reset and paid on quarterly basis As of

July 2010 the outstanding balance of the notes was $75.0 million at an

all-in rate of 1.13% LIBOR plus 0.60%

We maintain an accounts receivable securitization facility whereby the

lender will make loans to us on revolving basis The
original

amount of

credit available to us under this facility was $50.0 million Effective July

2010 we voluntarily reduced the loan agreements facility
limit to



$40.0 million All of the terms of the
facility agreement remain unchanged

The amount of funds available under the loan agreement as of July 2010

was $37.9 million which was the amount of
eligible

receivables as of the

prior
month end less calculated reserve requirement The agreement will

expire on September 26 2012

We are required to pay interest on outstanding loan balances at an annual

rate of one month LIBOR plus margin or if the lender is funding the loan

through the issuance of commercial paper to third parties at an annual

rate equal to the commercial paper rate plus margin In connection with

the loan agreement we granted first priority security interest in certain

of our U.S.-based receivables As of July 2010 there was $20.0 million

outstanding under this loan agreement at an all-in interest rate of 1.49%

commercial paper plus 1.10% We are also required to pay fee on the

unused balance of the facility

We had $50.0 million 8.4% unsecured fixed rate private placement notes with

certain institutional investors The 10-year notes had nine-year average life

with final maturity on July 20 2010 Beginning on July 20 2004 and

annually thereafter we repaid $7.1 million of the
principal

amount at par On

January 20 2010 we repaid these notes prior to their original maturity date

and incurred additional costs associated with the prepayment of approximately

$0.3 million which is included in the Selling and administrative line of the

Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal year 2010

See Note of the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of our

interest rate swap and hedging activities related to our outstanding debt

The credit facilities loan agreements fixed rate notes and variable rate

notes contain various restrictive covenants that among other matters

require us to maintain minimum stockholders equity and maximum

leverage ratio These debt arrangements also contain customary represen

tations warranties covenants and indemnifications At July 2010 we

were in compliance with all debt covenants and only material adverse

change in our financial performance and condition could result in

potential event of default In the unlikely situation that an event of default

would be imminent we believe that we would be able to successfully

negotiate amended covenants or obtain waivers however certain financial

concessions might be required Our results of operations and financial

condition could be adversely affected if amended covenants or waivers in

acceptable terms could not be successfully negotiated

Cash Obligations Under various agreements we are obligated to make

future cash payments in fixed amounts These include payments under the

revolving credit facility capital lease obligations and rent payments

required under operating leases with initial or remaining terms in excess of

one year

The following table summarizes our cash payment obligations as of July 2010 for the next five fiscal years and thereafter in millions

Less than One to Three to After five

one year
three

years
five

years years
Total

Variable rate revolving credit facility
64.5 64.5

Variable rate notes 75.0 750

Variable rate loan 20.0 20.0

Other debt arrangements including capital leases 1.0 0.9 1.9

Operating leases 25.4 35.0 18.5 7.5 86.4

Retirement benefit payments 2.2 5.1 5.5 17.7 30.5

Total contractual cash obligations $28.6 $125.5 $24.0 $100.2 $278.3

As of July 2010 we have entered into certain interest rate swap agreements whereby we have limited our exposure to future interest rate increases See

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

At July 2010 we had approximately $229.8 million of available capacity under our revolving and accounts receivable credit facilities However

borrowings would be limited to $180.5 million due to debt covenants Our revolving credit
facility

contributes $162.6 million of liquidity
while our accounts

receivable securitization
facility

contributes $17.9 million based on the eligible receivables balance at July 2010 We anticipate that we will generate

sufficient cash flows from operations to satisfy our cash commitments and
capital requirements for fiscal 2011 and to reduce the amounts outstanding

under the revolving credit
facility however we may utilize borrowings under the revolving credit

facility
to supplement our cash requirements from time to

time We estimate that
capital expenditures in fiscal 2011 will be approximately $2O-$30 million

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

At July 32010 we had $23.6 million of stand-by letters of credit that

were issued and outstanding primarily in connection with our property

and casualty insurance programs
No amounts have been drawn upon

these letters of credit In addition we have outstanding operating leases

with contractual obligations totaling $86.4 million related to
facility

equipment and vehicle leases We do not utilize special purpose entities

to facilitate off-balance sheet financing arrangements

Pension Obligations

Pension expense is recognized on an accrual basis over the employees

approximate service periods Pension expense is generally independent of

funding decisions or requirements We recognized expense for our defined

benefit pension plan of $1.5 million income of $0.2 million and income

of $0.5 million in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively At July 2010

the fair value of our pension plan assets totaled $39.8 million We

anticipate making cash contributions of approximately $2.5 million in

fiscal 2011
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Effective January 2007 we froze our defined benefit pension plan and

related supplemental executive retirement plan Future growth in benefits

has not occurred beyond December 31 2006

The calculation of pension expense and the corresponding liability requires

the use of number of critical assumptions including the expected long-

term rate of return on plan assets and the assumed discount rate Changes

in these assumptions can result in different expense and
liability amounts

and future actual experience can differ from these assumptions Pension

expense increases as the expected rate of return on pension plan assets

decreases At July 2010 we estimated that the pension plan assets will

generate long-term rate of return of 7.75% This rate is lower than the

assumed rate used at both June 27 2009 and June 28 2008 of 8.0% and

was developed by evaluating input from our outside actuary as well as

long-term inflation assumptions The expected long-term rate of return

on plan assets at July 2010 is based on an allocation of equity and fixed

income securities Decreasing the expected long-term rate of return by

0.5% from 7.75% to 7.25% would increase our estimated 2011 pension

expense by approximately $0.2 million Pension
liability

and future

pension expense increase as the discount rate is reduced We discounted

future pension obligations using rate of 5.60% at July 320106.90% at

June 27 2009 and 7.20% at June 28 2008 Our outside actuary

determines the discount rate by creating yield curve based on high

quality bonds Decreasing the discount rate by 0.5% from 5.60% to

5.10% would increase our accumulated benefit obligation at July 2010

by approximately $6.2 million and increase the estimated fiscal 2011

pension expense by approximately $0.6 million

Future changes in plan asset returns assumed discount rates and various

other factors related to the participants in our pension plan will impact

our future pension expense and liabilities We cannot predict with

certainty what these factors will be in the future As part of our

assessment of the expected return on plan assets we considered the

recent decline in the global equity markets and concluded that 7.75%

long term rate was appropriate

Union Pension Plans

We participate in number of union sponsored collectively bargained

multi-employer pension plans Union Plans We made contributions to

these plans of $3.1 million $3.2 million and $2.5 million in fiscal 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively These contributions are determined in

accordance with the provisions of negotiated labor contracts and generally

are based on the number of hours worked Several factors could result in

potential funding deficiencies which could cause us to make significantly

higher future contributions to these plans including unfavorable invest

ment performance changes in demographics and increased benefits to

participants At this time we are unable to determine the amount of

additional contributions if any

We are responsible for our proportional share of any unfunded vested

benefits related to the Union Plans Under the applicable accounting rules

we are not required to record
liability

for our portion of the withdrawal

liability if any until we exit from the plan In fiscal year 2009 we exited

from one multi-employer pension plan and recorded
liability

of

$1.0 million In fiscal
year 2010 local union members at another

facility

voted to leave their union which resulted in recording pension liability

of $0.8 million There are two locations that are currently considering

whether to leave their union If the members at these locations vote to

decertify their unions the decertification will result in
partial

with

drawal from their Union Plan and we will be required to record an

estimated
liability

of up to $1.3 million

If future withdrawal from plan occurs we will record our proportional

share of any unfunded vested benefits Based upon the most recent

information available from the trustees managing the Union Plans our

share of the unfunded vested benefits for these plans is estimated to be

approximately $20.0 to $26.0 million This estimate includes our estimated

liability associated with the pending decertifications previously discussed

Share-based Payments

We grant share-based awards including restricted stock and options to

purchase our common stock Stock option grants are for fixed number of

shares to employees and directors with an exercise
price equal to the fair

value of the shares at the date of grant Share-based compensation for

awards is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations on

straight-line
basis over the

requisite service period The amortization of

share-based compensation reflects estimated forfeitures adjusted for actual

forfeiture experience We review our estimated forfeiture rates on an annual

basis As share-based compensation expense is recognized deferred tax

asset is recorded that represents an estimate of the future tax deduction

from the exercise of stock options or release of restrictions on the restricted

stock At the time share-based awards are exercised cancelled expire or

restrictions lapse we recognize adjustments to income tax expense

Impact of Inflation

In general we believe that our results of operations are not significantly

affected by moderate changes in the inflation rate Historically we have

been able to manage the impacts of more significant changes in inflation

rates through our customer relationships and continued focus on

operational productivity improvements Our customer agreements gener

ally provide for
price

increases consistent with the rate of inflation or

5.0% whichever is greater

Significant increases in energy costs specifically
natural

gas
and gasoline

can materially affect our results of operations and financial condition

Currently energy costs represent approximately 4.1% of our total

revenue

Exit Disposal and Related Activities

We continuously monitor our operations and related cost structure to

ensure that our resource levels are appropriate and from time to time take

various actions to ensure that these resources are utilized in the most

efficient manner These actions
may consist of facility closures divesti

tures expansions and increases or decreases in
staffing levels During

fiscal 2009 and 2010 we took number of actions to adjust our business

operations as result of the changes in the economic environment The

most significant of these actions are discussed below

In the first quarter of fiscal
year 2009 we closed three processing plants

two branch locations reduced selected headcount and outsourced our
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fleet maintenance function As result of these actions we recorded

approximately $2.6 million of expense in the Consolidated Statements of

Operations during the quarter These charges principally impacted our

United States operating segment Of these amounts approximately

$1.0 million was recorded in the Cost of rental operations line item and

the remaining $1.6 million was recorded in the Selling and administra

tive line item All severance associated with this action has been paid

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2009 we restructured our workforce to

better align our cost structure with our revenue levels As result of this

action we recorded approximately $0.9 million in severance costs in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations These charges impacted both our

United States and Canadian operating segments and did not significantly

impact any one line item on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

Substantially all severance costs related to these actions have been paid

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2010 we continued to align our

workforce and cost structure to better match our revenue levels As result

we reduced selected administrative regional and corporate headcount

divested an unprofitable operation and recorded approximately $1.4 million

in associated severance costs in the Selling and administrative line item

Of the $1.4 million in severance $1.3 million was paid by July 2010 with

the remaining $0.1 million to be paid by October 31 2010 These actions

primarily impacted our United States operating segment

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2010 we sold all of the customer lists

and certain assets related to our U.S Cleanroom operations In addition we

disposed of non-core linen operation at one of our production facilities As

result of these transactions including the associated asset impairment

charges we recognized net gain of $1.2 million in the Selling and

administrative line in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2010 we sold portion of the customer

list and certain assets related to non-core linen operation and refined

our estimates related to the disposition of our Cleanroom operations As

result of these transactions including the associated impairment charges

we recognized net gain of $2.5 million in the Selling and administra

tive line in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Environmental Matters

We are currently involved in several environmental-related proceedings by

certain governmental agencies which relate primarily to allegedly operating

certain facilities in noncompliance with required permits In addition to

these proceedings in the normal course of our business we are subject to

among other things periodic inspections by regulatory agencies We

continue to dedicate substantial operational and financial resources to

environmental compliance and we remain
fully

committed to operating in

compliance with all environmental laws and regulations As of July 2010

we had reserves of approximately $3.2 million related to these matters

Descriptions of certain matters are as follows

On February 19 2010 we settled the previously disclosed matter brought

against us by the Commissioner of Environmental Protection of the State

of Connecticut The aggregate settlement amount was within previously

established reserves
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In August 2008 we became aware that our Des Moines Iowa facility allegedly

violated the
facilitys

wastewater treatment permit In addition we became

aware that this
facility allegedly did not properly report its wastewater

sampling results to the City of Des Moines We promptly brought this matter

to the attention of the City of Des Moines Attorneys office and the
City

of Des

Moines water reclamation authority We also immediately launched our own

investigation As part of our investigation we learned among other things

that the
City

of Des Moines water reclamation authority was aware of the

situation and had referred this matter to the U.S Environmental Protection

Agency U.S EPA The U.S EPA has also referred this matter to the

U.S Attorneys office in Des Moines Iowa We have reached settlement with

the Des Moines Metropolitan Wastewater Reclamation Authority and resolved

this matter with the
city

We are in the midst of resolving
this matter with

the U.S EPA and the U.S Attorney

On
July 24 2008 the U.S EPA inspected our facility

in South Chicago

Illinois As part of its inspection the U.S EPA identified certain alleged

deficiencies with respect to the operations at this
facility including

potential recordkeeping violations and opportunities to improve the

overall environmental compliance and permitting of the
facility

The

U.S EPA provided written record of its inspection findings to us and

identified alleged noncompliance with certain provisions of the Resource

Conservation and Recovery Act The U.S EPA has subsequently visited this

facility
We have responded to the U.S EPA and will continue to work

cooperatively with the U.S EPA to resolve this matter

In the summer and fall of 2008 the U.S EPA inspected our facility
in

Manchester New Hampshire As part of its inspection the U.S EPA

identified certain alleged deficiencies with respect to the operations at

this
facility including potential recordkeeping violations and opportunities

to improve the facilitys overall environmental compliance and permitting

The U.S EPA requested additional information regarding our Manchester

and Portsmouth New Hampshire facilities to evaluate compliance with

the Clean Air Act and applicable state and federal regulations and the

U.S EPA issued testing order at the Manchester
facility

We have

completed the requested testing and submitted test report to the

U.S EPA and the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services

NHDES Subsequently in September 2009 the U.S EPA issued Notice

of Violation alleging noncompliance with state and federal laws concern

ing air emissions and permitting We will continue to work cooperatively

with the U.S EPA to resolve this matter

While we cannot predict the outcome of these matters with certainty we

currently do not expect any of these matters to have material adverse

effect on our results of operations or financial position However while

we believe the possibility is remote there is the potential that we may

incur additional losses in excess of established reserves and these losses

could be material

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB

issued revised guidance regarding accounting for business combinations

The guidance retains the requirement that the acquisition method of

accounting previously called the purchase method be used for all

business combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each



business combination This guidance also establishes
principles

and

requirements for how the acquirer recognizes and measures in its

financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities

assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree recognizes

and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or gain

from bargain purchase and determines what information to disclose

to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and

financial effects of the business combination We adopted this revised

guidance effective at the beginning of fiscal year 2010 Our adoption did

not impact our consolidated financial position or results of operations

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued

Accounting Standards Update No 2010-06 Improving Disclosures about Fair

Value Measurements ASU 201 0-06 or the ASU The ASh amends ASC 820

to require number of additional disclosures regarding fair value measure

ments Specifically the ASU requires entities to disclose the following

The amounts of
significant

transfers between level and level of the

hierarchy and the reasons for the transfer

The reason for any transfer in or out of level

Information in the reconciliation of recurring level measurements

about purchases sales issuance and settlements on gross basis

Additional information about both the valuation techniques and inputs

used in estimating level and level fair value measurements

The levels within the fair value hierarchy are defined in Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

ASU 2010-06 was effective for our third quarter ended March 27 2010

and did not impact our financial position or results of operations

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks Market risk is the potential loss
arising

from adverse changes in interest rates energy prices
and foreign currency

exchange rates We do not enter into derivative or other financial

instruments for speculative purposes

Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to market risk exposure related to changes in interest rates

We use financial instruments such as interest rate swap agreements to

manage the interest rate on our fixed and variable rate debt Under these

arrangements we agree to exchange at specified intervals the difference

between fixed and
floating

interest amounts calculated by reference to an

agreed-upon notional
principal

amount Interest rate swap agreements are

entered into for periods consistent with related underlying exposures and

do not constitute positions independent of those exposures

sensitivity analysis was performed to measure our interest rate risk over

one-year period to changes in market interest rates for forecasted debt levels

and interest rate swaps The base rates used for the
sensitivity analysis

for

variable debt and interest rate swaps is the three month LIBOR market

interest rates at July 2010 The credit spread is included in the base rates

used in the analysis The two scenarios include measuring the sensitivity to

interest expense with an immediate 50 basis point change in market interest

rates and the impact of 50 basis point change distributed evenly throughout

the year Based on the forecasted average debt level outstanding interest rate

swaps and current market interest rates the forecasted interest expense is

$9.7 million The scenario with an immediate 50 basis point change would

increase or decrease forecasted interest by $0.2 million or 1.9% The scenario

that distributes the 50 basis point change would increase or decrease

forecasted interest expense by $0.1 million or 1.2%

For additional information regarding our debt see Note to our Consoli

dated Financial Statements as well as the Liquidity Capital
Resources and

Financial Condition section of Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Energy Cost Risk

We are subject to market risk exposure related to changes in energy costs

and at times we use derivative financial instruments to manage the risk

that changes in gasoline costs will have on our future financial results

Periodically we purchase fuel commodity futures contracts to effectively

hedge portion of anticipated actual
energy purchases Under these

contracts we agree to exchange at specified intervals the difference

between fixed and floating commodity prices
calculated by reference to

an agreed-upon notional principal amount

sensitivity analysis was performed to measure our energy cost risk over

one-year period for forecasted levels of unleaded and diesel fuel

purchases The
sensitivity analysis that was performed assumed gasoline

prices
at

July 2010 hedged gallons of 0.6 million including unleaded

and diesel and forecasted gasoline and diesel purchases over one-year

period For each one percentage point increase or decrease in gasoline

and diesel
prices

under these forecasted levels and prices our forecasted

energy cost would change by approximately $0.1 million

Production costs at our plants are also subject to fluctuations in natural

gas costs To reduce our exposure to changes in natural gas prices we

utilize natural gas supply contracts in the normal course of business These

contracts meet the definition of normal purchase and therefore are not

considered derivative instruments for accounting purposes

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our material foreign subsidiaries are located in Canada The assets and

liabilities of these subsidiaries are denominated in the Canadian dollar

and as such are translated into U.S dollars at the exchange rate in effect

at the balance sheet date Results of operations are translated using the

average exchange rates throughout the period The effect of exchange

rate fluctuations on translation of assets and liabilities are recorded as

component of stockholders equity Gains and losses from foreign currency

transactions are included in results of operations
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Following is summary of the results of operations for each of the quarters within the fiscal years ended July 2010 and June 27 2009 All amounts are in

millions except per share data

Quarterly Finandal Data

GK Services Inc and Subsidiaries

Unaudited First Second Third Fourth

2010

Revenues $208.1 $206.4 $198.9 $220.2

Gross Profit 60.3 60.7 59.2 71.1

Income from Operations 9.8 14.3 14.0 21.5

Net Income 3.3 7.2 7.0 11.1

Basic Earnings per Share 0.18 0.39 0.38 0.61

Diluted Earnings per
Share 0.18 0.39 0.38 0.61

Dividends
per

Share 0.075 0.075 0.075 0.075

2009

Revenues 245.2 241.8 231.0 218.0

Gross Profit 71.3 74.5 68.4 62.6

lncome/Loss from Operations 9.4 19.5 112.3 7.4

Net lncome/ftoss 1.5 9.5 86.3 2.8

Basic Earnings per Share 0.08 0.52 4.74 0.16

Diluted Earnings per Share 0.08 0.52 4.74 0.16

Dividends per Share 0.070 0.070 0.070 0.070

We utilize 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday nearest June 30 Fiscal 2010 was 53 week
year

with the extra week reported in the fourth

quarter and fiscal year 2009 was 52 week year The net loss in the third quarter of fiscal
year 2009 is the result of non-cash impairment charge

primarily related to goodwill which is
fully

discussed in Note to our audited financial statements included in the accompanying financial statements
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Managements Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for GK Services Inc the Company

as defined in Rule 13a-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Our internal control over financial reporting was designed under the supervision of

the Companys principal executive officer principal
financial officer principal accounting officer and other members of management and effected by the

Companys Board of Directors to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation and presentation of

financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States

Our management completed an assessment of the Companys internal control over financial reporting This assessment was based on the criteria set forth

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on this assessment

management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of July 2010

Ernst Young LLP the Companys independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial statements and schedule and the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting has issued an unqualified attestation report on the Companys effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting as stated in their report which is included herein

Any internal control system over financial reporting no matter how well conceived and operated has inherent limitations As result even those systems

determined to be effective can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the control objectives over the reliability of financial reporting and

preparation and presentation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

are met

Is Douglas Milroy

Douglas Milroy

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Is
Jeffrey Wright

Jeffrey Wright

Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer and Director

Principal Financial Officer

Is Thomas Dietz

Thomas Dietz

Vice President and Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

August 26 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GK Services Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GK Services Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of July 32010 and June 27 2009

and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and comprehensive income/loss and cash flows for each of the three
years

in

the period ended July 2010 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and

schedule are the
responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based

on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles
used and

significant
estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our

audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly
in all material respects the consolidated financial position of GK Services Inc and

subsidiaries at July 2010 and June 27 2009 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended July 2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when

considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly
in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the Companys internal control

over financial reporting as of July 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated August 26 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Ernst Young LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

August 26 2010

24



Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Ffrm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GK Services Inc

We have audited GK Services Inc and subsidiaries the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of July 32010 based on criteria

established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO

criteria The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures

as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion GK Services Inc and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of July 2010

based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets

of the Company as of July 2010 and June 27 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and comprehensive

income/loss and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 2010 and our report dated August 26 2010 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Ernst Young LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

August 26 2010
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

GK Services Inc and Subsidiaries

For the Fiscal Years Ended

July 2010 June 27 2009 June 28 2008

In thousands except per share data 53 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks

Revenues

Rental operations $776098 860921 925767

Direct sales 57494 75044 76628

Total revenues 833592 935965 1002395

Operating Expenses

Cost of rental operations 539711 603524 626270

Cost of direct sales 42555 55650 55615

Selling and administrative 191705 226115 229987

Goodwill and other impairment charges 126719

Total operating expenses 773971 1012008 911872

Income/Loss from Operations 59621 76043 90523

Interest expense 13849 13996 15543

Income/Loss before Income Taxes 45772 90039 74980

Provision/Benefit for income taxes 17160 17575 28901

Net Income/Loss 28612 72464 46079

Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding 18299 18389 20138

Basic Earnings per Common Share 1.56 3.94 2.29

Diluted weighted average
number of shares outstanding 18348 18389 20277

Diluted Earnings per Common Share 1.56 3.94 2.27

Dividends
per

Share 0.30 0.28 0.20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

GK Services Inc and Subsidiaries

In thousands except share data July 2010 June 27 2009

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8774 13136

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of $3118 and $3848 82754 85209

Inventories net 126325 141616

Other current assets 17509 18213

Current income taxes receivable 3770 3028

Total current assets 239132 261202

Property Plant and Equipment

Land 31414 31062

Buildings and improvements 154200 158842

Machinery and equipment 307318 317308

Automobiles and trucks 14624 23450

Less accumulated depreciation 312568 313926

Total
property plant and equipment 194988 216736

Other Assets

Goodwill 323055 319942

Customer contracts and non-competition agreements net 22634 29539

Other principally retirement plan assets 34059 29873

Total other assets 379748 379354

Total assets 813868 857292

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 25944 29134

Accrued expenses

Salaries and employee benefits 29408 32047

Other 42070 53087

Deferred income taxes 3557 3414

Current maturities of long-term debt 1023 7744

Total current liabilities 102002 125426

Long-Term Debt net of Current Maturities 160398 224781

Deferred Income Taxes 1242 1893

Accrued Income Taxes Long Term 10113 12016

Other Noncurrent Liabilities 73217 55820

Commitments and Contingencies Notes 12 and 13

Stockholders Equity

Common stock $0.50 par value non-convertible

Class 400000000 shares authorized 18581064 and

18511768 shares issued and outstanding 9292 9256

Additional paid-in capital 8009 3543

Retained earnings 444986 421953

Accumulated other comprehensive income 4609 2604

Total stockholders equity 466896 437356

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 813868 857292

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive lncome/loss

GK Services Inc and Subsidiaries

Accumulated

Class Additional Other

Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive
Stockholders

In thousands except per share data Stock Capital Earnings lncome/Loss Equity

Balance June 30 2007 $10645 66863 485954 28526 591988

Comprehensive income

Net income 46079 46079

Other comprehensive income see Note 6833 6833

Comprehensive Income 52912

Cumulative effect of the adoption of FIN 48 1559 1559

Issuance of common stock under stock plans net of income tax 282 shares 141 4216 4357

Equity based compensation 5932 5932

Share repurchase program 2470 shares see Note 10 1235 77011 13867 92113

Cash dividends $0.20 per share 4041 4041

Balance June 28 2008 9551 512566 35359 557476

Comprehensive Loss

Net loss 72464 72464

Other comprehensive loss see Note 32755 32755

Comprehensive Loss 105219

Issuance of common stock under stock plans net of income tax 90 shares 45 165 210

Equity based compensation 7149 7149

Share repurchase program 680 shares see Note 10 340 3771 12936 17047

Cash dividends $0.28 per share 5213 5213

Balance June 27 2009 9256 3543 421953 2604 437356

Comprehensive income

Net income 28612 28612

Other comprehensive income see Note 2005 2005

Comprehensive Income 30617

Issuance of common stock under stock plans net of income tax 88 shares 44 340 384

Equity based compensation 4513 4513

Share repurchase program 16 shares see Note 10 387 395

Cash dividends $0.30 per share 5579 5579

Balance July 2010 9292 8009 $444986 4609 $466896

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

GK Services Inc and Subsidiaries

For the Fiscal Years Ended

July 2010 June 27 2009 June 28 2008

In thousands 53 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks

Operating Activities

Net income/Ioss 28612 72464 46079

Adjustments to reconcile net income/loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 40188 44252 48404

Goodwill and other impairment charges 126719

Deferred income taxes 1824 34999 3741

Share-based compensation 4513 7149 5932

Changes in current operating items exclusive of acquisitions/divestitures

Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 371 22155 10068

Inventories 22157 6762 1470

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 12576 121 976

Other 8731 3485 6524

Net cash provided by operating activities 72710 103180 103058

Investing Activities

Property plant and equipment additions net 16710 23330 27057

Divestiture/Acquisition of business assets net of cash 21620 63820

Purchases of investments net 3223

Net cash provided by used for investing activities 4910 23330 94100

Financing Activities

Payments of long-term debt 7535 7740 7534

Payments of Proceeds from revolving credit facilities net 68710 48500 81001

Cash dividends paid 5579 5213 4041

Net issuance of common stock primarily under stock option plans 384 210 4357

Purchase of common stock 395 17047 93142

Net cash used for financing activities 81835 78290 19359

Decrease Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4215 1560 10401

Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash 147 1075 293

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning of year 13136 12651 22759

End of year 8774 13136 12651

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for

Interest $13161 $14214 $15560

Income taxes $13502 $11162 $22950

The accompanying notes are an
integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Finanda Statements

Amounts in millions except share and
per

share data

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

GK Services Inc is market leader in providing branded work apparel and

facility services programs that enhance image and safety in the workplace

We serve wide variety of North American industrial service and high-

technology companies providing them with work apparel and facility services

products such as floor mats dust mops wiping towels restroom supplies

and selected linen items We also manufacture certain work apparel

garments that are used to support our garment rental and direct purchase

programs We have two operating segments United States includes the

Dominican Republic and Ireland operations and Canada which have been

identified as components of our organization that are reviewed by our Chief

Executive Officer to determine resource allocation and evaluate performance

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of GK Services

Inc and all subsidiaries in which we have controlling financial interest

Intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation

Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest June 30 All references herein to

2010 2009 and 2008 refer to the fiscal years ended
July 2010

June 27 2009 and June 28 2008 respectively Fiscal year 2010 consisted of

53 weeks fiscal years 2009 and 2008 each consisted of 52 weeks

We have evaluated subsequent events and have found none that require

recognition or disclosure

Reclassifications

Certain
prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the

current year presentation These reclassifications did not impact current or

historical net income or stockholders equity

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts and

disclosures reported therein Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in

making estimates actual results could differ from our estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all investments purchased with an original maturity of three

months or less to be cash equivalents

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance for expected losses and

the fair value approximates the book value The allowance recognized as an

amount equal to anticipated future write-offs is based on the age of

outstanding balances analysis of specific accounts historical bad debt

experience and current economic trends
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Inventories

Inventories consist of new goods and rental merchandise in service New

goods are stated at lower of
first-in first-out FIFO cost or market net of

any reserve for obsolete or excess inventory Merchandise placed in service

to support rental operations is amortized into cost of rental operations over

the estimated useful lives of the underlying inventory items primarily on

straight-line basis which results in matching of the cost of the merchan

dise with the weekly rental revenue generated by the merchandise

Estimated lives of rental merchandise in service range from six months to

three years In establishing estimated lives for merchandise in service

management considers historical experience and the intended use of the

merchandise

We review the estimated useful lives of our in-service inventory assets on

periodic basis During the fourth quarter of 2010 we completed an analysis

of certain in-service inventory assets which resulted in the estimated useful

lives for these assets being modified to better reflect the estimated periods

in which the assets will remain in service The effect of the change in

estimate in fiscal year 2010 was not material

We estimate our reserves for inventory obsolescence by periodically examin

ing our inventory to determine if there are indicators that carrying values

exceed the net realizable value Experience has shown that significant

indicators that could require the need for additional inventory write-downs

include the age of the inventory anticipated demand for our products

historical inventory usage revenue trends and current economic conditions

We believe that adequate reserves for inventory obsolescence have been

made in the Consolidated Financial Statements however in the future

product lines and customer requirements may change which could result in

additional inventory write-downs

The components of inventories as of
July

2010 and June 27 2009 are as

follows

July 2010 June 27 2009

Raw Materials 7.5 9.2

Work in Process 0.5 3.6

Finished Goods 49.0 55.1

New Goods 57.0 67.9

Merchandise In Service 69.3 73.7

Total Inventories $126.3 $141.6

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are carried at cost Depreciation is generally

computed using the
straight-line

method over the following estimated

useful lives

life Years

Automobiles and trucks to

Machinery and equipment to 10

Buildings
20 to 33

Building improvements 10

Costs of
significant additions renewals and betterments including external

and certain internal computer software development costs are capitalized

When an asset is sold or otherwise disposed of the related cost and

accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and the

gain or loss on disposition is reflected in earnings Repair and maintenance

costs are charged to operating expense when incurred Depreciation expense

for fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008 was $34.0 million $37.0 million and



$37.3 million respectively and includes amortization of assets recorded

under
capital

leases

Environmental Liabilities

We accrue various environmental related costs which consist primarily of

estimated cleanup costs fines and penalties when it is probable that we

have incurred liability and the amount can be reasonably estimated When

single
amount cannot be reasonably estimated but the cost can be

estimated within range we accrue the minimum amount This accrued

amount reflects our assumptions regarding the nature of the remedy and

the outcome of discussions with regulatory agencies Changes in the

estimates on which the accruals are based including unanticipated govern

ment enforcement actions or changes in environmental regulations could

result in higher or lower costs Accordingly as investigations and other

actions proceed it is
likely

that adjustments to our accruals will be necessary

to reflect new information The amounts of any such adjustments could have

material adverse effect on our results of operations or cash flows in given

period While we cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these environmen

tal matters currently none of these actions are expected to have material

adverse effect on our results of operations or financial position While we

believe the
possibility

is remote there is the potential that we may incur

additional losses in excess of established reserves and these losses could be

material

Accruals for environmental liabilities are included in the Other accrued

expenses line item in the Consolidated Balance Sheets Environmental costs

are capitalized
if they extend the life of the related property increase its

capacity and/or mitigate or prevent future contamination The cost of

operating and maintaining environmental control equipment is charged to

expense

For additional information see Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies

Impairments of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be

recoverable in accordance with applicable accounting standards Recoverabil

ity of assets in accordance with these standards compares the projected

undiscounted future cash flows from use and
disposition

of assets to the

carrying amounts of those assets When the sum of projected undiscounted

cash flows is less than the carrying amount impairment losses are

recognized In determining such impairment losses discounted cash flows

are utilized to determine the fair value of the assets being evaluated During

the third quarter of fiscal 2009 we recorded an impairment loss of

$19.7 million related to certain long-lived assets and included that loss in

the Goodwill and other impairment charges line item in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations We did not record any impairment losses on long-

lived assets in the Consolidated Financial Statements in fiscal 2010 or 2008

For additional information see Note Goodwill and Other Impairment

Charges

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually in our fourth quarter for

possible impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circum

stances indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwill may not be

recoverable Goodwill has been assigned to reporting units for purposes of

impairment testing Our reporting units are U.S Rental operations Canadian

Rental operations and Direct Sales operations The associated goodwill

balances were $259.7 million $63.4 million and $0 respectively at
July
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2010 There have been no changes to our reporting units or in the allocation

of goodwill to each respective reporting unit in fiscal years 2008 2009 or

2010

The goodwill impairment test involves two-step process First we assess

whether the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying amount of

the unit including goodwill Our evaluation generally considers changes in

the operating environment competitive position market trends operating

performance quoted market prices for our equity securities and fair value

models and research prepared by independent analysts and if necessary

discounted cash flows If the carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds its

fair value we would perform second test and if necessary reduce the

reporting units goodwill to its implied fair value The second step requires

us to allocate the fair value of the reporting unit derived in the first step to

the fair value of the reporting units net assets with any fair value in excess

of amounts allocated to such net assets representing the implied fair value

of goodwill for that reporting unit

During the second quarter of fiscal
year 2009 there was significant

deterioration in general economic conditions and in the market value of our

stock The resulting decline in our market capitalization prompted us to

conduct goodwill analysis
to determine if an impairment of goodwill

existed as of December 27 2008 Our analysis evaluated the estimated fair

value of each reporting unit relative to the net book value We prepared

discounted cash flow model to estimate fair value which validated the

reasonableness of the estimated market value plus control premium As

result of this analysis no impairment was recorded as of December 27 2008

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2009 economic events and circumstances

indicated that it was necessary to perform an additional assessment of our

goodwill As part of our assessment we prepared discounted cash flow

analysis to determine the fair value of each reporting unit

Determining reporting units discounted cash flows requires significant

management judgment with respect to sales gross margin and selling

general and administrative SGA expense rates capital expenditures and

the selection and use of an appropriate discount rate The projected sales

gross margin and SGA expense rate assumptions and
capital expenditures

are based on our annual business plan and other forecasted results Discount

rates reflect market-based weighted average cost of
capital taking into

consideration the risks associated with the projected cash flows directly

resulting
from the use of those assets in operations The estimated fair value

of reporting units are based on the best information available as of the date

of the assessment The use of different assumptions could increase or

decrease the estimated future discounted operating cash flows and there

fore could increase or decrease
any impairment charge As identified in

Note the terminal growth rate we used in our discounted cash flow model

was 2.5%-3.0% While we do not believe historical operating results are

necessarily indicative of future operating results we believe our assumptions

are reasonable when compared to our historical 10
year compound annual

growth rate in operating cash flow of 3.3% After completing the assessment

we determined that the carrying value of our U.S Rental and Direct Sales

reporting units exceeded the fair value and an impairment charge of

$107.0 million was recorded

We performed our annual goodwill impairment test as of June 27 2009 and

determined that no further impairment of goodwill occurred in fiscal
year

2009 There were no impairments of goodwill in fiscal 2010 or 2008

Future events could cause management to conclude that impairment

indicators exist and that goodwill and other intangibles associated with

acquired businesses are impaired Any resulting impairment loss could have

material impact on our financial condition and results of operations



For additional information see Note Goodwill and Other Impairment

Charges

Retirement Plan Assets

Retirement plan assets consist primarily of mutual funds and cash equiva

lents which are stated at their fair value as determined by quoted market

prices and the cash surrender values of life insurance policies

Foreign Currency

For all
significant foreign operations the functional currency is the local

currency Assets and liabilities of these operations are translated at the

period-end exchange rates Income statement accounts are translated using

the average exchange rates prevailing during the year Translation adjust

ments are reflected within Accumulated other comprehensive income

loss in stockholders equity Gains and losses from foreign currency

transactions are included in net earnings for the period and were not

material in fiscal 2010 2009 or 2008

Revenue Recognition

Our rental operations business is
largely

based on written service agreements

whereby we agree to pick-up soiled merchandise launder and then deliver

clean uniforms and other related products The service agreements generally

provide for weekly billing upon completion of the laundering process and

delivery to the customer Accordingly we recognize revenue from rental

operations in the period in which the services are provided Revenue from

rental operations also includes billings to customers for lost or damaged

uniforms and replacement fees for non-personalized merchandise that is lost

or damaged Direct sale revenue is recognized in the period in which the

product is shipped Total revenues do not include sales tax as we consider

ourselves pass-through conduit for collecting and remitting sales taxes

We changed our business
practices regarding the replacement of certain in-

service towel and linen inventory and accordingly during the fourth quarter

of fiscal year 2010 we modified our revenue recognition policy
related to

the associated replacement fees This revenue which has historically been

deferred and recognized over the estimated useful life of the associated in-

service inventory is now recognized upon billing
The effect of this change

was to increase revenue and income from operations by $6.7 million net

income by $4.2 million basic and diluted earnings per common share by

$0.23 in fiscal year 2010

Insurance

We
carry large deductible insurance

policies
for certain obligations related to

health workers compensation and auto and general liability programs

These deductibles range from $0.4 million to $0.8 million Estimates are

used in determining the potential liability associated with reported claims

and for losses that have occurred but have not been reported Management

estimates generally consider historical claims experience escalating medical

cost trends expected timing of claim payments and actuarial analyses

provided by third parties Changes in the cost of medical care our ability to

settle claims and the present value estimates and judgments used by

management could have material impact on the amount and timing of

expense for any period

Income Taxes

Provisions for federal state and foreign income taxes are calculated based

on reported pre-tax earnings and current tax law
Significant judgment is

required in determining income tax provisions and evaluating tax positions

We
periodically assess our liabilities and contingencies for all periods that

are currently open to examination or have not been effectively settled based

on the most current available information When it is not more likely
than

not that our tax position will be sustained we record our best estimate of

the resulting tax liability
and any applicable interest and penalties in the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for temporary differences

between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in

the financial statements using statutory rates in effect for the year in which

the differences are expected to reverse We present the tax effects of these

deferred tax assets and liabilities separately for each major tax jurisdiction

The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is

recognized in the results of operations in the period that the changes are

enacted We record valuation allowances to reduce deferred tax assets when

it is more likely than not that some portion of the asset may not be realized

We evaluate our deferred tax assets and liabilities on periodic basis We

believe that we have adequately provided for our future tax obligations

based upon current facts circumstances and tax law

Per Share Data

Basic earnings per common share was computed by dividing net income by

the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding

during the year Diluted earnings per common share was computed similarly

to the computation of basic earnings per share except that the denominator

is increased for the assumed exercise of dilutive options and other dilutive

securities including non-vested restricted stock using the treasury stock

method

For the Fiscal Years Ended 2010 2009 2008

In thousands

Weighted average
number of common shares

outstanding used in computation of basic earnings

per
share 18299 18389 20138

Weighted average
effect of non-vested restricted stock

grants
and assumed exercise of options 49 139

Shares used in computation of diluted earnings per

share 18348 18389 20277

Potential common shares of 1486000 1840000 and 1126000 related to

our outstanding stock options and restricted stock grants were excluded from

the computation of diluted earnings per share for fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively as inclusion of these shares would have been anti-

dilutive

Derivative Financial Instruments

All derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value and are

recorded in the Other current assets or Accrued expenses line items in

the Consolidated Balance Sheets The accounting for changes in the fair

value of derivative financial instrument depends on whether it has been

designated and qualifies as hedging relationship and on the type of the

hedging relationship For those derivative financial instruments that are

designated and qualify as hedging instruments we designate the hedging

instrument based on the exposure being hedged as cash flow hedges We
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do not have any derivative financial instruments that have been designated

as either fair value hedge or hedge of net investment in foreign

operation Cash flows associated with derivative financial instruments are

classified in the same category as the cash flows hedged in the Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows

In the ordinary course of business we are exposed to market risks We utilize

derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk and commodity

price
risk and

periodically foreign exchange risk Interest rate swap contracts

are entered into to manage interest rate risk associated with our fixed and

variable rate debt Futures contracts on energy commodities are entered into

to manage the price risk associated with forecasted purchases of gasoline

and diesel fuel used in our rental operations Forward exchange contracts on

foreign currencies are
periodically

entered into to manage the foreign

currency exchange risk associated with firm commitments denominated in

foreign currencies We designate interest rate swap contracts as cash flow

hedges of the interest expense related to variable rate debt and futures

contracts on energy commodities as cash flow hedges of forecasted

purchases of gasoline and diesel fuel

For derivative financial instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash

flow hedges the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative

financial instrument is reported as component of Accumulated other

comprehensive income and reclassified into the Consolidated Statements of

Operations in the same line item associated with the forecasted transaction

and in the same period as the expenses from the cash flows of the hedged

items are recognized We perform an assessment at the inception of the

hedge and on quarterly basis thereafter to determine whether our

derivatives are highly effective in
offsetting changes in the value of the

hedged items Any changes in the fair value
resulting

from hedge

ineffectiveness is immediately recognized as income or expense

We do not engage in speculative transactions or fair value hedging nor do

we hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes

Share-based Payments

We grant share-based awards including restricted stock and options to

purchase our common stock Stock option grants are for fixed number of

shares to employees and directors with an exercise price equal to the fair

value of the shares at the date of grant Share-based compensation for

awards is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations on

straight-line
basis over the

requisite
service period The amortization of

share-based compensation reflects estimated forfeitures adjusted for actual

forfeiture experience Forfeiture rates are reviewed on an annual basis As

share-based compensation expense is recognized deferred tax asset is

recorded that represents an estimate of the future tax deduction from the

exercise of stock options or release of restrictions on the restricted stock At

the time share-based awards are exercised cancelled expire or restrictions

lapse we recognize adjustments to income tax expense

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued

revised guidance regarding accounting for business combinations The

guidance retains the requirement that the
acquisition

method of accounting

previously called the purchase method be used for all business combina

tions and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination This

guidance also establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer

recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets

acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the

acquiree recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business

combination or gain from bargain purchase and determines what

information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to

evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination We

adopted this revised guidance effective at the beginning of fiscal year 2010

Our adoption did not impact our consolidated financial
position or results of

operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2010-06

Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements ASU 201 0-06 or the

ASU The ASU amends ASC 820 to require number of additional disclosures

regarding fair value measurements Specifically the ASU requires entities to

disclose the following

The amounts of
significant

transfers between level and level of the

hierarchy and the reasons for the transfer

The reason for any transfer in or out of level

Information in the reconciliation of recurring level measurements about

purchases sales issuance and settlements on gross basis

Additional information about both the valuation techniques and inputs

used in estimating level and level fair value measurements

The levels within the fair value hierarchy are defined in Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

ASU 201 0-06 was effective for our third quarter ended March 27 2010 and

did not impact our financial position or results of operations

Business Combinations

We did not complete any acquisitions
associated with our rental operations

during fiscal 2009 or fiscal 2010 however we did make several small

acquisitions during fiscal 2008 The pro forma effects of these acquisitions

had they been acquired at the beginning of each fiscal year were not

material either
individually or in the aggregate The total purchase

consideration including related acquisition costs and purchase price adjust

ments from
prior year acquisitions as well as the amounts exceeding the

estimated fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as

follows

Fiscal Years 2010 2009 2008

Total purchase price and related acquisition costs $63.8

Goodwill 51.7
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Goodwill and Other Impairment Charges

The following table identifies the major components of the goodwill and

other impairment charges that are reflected in the Consolidated Statements

of Operations for fiscal
year

2009

Goodwill $107.0

Computer software 7.6

Property plant and equipment 7.2

Customer contracts 3.5

Assets held for sale 1.4

Goodwill and other impairment charges $126.7

Goodwill

During the third quarter of fiscal 2009 we recorded non-cash impairment

charge of $107.0 million related to our goodwill Of this amount $100.0 mil

lion was associated with U.S Rental operations and $7.0 million was related

to Direct Sales operations The goodwill impairment charges described above

are recorded on the Goodwill and other impairment charges line of the

Consolidated Statements of Operations

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually in our fourth quarter for

possible impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circum

stances indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwill may be impaired

During our annual test in the fourth quarter we use market valuation

approach to determine fair value for each reporting unit

In the third quarter of fiscal
year 2009 the accelerated deterioration in the

economic environment continued to negatively impact our operations The

resultant increased
disparity

between our carrying value and our market

capitalization as of our interim measurement date of January 31 2009

prompted us to perform an interim goodwill impairment test Goodwill has

been assigned to reporting units for purposes of impairment testing
and

consists of U.S Rental operations Canadian Rental operations and Direct

Sales operations The goodwill impairment test involves two-step process

The first step is comparison of each reporting units fair value to its carrying

value During the third quarter of fiscal year 2009 we engaged third party

independent valuation consulting firm to assist in determining the fair value

of each reporting unit Based on consultation with our valuation specialist

we used both market valuation and income valuation approach weighted

evenly to determine the fair values of our reporting units The income

valuation was derived by discounting future forecasted cash flows using

market based weighted average cost of capital The market valuation was

derived by referencing measure of invested capital compared to earnings

and cash flows of peer group of companies and applying the resultant

multiples to our reporting units The combination of these valuations

produced an estimated fair value that was less than the carrying amount for

the U.S Rental and Direct Sales reporting units The fair value of our

Canadian Rental reporting unit exceeded its carrying amount by more than

20% Since the carrying value of the U.S reporting unit and the Direct Sales

reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value in the first step second

step was performed in which the reporting units goodwill was written

down to its implied fair value In the second step we are required to allocate

the fair value of the reporting unit derived in the first step to the fair value

of the reporting units net assets The second step also requires among other

things us to determine the estimated fair market value of our tangible and

intangible assets Any fair value in excess of amounts allocated to such net

assets represents the implied fair value of goodwill for that reporting unit
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The goodwill impairment testing process is subject to inherent uncertainties

and subjectivity The fiscal year 2009 determination of the fair value required

significant management judgment with respect to various assumptions

including revenue volume gross margins selling general and administrative

SGA expense rates capital expenditures discount rates terminal growth

rates and the fair values of each reporting units tangible and intangible

assets and liabilities The projected revenue levels gross margins SGA rate

and capital expenditure assumptions in fiscal year 2009 were based on the

annual business plan or other forecasted results Discount rates reflected our

estimate of market-based weighted average cost of capital which took

into consideration the risks associated with the projected cash flows that

resulted directly from the use of those assets in operations The estimated

fair value of each reporting unit was based on the best information available

as of the date of our assessment in fiscal year 2009 The use of different

assumptions would have increased or decreased the estimated fair value and

could have materially increased or decreased the impairment charge The

discount rates that were used in step one and step two ranged from 9.7%-

11.7% and included certain risk premiums Our forecasted future cash flows

considered both current and future economic conditions and terminal

growth rate of 2.5%-3.0% If we had changed the discount rate by 50 basis

points we would have increased or decreased the calculated fair values of

the U.S Rental Canadian Rental and Direct Sales reporting units by

approximately $45 million $10 million and $1 million respectively If the

terminal growth rate had changed by 50 basis points it would have

increased or decreased the calculated fair values of the U.S Rental Canadian

Rental and Direct Sales reporting units by approximately $25 million

$5 million and $0 respectively If the fair values of the net assets of the

impaired reporting units had increased or decreased by 5% compared to the

values that were used in the preparation of the June 27 2009 financial

statements the goodwill impairment charge would have increased or

decreased related to the U.S Rental and Direct Sales reporting units by

approximately $20 million and $0 respectively

As of July 2010 the date of our most recent impairment test the fair

value exceeded the carrying value of our goodwill related to both our

U.S reporting unit and Canadian reporting unit by over 10% All goodwill

associated with our Direct Sales reporting unit had been previously written

off

Long-Lived Assets

Asset impairment charges in fiscal 2009 include $7.2 million related to

properties held and used $1.4 million related to properties held for sale

$7.6 million related to computer software and $3.5 million related to

customer contracts associated with our Direct Sales reporting unit

Long-lived assets held for use are reviewed for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets

may not be recoverable In the third quarter of fiscal year 2009 as result of

the continued and accelerated deterioration in the economic environment

and expectations regarding future operating performance management

took series of actions to increase profitability
and productivity Due to

combination of these factors and actions we determined that the carrying

value of certain assets held and used exceeded their fair value Determina

tion of the
recoverability

of long-lived assets is based on an estimate of

undiscounted future cash flows
resulting

from the use of those assets in

operation Measurement of an impairment loss for long-lived assets that we

expect to hold and use is based on the fair value of the asset When an

impairment loss is recognized the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to

its estimated fair value As result of our projected undiscounted future cash

flows related to certain locations being less than the carrying value of those



assets an impairment charge of $7.2 million was required The fair values of

these asset groups were determined based on prices of similar assets

In fiscal 2009 we made the decision to close and sell certain under-

performing production facilities In connection with this decision and the

plan to dispose of these asset groups we recorded an impairment charge of

$1.4 million The fair values of the asset groups to be disposed of were

determined based on prices of similar assets

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2009 due to the continued and accelerated

deterioration in the economic environment and expectations regarding

future operating performance we tested our Direct Sales reporting units

long-lived assets for impairment It was determined that the carrying value

of certain computer software and customer contracts exceeded their associ

ated fair values by approximately $7.6 million and $3.5 million respectively

The estimated fair values were determined based on discounted future cash

flows

In fiscal year 2010 we reviewed our long-lived assets for impairment and

determined that no indicators of impairment were present therefore no

impairment charge was recorded in fiscal year 2010

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill includes the following

United States canada Total

Balance as of June 28 2008 367.5 67.4 434.9

Impairment charges 107.0 107.0

Foreign currency
translation and other 0.3 7.7 8.0

Balance as of June 27 2009 260.2 59.7 319.9

Acquisitions net of purchase accounting

adjustments 0.2 0.2

Divestitures 0.5 1.0 1.5

Foreign currency
translation and other 0.2 4.7 4.5

Balance as of
July 2010 $259.7 $63.4 $323.1

Our intangible assets which are included in Other assets on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet are as follows

July June 27

2010 2009

Customercontracts $114.0 $113.8

Accumulated amortization 91.7 850

Net 22.3 28.8

Non-competition agreements 11.1 11.0

Accumulated amortization 10.8 10.3

Net 0.3 0.7

The customer contracts include the combined value of the written service

agreements and the related customer relationship Intangible assets are

amortized over weighted average life of approximately 11 years

Amortization expense was $6.2 million $7.2 million and $11.1 million for

fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Estimated amortization expense for

each of the next five fiscal years based on the intangible assets as of
July

2010 is as follows

2011 $5.8

2012 5.2

2013 4.1

2014 2.9

2015 2.0

Long-Term Debt

Debt as of
July

2010 and June 27 2009 includes the following

2010 2009

Borrowings under unsecured revolving credit facility 64.5 $142.0

Borrowings under unsecured variable rate notes 75.0 75.0

Borrowings under secured variable rate loans 20.0

Borrowings under unsecured fixed rate notes 14.3

Other debt arrangements including capital leases 1.9 1.2

161.4 232.5

Less current maturities 1.0 7.7

Total long-term debt $160.4 $224.8

On
July 2009 we completed new $300.0 million three-year unsecured

revolving credit
facility

with syndicate of banks which expires on
July

2012 This facility replaced our $325.0 million unsecured revolving credit

facility
which was scheduled to mature in August 2010 Borrowings in

U.S dollars under the new credit facility will at our election bear interest at

the adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR for
specified

interest periods plus margin which can range from 2.25% to 3.25%

determined with reference to our consolidated leverage ratio or floating

rate equal to the greatest of JPMorgans prime rate ii the federal funds

rate pIus 0.50% and iii the adjusted LIBOR for one month interest period

plus 1.00% pIus in each case margin determined with reference to our

consolidated leverage ratio Swingline loans will at our election bear

interest at the rate described in clause above or ii rate to be agreed

upon by us and JPMorgan Borrowings in Canadian dollars under the credit

facility
will bear interest at the greater of the Canadian Prime Rate and

the Adjusted LIBOR for one month interest period on such day or if

such day is not business day the immediately preceding business day plus

1.00%

As of
July 2010 borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit

facility

were $64.5 million The unused portion of the revolver may be used for

general corporate purposes acquisitions share repurchases working capital

needs and to provide up to $50.0 million in letters of credit As of
July

2010 letters of credit outstanding against the revolver totaled $23.6 million

and primarily relate to our property and casualty insurance programs No

amounts have been drawn upon these letters of credit
Availability

of credit

under this new facility requires that we maintain compliance with certain

covenants In addition there are certain restricted payment limitations on

dividends or other distributions including share repurchases The covenants

under this agreement are the most restrictive when compared to our other
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credit facilities The following table illustrates compliance with regard to the

material covenants required by the terms of this
facility as of

July 32010

Required
Actual

Covenant Covenant

Amount Amount

Maximum Leverage Ratio Oebt/EBITDA 3.50 1.77

Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio EBITDA/Interest Expense 3.00 7.53

Minimum Net Worth $315.9 $466.9

Our maximum leverage ratio and minimum interest coverage ratio covenants

are calculated by adding back non-cash charges as defined in our debt

agreement

Advances outstanding as of
July 32010 bear interest at weighted average

all-in rate of 3.03% LIBOR plus 2.50% for the Eurocurrency rate loans and

an all-in rate of 3.25% Lender Prime Rate for overnight Swingline Base

Rate loans We also pay fee on the unused daily
balance of the revolving

credit
facility

based on leverage ratio calculated on quarterly basis At

July 2010 this fee was 0.3% of the unused daily
balance

We have $75.0 million of variable rate unsecured private placement notes

The notes bear interest at 0.60% over LIBOR and are scheduled to mature on

June 30 2015 The notes do not require principal payments until maturity

Interest payments are reset and paid on quarterly basis As of July 2010

the outstanding balance of the notes was $75.0 million at an all-in rate of

1.13% LIBOR plus 0.60%

We maintain an accounts receivable securitization
facility whereby the

lender will make loans to us on revolving basis The original amount of

credit available to us under this
facility was $50.0 million Effective

July

2010 we voluntarily reduced the loan agreements facility limit to $40.0 mil

lion All of the terms of the
facility agreement remain unchanged The

amount of funds available under the loan agreement as of July 2010 was

$37.9 million which was the amount of
eligible

receivables as of the
prior

month end less calculated reserve requirement The agreement will expire

on September 26 2012

We are required to pay interest on outstanding loan balances at an annual

rate of one month LIBOR plus margin or if the lender is funding the loan

through the issuance of commercial paper to third parties at an annual rate

equal to the commercial paper rate plus margin In connection with the

loan agreement we granted first priority security interest in certain of our

U.S.-based receivables As of July 2010 there was $20.0 million outstand

ing under this loan agreement at an all-in interest rate of 1.49% commer

cial paper pIus 1.10% We are also required to pay fee on the unused

balance of the
facility

We had $50.0 million 8.4% unsecured fixed rate private placement notes

with certain institutional investors The 10-year notes had nine-year

average
life with final maturity on July 20 2010 Beginning on July 20

2004 and annually thereafter we repaid $7.1 million of the principal

amount at par On January 20 2010 we repaid these notes prior
to their

original maturity date and incurred additional costs associated with the

prepayment of approximately $0.3 million which is included in the Selling

and administrative line of the Consolidated Statements of Operations for

fiscal year 2010

See Note of the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of our

interest rate swap and hedging activities related to our outstanding debt

The credit facilities loan agreements fixed rate notes and variable rate notes

contain various restrictive covenants that among other matters require us to

maintain minimum stockholders equity and maximum leverage ratio

These debt arrangements also contain customary representations warran

ties covenants and indemnifications At
July 2010 we were in compliance

with all debt covenants

The fair value of our long-term debt is based on the amount that would be

paid to transfer the
liability to credit-equivalent market participant at the

measurement date The fair value of the long-term debt under the

unsecured revolving credit
facility

unsecured variable rate notes and secured

variable rate loans approximates their carrying value as of July 2010 and

June 27 2009 The fair value of the unsecured fixed rate notes was zero and

$14.7 million as of July 2010 and June 27 2009 respectively

The following table summarizes payments due on long-term debt including

capital leases as of
July

2010 for the next five fiscal years and thereafter

2011 1.0

2012 65.2

2013 20.2

2014

2015 and thereafter 75.0

Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles GAAP defines fair value estab

lishes framework for measuring fair value and establishes disclosure

requirements about fair value measurements Fair value is defined as the

price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability an

exit price in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or

liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants on the

measurement date We considered non-performance risk when determining

fair value of our derivative financial instruments The fair value hierarchy

prescribed under GAAP contains three levels as follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for

the identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

Level Other observable inputs available at the measurement date other

than quoted prices included in Level either directly or indirectly including

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active markets

Inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the asset or

liability
and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other

observable market data

Level Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable

market data and reflect the use of significant management judgment These

values are generally determined using pricing models for which the

assumptions utilize managements estimates of market participant

assumptions

We have not transferred any amounts between fair value levels during fiscal

year
2010 In addition to value our level assets and liabilities we obtained

information from independent third parties for similar assets and liabilities

in active markets
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The following tables summarize the balances of assets and liabilities

measured at fair value on recurring basis as of July 2010 and June 27

2009

As of July 32010

Fair Value Measurements Using

Inputs
Considered as

Level TotalLevel

Other current assets

Derivative financial instruments

Other assets

Non-qualified non-contributory retirement plan

assets 9.6 9.6

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets 16.9 16.9

Total assets $16.9 $9.6 $26.5

Accrued expenses

Derivative financial instruments $5.2 5.2

Total liabilities $5.2 5.2

As of June 27 2009

Fair Value Measurements Using

Inputs Considered as

Level Level Total

Other current assets

Derivative financial instruments $0.3 0.3

Other assets

Non-qualified non-contributory retirement plan

assets 0.5 8.9 9.4

Non-qualified deferred
compensation plan assets 15.5 15.5

Total assets $16.0 $9.2 $25.2

Accrued
expenses

Derivative financial instruments $9.5 9.5

Total liabilities $9.5 9.5

The fair value of cash trade receivables and borrowings under the various

credit agreements approximates the amounts recorded We do not have any

level assets or liabilities

Derivative Finandal Instruments

We use interest rate swap contracts to limit exposure to changes in interest

rates and balance the total debt that is subject to variable and fixed interest

rates The interest rate swap contracts we utilize effectively modify our

exposure to interest rate risk by converting variable rate debt to fixed rate

without an exchange of the underlying principal amount Approximately

81% of our outstanding variable rate debt had its interest payments

modified using interest rate swap contracts at July 2010

In addition we purchase fuel commodity futures contracts to limit exposure

to energy prices and effectively hedge portion of our anticipated gasoline

and diesel fuel purchases The objective of these hedges is to reduce the

variability
of cash flows associated with the forecasted purchases of those

commodities without an exchange of the underlying commodity Approxi

mately 13% of our anticipated gasoline and diesel fuel purchases for the

next twelve months are hedged using futures contracts at July 2010
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We do not engage in speculative transactions or fair value hedging nor do

we hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes

The following tables summarize the classification and fair value of the

interest rate swap agreements and fuel commodity futures Contracts which

have been designated as cash flow hedging instruments

Asset Derivatives

Fair Value

July June 27

Relationship
Balance Sheet Classification 2010 2009

Interest rate swap contracts Other current assets

Fuel commodity futures contracts Other current assets 0.3

Total derivatives designated as cash

flow hedging instruments $0.3

Liability Derivatives

Fair Value

July3 June27

Relationship Balance Sheet Classification 2010 2009

Interest rate swap contracts Other accrued
expenses

$5.0 $9.3

Fuel commodity futures contracts Other accrued
expenses

0.2 0.2

Total derivatives designated as cash

flow hedging instruments $5.2 $9.5

For our interest rate swap contracts that
qualify

for cash flow hedge

designation the related gains or losses on the contracts are deferred as

component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss net of

related income taxes until the interest expense on the related debt is

recognized As the interest expense on the hedged debt is recognized the

other comprehensive income or loss is reclassified to interest expense Of the

$3.7 million net loss deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income

as of
July 2010 $2.4 million loss is expected to be reclassified to interest

expense in the next twelve months

As of
July 32010 we had interest rate swap contracts to pay fixed rates of

interest and to receive variable rates of interest based on three-month

London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR on $105.0 million notional amount

of which $20.0 million are forward
starting

interest rate swap contracts Of

the $105.0 notional amount $30.0 million matures in the next 12 months

$50.0 million matures in 13-24 months and $25.0 million matures in

25-36 months The
average rate on the $105.0 million of interest rate swap

contracts was 4.1% as of
July 32010 These interest rate swap contracts are

highly effective cash flow hedges and accordingly gains or losses on any

ineffectiveness were not material to any period

As our fuel commodity futures contracts qualify
for cash flow hedge

designation the related gains or losses on these contracts are deferred as

component of other comprehensive income or loss net of related income

taxes until the expense is recognized on the hedged commodity Upon

purchase of the hedged commodity the other comprehensive income or loss

is reclassified to Cost of rental operations line item in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations The $0.1 million loss deferred in other compre

hensive income as of July 32010 is expected to be reclassified to cost of

rental operations in the next twelve months

As of
July 2010 we had fuel commodity futures contracts to pay

fixed

prices of unleaded gasoline and diesel fuel and receive variable prices based

on the Department of Energy DOE index on 0.6 million gallons all of which

will occur in the next twelve months The weighted average fixed price on



the 0.6 million gallons of fuel commodity futures contracts was $3.06 per

gallon as of July 2010 These commodity contracts have been designated

as highly effective cash flow hedges and accordingly gains or losses on any

ineffectiveness was not material to any period

The following tables summarize the amount of gain or loss recognized in

accumulated other comprehensive income or loss and the classification and

amount of gains or losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehen

sive income or loss into the Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal

years 2010 2009 and 2008 related to derivative financial instruments used

in cash flow hedging relationships

Amount of Gain or

Loss Recognized
in

Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Income Loss

For the Fiscal Years

Relationship 2010 2009 2008

Interest rate swap contracts $2.3 $6.4 $1.8

Fuel commodity futures contracts 0.2 19 1.9

Total derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments $2.5 $8.3 0.1

Amount of Gain or Loss

Reclassified From

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income

Loss to Consolidated

Statements of
Operations

Statement of Operations
For the Fiscal Years

Relationship
Classification 2010 2009 2008

Interest rate swap

contracts Interest expense $3.6 $2.2

Interest rate swap

contracts Selling and Administrative 0.1

Fuel commodity futures

contracts Cost of rental operations 0.8 0.8

Total derivatives

designated as cash flow

hedging instruments $3.7 $3.0 $0.8

The following table summarizes the amount of gain or loss recognized in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008

related to derivative financial instruments not designated as hedging

instruments

2010 we took number of actions to adjust our business operations as

result of the changes in the economic environment The most
significant

of

these actions are discussed below

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2009 we closed three processing plants

two branch locations reduced selected headcount and outsourced our fleet

maintenance function As result of these actions we recorded approxi

mately $2.6 million of expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

during the quarter These charges principally impacted our United States

operating segment Of these amounts approximately $1.0 million was

recorded in the Cost of rental operations line item and the remaining

$1.6 million was recorded in the Selling and administrative line item All

severance associated with this action has been paid

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2009 we restructured our workforce to

better
align our cost structure with our revenue levels As result of this

action we recorded approximately $0.9 million in severance costs in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations These charges impacted both our

United States and Canadian operating segments and did not significantly

impact any one line item on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

Substantially all severance costs related to these actions have been paid

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2010 we continued to align our

workforce and cost structure to better match our revenue levels As result

we reduced selected administrative regional and corporate headcount

divested an unprofitable operation and recorded approximately $1.4 million

in associated severance costs in the Selling and administrative line item Of

the $1.4 million in severance $1.3 million was paid by July 32010 with the

remaining $0.1 million to be paid by October 31 2010 These actions

primarily impacted our United States operating segment

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2010 we sold all of the customer lists

and certain assets related to our U.S Cleanroom operations In addition we

disposed of non-core linen operation at one of our production facilities As

result of these transactions including the associated asset impairment

charges we recognized net gain of $1.2 million in the Selling and

administrative line in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2010 we sold portion of the customer list

and certain assets related to non-core linen operation and refined our

estimates related to the disposition of our Cleanroom operations As result

of these transactions including the associated impairment charges we

recognized net gain of $2.5 million in the Selling and administrative line

in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Amount of Gain or Loss

Recognized in Consolidated

Statements of Operations

Statement of Operations
For the Fiscal Years

Relationship Classification 2010 2009 2008

Interest rate swap

contracts Selling and Administrative $0.3

Exit Disposal and Related Activities

We continuously monitor our operations and related cost structure to ensure

that our resource levels are appropriate and from time to time take various

actions to ensure that these resources are utilized in the most efficient

manner These actions may consist of
facility closures divestitures expan

sions and increases or decreases in
staffing

levels During fiscal 2009 and
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Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income for fiscal years 2010 2009 and

2008 are as follows

For the Fiscal Years

2010 2009 2008

Net incomeloss $28.6 72.5 $46.1

Other comprehensive income/loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments 9.2 18.7 74

Pension benefit liabilities net of tax

$5.4 million $5.4 million and

$0.1 million respectively 8.4 8.7 0.1

Derivative financial instruments gain or

loss recognized net of tax

$1.5 million $5.O million and

$0.1 million respectively 2.5 8.3 0.1

Derivative financial instruments
gain or

loss reclassified net of tax $2.3 million

$1.8 million and $0.5 million

respectively 3.7 3.0 0.8

Total other comprehensive income/loss 2.0 32.7 6.8

Total comprehensive incomeloss $30.6 $105.2 $52.9

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax

are as follows

For the Fiscal Years

2010 2009 2008

Foreign currency translation 25.2 $16.0 $34.7

Pension benefit liabilities 16.8 8.4 0.3

Derivative financial instruments 3.8 5.0 0.3

Accumulated other comprehensive income 4.6 2.6 $35.3

10 Stockholders Equity

We issue Class shares of our stock and each share is entitled to one vote

and is
freely transferable

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 our Board of Directors authorized the

expansion of our share repurchase program from $100.0 million to

$175.0 million which increases the share repurchase program previously

approved by our Board of Directors in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 We

may repurchase shares from time to time in the open market privately

negotiated or other transactions in accordance with applicable federal

securities laws The timing and the amount of the repurchases will be

determined by us based on our evaluation of market conditions share price

and other factors Under the program we did not repurchase any shares in

fiscal 2010 In fiscal 2009 we repurchased 650387 shares for $16.1 million

and in fiscal 2008 we repurchased 2469682 shares for $92.1 million Cash

spent on the repurchase of shares totaled $16.1 million during fiscal 2009

and $93.1 million during fiscal 2008 The amount of cash expended for fiscal

2008 includes $1.0 million for shares purchased on June 29 2007 but due to

timing the $1.0 million cash payment was made on July
2007 At the end
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of fiscal 2010 we had approximately $57.9 million remaining under this

authorization

We issue restricted stock units as part of our equity incentive plans For the

majority of the restricted stock units granted the number of shares issued

on the vesting date is net of the minimum statutory tax withholding

requirements that we pay in cash to the appropriate taxing authorities on

behalf of our employees Although shares withheld are not issued they are

treated as common stock repurchases in our financial statements as they

reduce the number of shares that would have been issued upon vesting

Share-Based Payment Plans

On November 16 2006 our shareholders approved the 2006 Equity Incentive

Plan the 2006 plan Under the 2006 plan maximum of 2000000

equity awards can be granted Only 667000 of the awards granted under

the 2006 plan can be stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted

stock units deferred stock units or stock As of
July 2010 541196 equity

awards were available for grant The only plan available to grant equity

compensation as of July 2010 is the 2006 plan Shares that were available

but not granted under all previous plans have been deauthorized and

therefore no additional shares remain available for grant

The 2006 plan provides for certain stock awards including stock options at

fair market value and non-vested restricted shares to our key employees

and non-employee directors Exercise periods for the stock options are

generally limited to maximum of 10 years and minimum of one year

Stock options issued to employees generally vest over three years while

restricted stock grants to employees generally vest over five years

Compensation cost for share-based compensation plans is recognized on

straight-line basis over the
requisite

service period of the award or to an

employees eligible
retirement date if earlier The amount of compensation

cost that has been recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

was $4.5 million $7.1 million and $5.9 million for fiscal years 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively The total income tax benefit recognized in the

income statement for share-based compensation arrangements was $1.5 mil

lion $2.7 million and $2.2 million for fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively No amount of share-based compensation expense was capital

ized during the periods presented

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant

using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model using the assumptions noted in

the following table Expected volatility is based on the historic volatility of

our stock We use historical data to estimate option exercises and employee

terminations within the valuation model The expected term of the options

granted is derived from historical data and represents the period of time that

options granted are expected to be outstanding The risk free interest rate

for each option is the interpolated market yield on U.S Treasury bill with

term comparable to the expected option term of the granted stock option

For the Fiscal Years

2010 2009 2008

Expected share
price volatility 21.34% 23.1 2% 20.8%-31.2% 19.5% 23.5%

Weighted average volatility 21.67% 23.2% 22.5%

Expected annual dividend
per

share $0.30 $0.28 $0.20

Expected term in years 5-6 5-6 5-6

Risk free rate 1.95%- 3.01% 1.5% 3.3% 2.5% 4.4%



summary
of stock option activity

under our plans as of
July 32010 and

changes during the year then ended is presented below

Weighted

Average

Weighted Remaining

Average Contractual Aggregate

Exercise Term Intrinsic

Shares Prices in years Value

Outstanding at June 27 2009 1804718 $35.50

Granted 172886 22.79

Exercised 15634 24.89

Forfeited or expired 480893 35.44

Outstanding at July 2010 1481077 $34.13 5.84 $0.0

Exercisable at July 2010 1018296 $35.29 5.07 $0.0

The weighted-average fair value of stock options on the date of grant during

the fiscal years ended 2010 2009 and 2008 was $4.82 $7.69 and $10.64

respectively The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was less than

$0.1 million for fiscal years 2010 and 2009 and $0.8 million for fiscal year

2008 As of
July 2010 there was $1.6 million of total unrecognized

compensation expense related to non-vested share-based compensation

arrangements granted under our stock option plan

We received total cash as result of the exercise of stock options in fiscal

years 2010 2009 and 2008 of $0.3 million $0.2 million and $4.2 million

respectively

summary of the status of our non-vested shares of restricted stock as of

July
2010 and changes during the year ended

July 2010 is presented

below

Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Non-vested at June 27 2009 269803 $35.44

Granted 116065 22.30

Vested 67543 36.68

Forfeited 44238 33.13

Non-vested at July 2010 274087 $30.09

As of
July 32010 there was $6.1 million of total unrecognized compensa

tion expense related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements

granted under our restricted stock plan That expense is expected to be

recognized over weighted-average period of 3.5 years The total fair value

of shares vested during the fiscal years ended 2010 2009 and 2008 was

$2.5 million $3.1 million and $1.7 million respectively

Fiscal Years 2010 2009 2008

Current

Federal 5.2 8.3 $10.2

State and local 1.5 1.6 2.7

Foreign 5.2 6.4 9.5

11.9 16.3 22.4

Deferred 5.3 33.9 6.5

Provision/Benefit for Income Taxes $17.2 $17.6 $28.9

The following table reconciles the United States statutory income tax rate

with our effective income tax rate

Fiscal Years 2010 2009 2008

United States
statutory

rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State taxes net of federal tax benefit 2.3% 0.9% 1.9%

Foreign earnings
taxed at different rates 3.8% 1.9% 0.5%

Change in tax
contingency reserve 0.6% 0.6% 0.9%

Goodwill impairment 15.8%

Non-deductible fines and
penalties 1.8%

Share-based compensation 2.9% .4% 0.2%

Permanent differences and other net 0.5% 0.1% 1.0%

Effective income tax rate 7.5% 19.5% 38.5%

The change in the tax contingency reserve in 2010 and 2008 was the result

of the expiration of certain statutes offset by reserve additions during the

year The change in the tax contingency reserve in 2009 was the result of

the expiration of certain statutes and the favorable resolution of other tax

matters The negative 15.8% impact on the effective tax rate in 2009 is

due to the impact of the non-deductible goodwill impairment charges

recorded in fiscal year 2009

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets

and liabilities are as follows

2010 2009

Deferred tax liabilities

Inventory $17.5 $16.9

Depreciation 8.9 12.5

Intangibles 25.0 18.5

Total deferred tax liabilities 51.4 47.9

Deferred tax assets

Accruals and reserves 43.1 40.5

Share-based payments 5.0 6.5

Derivative financial instruments 2.4 3.0

Other 1.4 1.1

Gross deferred tax assets 51.9 51.1

Less valuation allowance 0.4

Total deferred tax assets 51.5 51.1

Net deferred tax assets 0.1 $3.2

11 Income Taxes

The components of the provision/benefit for income taxes are as follows
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Net deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented in the Consolidated

Balance Sheet separately for each major tax jurisdiction The net deferred

tax assets and liabilities are presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

as follows

2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Other current assets $2.0 $4.1

Other principally retirement plan assets 2.9 4.4

Net deferred tax assets 4.9 8.5

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income taxes current 3.6 3.4

Deferred income taxes noncurrent 1.2 1.9

Net deferred tax liabilities 4.8 5.3

Net deferred tax assets $0.1 $3.2

We recognize valuation allowance if based on the weight of available

evidence it is more likely than not that some portion or all of deferred

tax asset will not be realized During the fiscal year ended July 2010 we

established $0.4 million valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

related to foreign net operating loss carry-forwards which totaled

$2.8 million

We have no foreign tax credit carry-forwards as of July 2010

We have not provided U.S income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on

undistributed earnings from our foreign subsidiaries of approximately

$59.1 million as of both July 2010 and June 27 2009 These earnings

are considered to be
indefinitely

reinvested in the operations of such

subsidiaries

We continue to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax

positions as component of income tax expense Net tax-related interest

and penalties were immaterial for the
years reported As of July 2010

and June 27 2009 we had $1.8 million and $2.1 million respectively of

accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions of which

$1.2 million and $1.2 million would favorably affect our effective tax rate

in any future periods if recognized

We file income tax returns in the United States Canada and multiple state

jurisdictions We have substantially concluded on all U.S Federal and

Canadian income tax examinations through fiscal years 2006 and 2005

respectively With few exceptions we are no longer subject to state and

local income tax examinations
prior

to fiscal year 2006

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax

benefits is as follows

Fiscal Year 2010 Fiscal Year 2009

Beginning balance $14.3 $15.4

Tax positions related to current year

Gross increase 2.0 2.9

Gross decrease

Tax positions related to prior years

Gross increase 0.8 0.5

Gross decrease 0.1 0.4

Settlements 0.9

Lapses in statutes of limitations 4.2 3.2

Ending
balance $12.8 $14.3

As of July 2010 and June 27 2009 the total amount of unrecognized tax

benefits was $12.8 million and $14.3 million respectively of which

$4.5 million and $4.0 million would favorably affect the effective tax rate

if recognized We are not aware of any tax positions for which it is

reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits

will
significantly change in the next 12 months

12 Employee Benefit Plans

Pension Plan and Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

We have noncontributory defined benefit pension plan the Pension

Plan covering substantially all employees except certain employees who

are covered by union-administered plans Benefits are based on the

number of years of service and each employees compensation near

retirement We make annual contributions to the Pension Plan consistent

with federal funding requirements

Annual benefits under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

SERP are based on years
of service and individual compensation near

retirement We have purchased life insurance contracts and other invest

ments that could be used to fund the retirement benefits under this plan

The value of these insurance contracts and investments as of July 2010

and June 27 2009 were $9.6 million and $9.4 million respectively

We froze our Pension Plan and SERP effective January 2007 Future

growth in benefits has not occurred beyond December 31 2006

Applicable accounting standards require that the Consolidated Balance

Sheet reflect the funded status of the pension and postretirement plans

The funded status of the plan is measured as the difference between the

plan assets at fair value and the projected benefit obligation We have

recognized the aggregate of all under-funded plans within other noncur

rent liabilities The portion of the amount by which the actuarial present

value of benefits included in the projected benefit obligation exceeds the

fair value of plan assets payable in the next 12 months is reflected in

accrued liabilities The measurement date of the plan assets coincides with

our fiscal year end The fair value of the plan assets is determined by
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reference to unadjusted quoted market prices that are available in active amounts and estimates based on actuarial assumptions will be recognized

markets for the identical assets at the measurement date in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur

Unrecognized differences between actual amounts and estimates based on The estimated amortization from accumulated other comprehensive

actuarial assumptions are included in Accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost during fiscal year 2011 is $2.0 million

income in our Consolidated Balance Sheet The difference between actual which is related primarily to net actuarial losses

Obligations and Funded Status at July 2010 and June 27 2009

Pension Plan SERP

2010 2009 2010 2009

Change in benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation beginning of
year

52.3 47.0 10.8 10.5

Service cost

Interest cost 3.5 3.3 0.7 0.7

Actuarial loss 13.0 3.4 2.3 0.1

Benefits paid 1.9 1.4 0.5 0.5

Projected benefit obligation end of
year

66.9 52.3 13.3 10.8

Change in plan assets

Fair value of
plan assets beginning

of
year

36.9 44.2

Actual return on plan assets
3.6 6.9

Employer contributions 1.2 1.0 0.6 0.5

Benefits
paid

1.9 1.4 0.6 0.5

Fair value of
plan assets end of

year
39.8 36.9

Funded status-net amount recognized $27.1 $15.4 $13.3 $10.8

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of

Pension Plan SERP

2010 2009 2010 2009

Accrued benefit
liability

$27.1 $15.4 $13.3 $10.8

Net amount recognized
$27.1 $15.4 $13.3 $10.8

Pension Plan SERP

2010 2009 2010 2009

Accumulated other comprehensive loss related to

unrecognized net actuarial losses $11.4 $13.8 $2.3 $0.2

The projected benefit obligation accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation

in excess of plan assets were $66.9 million $66.9 million and $39.8 million respectively as of July 2010 and $52.3 million $52.3 million and

$36.9 million respectively as of June 27 2009 No pension plans had plan assets in excess of accumulated benefit obligations at July 2010 or June 27

2009

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Pension Plan SERP

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Service cost

Interest cost 3.5 3.3 3.2 0.7 0.7 0.7

Expected return on assets 3.0 3.5 3.7

Amortization of net loss 1.0

Net periodic benefit cost income 1.5 $0.2 $0.5 $0.7 $0.7 $0.7
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Assumptions

The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine

benefit obligations for the plans at July 2010 and June 27 2009

Pension Plan SERP

2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.60% 6.90% 5.50% 6.90%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A

The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine net

periodic benefit cost for the plans for the years ended July 2010 and

June 27 2009

Pension Plan SERP

2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 6.90% 7.20% 6.90% 7.05%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00 8.00 N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A

We have committee which assisted by outside consultants evaluates the

objectives and investment
policies concerning its long-term investment

goals and asset allocation strategies Plan assets are invested in various

asset classes that are expected to produce sufficient level of diversifica

tion and investment return over the long term To develop the expected

long-term rate of return on asset assumptions we consider the historical

returns and the future expectations of returns for each asset class as well

as the target asset allocation of the pension portfolio This resulted in the

selection of 7.75% and 8.00% expected return on plan assets for fiscal

2011 and 2010 respectively As part of our assessment of the expected

return on plan assets we considered the recent decline in the global equity

markets and concluded that these rates are appropriate

Future changes in plan asset returns assumed discount rates and various

other factors related to the participants in our pension plan will impact our

future pension expense and liabilities We cannot predict with certainty

what these factors will be in the future

Additional Information

The asset allocations in the pension plan at July 2010 and June 27 2009

are as follows

Target Asset Actual Asset

Allocations Allocations

2010 2010 2009

International
equity 18% 10.7% 12.1%

Large cap equity 20 40 28.1 29.9

Small
cap equity 13 7.3 7.4

Absolute Return
Strategy funds 10 20 15.5 16.4

Fixed income 20 30 28.2 34.2

Long/short equity
fund 5-15 10.2

Total 100% 100% 100%

The asset allocation strategy for 2010 targets 20%-30% in high-quality

fixed income instruments with the balance of the
portfolio to be invested

in diversified and complimentary portfolio of equity vehicles The
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objective is to achieve long-term rate of return of 7.0%-9.5% In

determining investment options all classes or categories of investments

allowed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA

are acceptable investment choices As directed by ERISA no single

investment will comprise more than 10% of assets except for certain

government backed securities

Pension assets consist primarily of listed common stocks and U.S govern

ment and corporate obligations We expect to contribute $2.5 million to

our pension plan and $0.6 million to the SERP in fiscal year 2011

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service as

appropriate are expected to be paid

Pension Plan SERP

2011 1.6 $0.6

2012 1.8 0.7

2013 1.9 0.7

2014 2.0 0.7

2015 2.1 0.7

2016 and thereafter 13.8 3.9

Union Pension Plans

We participate in number of union sponsored collectively bargained

multi-employer pension plans Union Plans We contributed $3.1 million

$3.2 million and $2.5 million in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively to

such plans These contributions are determined in accordance with the

provisions of negotiated labor contracts and generally are based on the

number of hours worked Several factors could result in potential funding

deficiencies which could cause us to make
significantly higher future

contributions to these plans including unfavorable investment perfor

mance changes in demographics and increased benefits to participants

At this time we are unable to determine the amount of additional

contributions if

any

We are responsible for our proportional share of
any unfunded vested

benefits related to the Union Plans Under the applicable accounting rules

we are not required to record
liability

for our portion of the withdrawal

liability
if

any until we exit from the plan In fiscal year 2009 we exited

from one multi-employer pension plan and recorded liability of $1.0 mil

lion In fiscal year 2010 local union members at another facility voted to

leave their union which resulted in recording pension liability
of

$0.8 million There are two locations that are currently considering

whether to leave their union If the members at these locations vote to

decertify their unions the decertification will result in partial withdrawal

from their Union Plan and we will be required to record an estimated

liability up to $1.3 million If future withdrawal from plan occurs we

will record our proportional share of any unfunded vested benefits

401k Plan

All full-time non-union U.S employees are
eligible

to participate in

401k plan We match portion of the employees salary reduction

contributions and provide investment choices for the employee The

matching contributions under the 401k plan made
prior

to January



2007 vest over five-year employment period while matching contribu

tions made after that date vest immediately We incurred matching

contribution expense of $5.5 million in fiscal 2010 $7.0 million in fiscal

2009 and $7.9 million in fiscal 2008

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan DEFCO Plan we

match portion of designated employees contributions Our matching

contributions under the DEFCO Plan were $1.1 million in fiscal 2010

$1.3 million in fiscal 2009 and $1.5 million in fiscal 2008 The accumulated

benefit obligation of $16.3 million as of July 2010 and $14.9 million as

of June 27 2009 is included in Other noncurrent liabilities in the

accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets We have purchased invest

ments including stable income and stock index managed funds based on

investment elections made by the employees which may be used to fund

the retirement benefits The investments are recorded at estimated fair

value based on quoted market prices
and are included in Other assets in

the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets Offsetting unrealized gains

and losses are included in income on current basis At July 2010 and

June 27 2009 the estimated fair value of the investments was $16.3 mil

lion and $14.9 million and the cost of the investments was $17.0 million

and $17.9 million respectively

13 Commitments and Contingencies

We are involved in variety of
legal

actions
relating

to personal injury

employment environmental and other
legal

matters
arising

in the normal

course of business including without limitation those described below

Environmental Matters

We are currently involved in several environmental-related proceedings by

certain governmental agencies which relate primarily to allegedly operat

ing certain facilities in noncompliance with required permits In addition to

these proceedings in the normal course of our business we are subject to

among other things periodic inspections by regulatory agencies We

continue to dedicate substantial operational and financial resources to

environmental compliance and we remain
fully

committed to operating in

compliance with all environmental laws and regulations As of June 27

2009 and July 2010 we had reserves of approximately $4.6 million and

$3.2 million respectively related to these matters

Descriptions of certain matters are as follows

On February 19 2010 we settled the previously disclosed matter brought

against us by the Commissioner of Environmental Protection of the State

of Connecticut The aggregate settlement amount was within previously

established reserves

In August 2008 we became aware that our Des Moines Iowa facility

allegedly violated the facilitys wastewater treatment permit In addition

we became aware that this facility allegedly did not properly report its

wastewater sampling results to the City of Des Moines We promptly

brought this matter to the attention of the City of Des Moines Attorneys

office and the City of Des Moines water reclamation authority We also

immediately launched our own investigation As part of our investigation

we learned among other things that the
City

of Des Moines water

reclamation authority was aware of the situation and had referred this

matter to the U.S Environmental Protection Agency U.S EPA The

U.S EPA has also referred this matter to the U.S Attorneys office in Des

Moines Iowa We have reached settlement with the Des Moines Metropol

itan Wastewater Reclamation Authority and resolved this matter with the

city We are in the midst of resolving this matter with the U.S EPA and the

U.S Attorney

On July 24 2008 the U.S EPA inspected our facility
in South Chicago

Illinois As part of its inspections the U.S EPA identified certain alleged

deficiencies with respect to the operations at this facility including

potential recordkeeping violations and opportunities to improve the overall

environmental compliance and permitting of the facility The U.S EPA

provided written record of its inspection findings to us and identified

alleged noncompliance with certain provisions of the Resource Conserva

tion and Recovery Act The U.S EPA has subsequently visited this facility

We have responded to the U.S EPA and will continue to work cooperatively

with the U.S EPA to resolve this matter

In the summer and fall of 2008 the U.S EPA inspected our
facility

in

Manchester New Hampshire As part of its inspection the U.S EPA

identified certain alleged deficiencies with respect to the operations at this

facility including potential recordkeeping violations and opportunities to

improve the
facilitys

overall environmental compliance and permitting

The U.S EPA requested additional information regarding our Manchester

and Portsmouth New Hampshire facilities to evaluate compliance with the

Clean Air Act and applicable state and federal regulations and the U.S EPA

issued testing order at the Manchester facility
We have completed the

requested testing and submitted test report to the U.S EPA and the New

Hampshire Department of Environmental Services NHDES Subse

quently in September 2009 the U.S EPA issued Notice of Violation

alleging noncompliance with state and federal laws concerning air

emissions and permitting We will continue to work cooperatively with the

U.S EPA to resolve this matter

While we cannot predict the outcome of these matters with certainty we

currently do not expect any of these matters to have material adverse

effect on our results of operations or financial position However while we

believe the possibility
is remote there is the potential that we may

incur

additional losses in excess of established reserves and these losses could

be material

Leases

We lease certain facilities and equipment for varying periods Most
facility

leases contain renewal options from one to five years Management

expects that in the normal course of business leases will be renewed or

replaced by other leases

The following is schedule as of July 2010 of future minimum base

rental payments for operating leases that had initial or remaining lease

terms in excess of one year
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Financial information by segment is as follows

Operating
Leases

2011 $22.3

2012 17.4

2013 13.9

2014 10.1

2015 7.1

2016 and thereafter 7.5

Total minimum lease payments $78.3

Total rent expense for operating leases including those with terms of less

than one year was $33.1 million in fiscal 2010 $32.1 million in fiscal 2009

and $30.0 million in fiscal 2008

14 Segment In formation

We have two operating segments United States includes the Dominican

Republic and Ireland Operations and Canada which have been identified

as components of our organization that are reviewed by our Chief Executive

Officer to determine resource allocation and evaluate performance Each

operating segment derives revenues from the branded
identity apparel and

facility services industry which includes rental of garments direct purchase

items and non-apparel items such as floor mats dust mops wiping towels

selected linen items and restroom products No single customers transac

tions accounted for more than 2.0% of our total revenues Substantially all

of our customers are in the United States or Canada

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in

the
summary of significant accounting policies see Note Corporate

expenses are allocated to the segments based on segment revenue We

evaluate performance based on income from operations

The segment income from operations includes the impact of an intercom

pany management fee which is self-eliminated in the total income from

operations below The annual intercompany management fee was $8.5 mil

lion $9.5 million and $9.9 million for fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

United

States Canada Elimination Total

2010

Revenues $688.0 $145.6 833.6

Income from
operations

42.5 17.1 59.6

Interest expense 13.8 13.8

Total assets 758.5 136.1 80.7 813.9

Capital expenditures-net 15.9 0.8 16.7

Depreciation
and amortization

expense 34.5 5.7 40.2

Income tax expense 14.6 2.6 17.2

2009

Revenues $789.4 $146.6 936.0

lncome/Loss from operations 87.1 11.1 76.0

Interest expense 14.0 14.0

Total assets 809.7 137.8 90.2 857.3

Capital expenditures-net 20.1 3.2 23.3

Depreciation and amortization

expense 38.6 5.7 44.3

Income tax expense/benefit 21.5 3.9 17.6

2008

Revenues $820.3 $182.1 $1002.4

Income from operations 64.7 25.8 90.5

Interest expense 15.4 0.1 15.5

Total assets 983.1 171.2 101.1 1053.2

Capital expenditures-net 27.2 0.1 27.1

Depreciation
and amortization

expense 41.3 7.1 48.4

Income tax expense 20.4 8.5 28.9
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GK Services Inc

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

In millions

Additions

Balance at Charged to Costs Charged to Other Balance at

Description Beginning of Year and Expenses Accounts Deductions End of Year

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

July 32010 3.8 2.5 3.2 3.1

June 27 2009 4.5 4.1 4.8 3.8

June 28 2008 3.4 3.6 2.5 4.5

Inventory Reserve

July 32010 2.3 0.4 0.3 2.4

June 27 2009 2.2 0.8 0.7 2.3

June 28 2008 2.3 07 0.8 22
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Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e are our controls and other procedures that

are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in

the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in

the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms Disclosure

controls and procedures include without limitation controls and proce

dures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in

the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated

and communicated to our management including our chief executive

officer and chief financial officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our

disclosure controls and procedures as of July 32010 Based on that

evaluation the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer

concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in

recording processing summarizing and timely reporting information

required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the

Exchange Act

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting

The report of management required under this Item 9A is contained in

Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Attestation Report of Registered Public Accounting Firm

The attestation report required under this Item 9A is contained in Item of

this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption Report of Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting

during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 that have materially affected or

are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial

reporting

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants

on Accounting and Finandal Disclosure

None

Item 9B Other In formation

None

LI
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PART III

Item 10 Dfrectors Executive Officers and Corporate

Governance

Reference is made to information with respect to our Proxy Statement for

the fiscal year 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed pursuant to

Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by

this Form 10-K

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Reference is made to information with respect to our Proxy Statement for

the fiscal year 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed pursuant to

Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by

this Form 10-K

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Own

ers and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Reference is made to information with respect to our Proxy Statement for

the fiscal year 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed pursuant to

Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by

this Form 10-K

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

and Director Independence

Reference is made to information with respect to our Proxy Statement for

the fiscal year 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed pursuant to

Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by

this Form 10-K

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Reference is made to information with respect to our Proxy Statement for

the fiscal year 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed pursuant to

Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal
year

covered by

this Form 10-K
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PART IV ITEM 15

item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Registrant are set forth

in Item of Part II of this report

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting

regulations of the SEC have been omitted as not required or not

applicable or the information has been included elsewhere by

reference in the financial statements and related notes

Exhibits

The following exhibits as required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are

filed as part of this report

3a Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Registrant

as filed with the Secretary of State of Minnesota incorpo

rated herein by reference to Exhibit 3i to the Registrants

Form 10-Q filed November 13 2001

3b Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant incorpo

rated herein by reference to the Registrants Form 10-Q filed

February 2007

4a Rights Agreement dated as of September 17 2001 by and

between GK Services Inc and Wells Fargo Bank Minne

sota National Association incorporated by reference to the

Registrants Form 8-K filing dated September 19 2001

10a Amended and Restated 1996 Director Stock Option Plan as

amended March 10 2004 incorporated by reference to the

Registrants definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A

filed on October 12 2005

10b 1998 Stock Option and Compensation Plan as amended

November 2002 incorporated by reference to the

Registrants definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A

exhibit filed on September 26 2002

10c Loan Agreement dated June 30 2005 among GK Services

Inc and various institutional investors incorporated by

reference to Registrants Form 10-K filed September 15

2005

10d Form of Executive Employment Agreement between Regis

trant and each of Douglas Milroy Robert Wood and
Jeffrey

Wright dated March 2007 incorporated herein by

reference to the Registrants Form 8-K filed March 19

2007

10e 2006 Equity incentive plan incorporated herein by reference

to the Registrants Form 1O-Q filed February 2007

10f Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of

October 2008 among GK Receivables Corp GK Ser

vices Inc Three Pillars Funding LLC and Suntrust Robinson

Humphrey Inc incorporated herein by reference to Regis

trants exhibit 10.1 Form 8-K filed on October 2008

10g Form of Executive Employment Agreement between Regis

trant and Timothy Curran dated October 23 2008

incorporated herein by reference to the Registrants

exhibit 10.1 Form 8-K filed on October 29 2008

10h Form of Amended Executive Employment Agreement

between Registrant and each of limothy Curran Douglas

Milroy Robert Wood and
Jeffrey Wright dated

April 10 2009 incorporated herein by reference to the

Registrants exhibit 10 Form 8-K filed
April 14 2009

10i Form of Amended Executive Employment Agreement

between Registrant and each of Douglas Milroy and

Jeffrey Wright dated May 2009 incorporated herein

by reference to the Registrants exhibit 10 Form 8-K filed

May 13 2009

10j Credit Agreement dated
July 2009 by and among the

Registrant GK Services Canada Inc JPMorgan Chase Bank

N.A and various lenders incorporated herein by reference

to the Registrants exhibit 10.1 Form 8-K filed July 2009

10k First Amendment dated September 30 2009 to the

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of

October 2008 among GK Receivables Corp GK Ser

vices Inc Three Pillars Funding LLC and Suntrust Robinson

Humphrey Inc incorporated herein by reference to Regis

trants exhibit 10.1 Form 8-K filed October 2009

10l Voluntary Facility
Limit Reduction dated June 21 2010 in

accordance with the terms of the Amended and Restated

Loan Agreement dated as of October 12008 among GK
Receivables Corp GK Services Inc Three Pillars Funding

LLC and Suntrust Robinson Humphrey Inc incorporated

herein by reference to Registrants exhibit 10.1 Form 8-K

filed June 22 2010

10m Terms of Non-Qualified Employee Stock Option incorpo

rated herein by reference to the Registrants Form 10-K filed

on August 26 2O10

10n Terms of Non-Qualified Employee Stock Option for Chairman

and CEO incorporated herein by reference to the Regis

trants Form 10-K filed on August 26 2O10

10o Terms of Non-Qualified Non-Employee Director Stock Option

incorporated herein by reference to the Registrants

Form 10-K filed on August 26 2O1O
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10p Terms of Restricted Stock Grant incorporated herein by 24 Power of Attorney dated as of August 19 2010

reference to the Registrants Form 10-K filed on August 26
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities

2010
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15e/15d-15e as adopted pursuant

10q Terms of Restricted Stock Grant with Three Year Cliff Vesting to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

incorporated herein by reference to the Registrants
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities

Form 10-K filed on August 26 2O10
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15e15d-15e as adopted pursuant

10r Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan amended and to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

restated generally as of January 12008 incorporated
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C

herein by reference to the Registrants Form 10-K filed on
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

August 26 201O
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

10s Executive Deferred Compensation Plan amended and
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C

restated generally as of January 12008 incorporated
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

herein by reference to the Registrants Form 10-K filed on

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
August 26 2010

Footnotes

10t Amended and Restated Directors Deferred Compensation

Filed herewith
Plan dated August 25 2005 incorporated herein by refer

ence to the Registrants Form 10-K filed on August 26 Compensatory plan or arrangement

2010
Exhibits

21 Subsidiaries of GK Services lnc
See exhibits listed under Item 15a3

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Financial Statement Schedules

See the financial statement schedules listed under Item 15a2
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Date August 26 2010 GK SERVICES INC

Registrant

By Is Douglas Milroy

Douglas Milroy

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer
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Patrick Doyle

Wayne Fortun

Ernest Mrozek

Lenny Pippin

Alice Richter

Is
Jeffrey Wright

Jeffrey Wright

Is Thomas Dietz

Thomas Dietz

By Is Douglas Milroy

Douglas Milroy

Attorney-in-fact

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report on Form 10-K has been signed below on the 26th day of August 2010 by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated

Is Douglas Milroy Chief Executive Officer

Douglas Milroy
Principal Executive Officer and Director

Director

John Bronson

Director

Lynn Crump-Caine

Director

Director

Director

Chairman of the Board and Director

Director

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Director

Vice President and Controller
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GK SERVICES INC

5995 Opus Parkway

Minnetonka Minnesota 55343

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders Thursday November 2010

To the Shareholders of GK Services Inc

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of GK Services Inc will be held pursuant to due call by our Board of Directors at our corporate

headquarters 5995 Opus Parkway Minnetonka Minnesota 55343 on Thursday November 2010 at 1000 a.m Central Daylight lime or

at any adjournment or postponement thereof for the purpose of considering and taking appropriate action with respect to the following

to elect the three Class Ill directors named in the attached proxy statement to serve for terms of three years

to approve our Restated Equity Incentive Plan 2010

to
ratify

the appointment of Ernst Young LLP independent registered public accounting firm as our independent auditors for fiscal

2011 and

to transact any other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof

Pursuant to action of our Board of Directors shareholders of record on September 2010 will be entitled to vote at the meeting or any

adjournment or postponement thereof

proxy for the meeting is enclosed You are requested to complete and sign the
proxy

which is solicited by our Board of Directors and

promptly return it in the enclosed envelope

By Order of the Board of Directors

GK Services Inc

Jeffrey Cotter

Vice President General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

GK SERVICES

October 2010
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Proxy Statement of 6K Services Inc

Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be Held Thursday

November 2010

Voting by Proxy and Revocation of Proxies

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of

proxies by the Board of Directors of GK Services Inc to be used at the

annual meeting of our shareholders to be held on Thursday November

2010 at 1000 a.m Central Daylight Time at our corporate headquarters

5995 Opus Parkway Minnetonka Minnesota 55343 or at any adjournment

or postponement thereof for the purpose of considering and taking

appropriate action with respect to the following

to elect the three Class Ill directors named in this proxy statement

to serve for terms of three years

to approve our Restated Equity Incentive Plan 2010

to
ratify

the appointment of Ernst Young LLP independent

registered public accounting firm as our independent auditors for

fiscal 2011 and

to transact any other business as may properly come before the

meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof

The approximate date on which this proxy statement and the accompany

ing proxy were first sent or given to shareholders was October 2010

Each shareholder who signs and returns proxy in the form enclosed with

this proxy statement may revoke the same at any time prior to its use and

prior to the annual meeting by giving notice of such revocation to the

company in writing at the meeting or by executing and delivering new

proxy to our Corporate Secretary Unless so revoked the shares represented

by each
proxy

will be voted at the annual meeting and at any adjournment

or postponement thereof Mere
presence at the annual meeting by

shareholder who has signed proxy
does not alone revoke that

proxy

revocation must be announced by the shareholder at the time of the

meeting All shares which are entitled to vote and are represented at the

annual meeting by properly executed proxies received prior to or at the

annual meeting and not revoked will be voted at the annual meeting and

any adjournment or postponement thereof

Voting Procedures

The company has one class of voting securities outstanding Class

Common Stock $0.50 par value per share of which 18570880 shares

were outstanding as of the close of business on September 2010 the

record date for the annual meeting Each share of Class Common Stock is

entitled to one vote on each matter put to vote of shareholders Our

Class Common Stock is referred to in this proxy statement as common

stock Only shareholders of record at the close of business on the record

date for the annual meeting will be entitled to vote at the annual meeting

or any adjournment or postponement thereof quorum consisting of the

holders of majority of the stock issued and outstanding and entitled to

vote at the annual meeting is required for the transaction of business at

the annual meeting Such quorum must be present either in person or

represented by proxy for the transaction of business at the annual

meeting except as otherwise required by law our Amended and Restated

Articles of Incorporation or our Amended and Restated Bylaws

All shares entitled to vote and represented by properly executed proxies

received prior to the annual meeting and not revoked will be voted as

instructed on those proxies If no instructions are indicated the shares will

be voted as recommended by our Board of Directors If any director

nominee should withdraw or otherwise become unavailable for reasons

not presently known the proxies which would have otherwise been voted

for that director nominee may
be voted for substitute director nominee

selected by our Board of Directors

plurality
of votes cast is required for the election of each director in

Proposal No Each other proposal requires the affirmative vote of the

holders of the greater of majority of the voting power of shares

present and entitled to vote on that item of business or ii majority of

the voting power of the minimum number of shares entitled to vote that

would constitute quorum for the transaction of business at the annual

meeting

shareholder who abstains with respect to any proposal is considered to

be present and entitled to vote on that proposal and is effectively casting

negative vote shareholder including broker who does not give

authority to proxy to vote or withholds authority to vote on any

proposal shall not be considered present and entitled to vote on that

proposal

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that
you vote

FOR the election of each director nominee named in this proxy

statement FOR the approval of our Restated Equity Incentive

Plan 2010 and FOR the ratification of Ernst Young LiPs

appointment as our independent accountant for fiscal 2011



PROPOSAL NUMBER

Election of Class Ill Directors Messrs Bronson Fortun and Mrozek each of whom
currently serves as

Pursuant to our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation our Board

Class Ill director have been nominated by our Board of Directors to serve as

of Directors is comprised of not less than three and not more than
our Class Ill directors for three-year term commencing immediately following

12 directors and our Amended and Restated Bylaws state that the number
the annual meeting and expiring at our 2013 annual shareholders meeting or

of directors is established by resolution of our Board of Directors Presently
until his successor is elected and qualified If elected each nominee has

our Board of Directors consists of nine directors Pursuant to our Amended
consented to serve as Class III director

and Restated Articles of Incorporation our directors are divided into three

classes designated as Class Class II and Class III and are elected to serve
Set forth below is information regarding the three individuals nominated

for staggered three-year terms of office that expire in successive years The for election to our Board of Directors as Class III directors which includes

current terms of office for the directors in Class Class II and Class III
information furnished by them as to their

principal occupations for the last

expire respectively at the 2011 2012 and 2010 annual shareholders five years certain other directorships held by them and their
ages as of

meetings the date of this proxy statement

Name and age of Principal Occupation
Past Five Years Director

Director/Nominee Business Experience and Directorships in Public companies Since

Class Ill Nominees

John Bronson 62 Mr Bronson is director of the company and serves as member of the Compensation and
Corporate

Governance 2004

Committees of our Board of Directors Mr Bronson was Senior Vice President Human Resources for Williams-Sonoma Inc

specialty retailer of home furnishings from 1999 to 2003 Prior to his employment with Williams-Sononia Inc

Mr Bronson held several senior human resource-related management positions with PEPSICO from 1979 to 1999 most

recently as its Executive Vice President Human Resources Worldwide for Pepsi-Cola Worldwide

Mr Bronsons 24
years

in human resource-related positions with Williams Sonoma and PEPSICO and its related entities

provides him with substantial
experience

and knowledge with respect to the many complex issues surrounding human

resources benefits and compensation Mr Bronson offers us unique perspective on leadership development employee

relations and compensation issues Mr Bronson also has extensive international business experience and he understands

the complexities of managing route distribution system Mr Bronson has deep understanding of the diverse and

complex issues that must be addressed
by large public company

Wayne Fortun 61 Mr Fortun is director and serves as Chair of the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors In 1983 Mr Fortun 1994

was elected director President and Chief
Operating

Officer of Hutchinson Technology Inc NASDAQ HTCH world leader

in precision manufacturing of
suspension

assemblies for disk drives and was appointed its Chief Executive Officer in May

1996 position he continues to hold today Mr Fortun also serves as director of C.H Robinson Worldwide Inc NASDAQ

CHRW global provider of multimodal
transportation

services and
logistics solutions where he serves as the chair of the

Compensation Committee and serves on the Governance Committee

As the longest-serving member of our board Mr Fortun has abundant knowledge of our company and its business

Mr Fortuns significant experience with Hutchinson Technology provides him with critical knowledge of the management

financial and operational requirements of large company Mr Fortun also
provides our board with

insight
into

international business issues In addition as result of his long tenure as director of another large public company

Mr Fortun is well possessed with deep understanding of the roles and responsibilities
of

public company board members

Ernest Mrozek 57 Mr Mrozek is director and serves as member of the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors Mr Mrozek is also one of 2005

our Audit Committee Financial Experts Mr Mrozek served as Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of The ServiceMaster

Company residential and commercial service company from November 2006 until his retirement in March 2008

Mr Mrozek also served as President and Chief Financial Officer of The ServiceMaster Company from
January

2004 to

November 2006 and as its President and Chief Operating Officer from 2002 to January 2004 He served as President and

Chief Operating Officer of ServiceMaster Consumer Services ServiceMasters largest segment from
January

1997 until 2002

Mr Mrozek joined ServiceMaster in 1987 and has held various senior positions in general management operations
and

finance in addition to those specifically noted above Prior to joining ServiceMaster Mr Mrozek spent
12

years
with Arthur

Andersen Co Mr Mrozek previously served on the board of Chemed Corporation NYSE CHE until May 2010 and

currently serves on the board of IDEX Corporation NYSE IEX where he is member of the Audit Committee

Mr Mrozeks executive positions with The ServiceMaster Company and his other board service provide
him with keen

understanding of the management financial and operational requirements of large public company as well as an

understanding of the roles and responsibilities of board members of such companies Additionally
Mr Mrozek is able to

draw upon his public accounting experience and financial oversight positions as he evaluates our financial results and our

financial reporting process in general Mr Mrozek also assists our board in its understanding
of risk management and

internal control over financial reporting



Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

Set forth below is information regarding our executive officers and our directors which includes information furnished by them as to their
principal

occupations for the last five
years certain other directorships held by them and their ages as of the date of this proxy statement

Director

Name Age Title Term Expires

Douglas Milroy 51 Chief Executive Officer and Director Class II 2012

Jeffrey Wright 48 Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Director Class II 2012

Robert Wood 62 President GK Services Canada Inc

Jeffrey Cotter 43 Vice President General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

limothy Curran 49 Senior Vice President U.S Field

John Bronson 62 Director Class III 2010

Lynn Crump-Caine 54 Director Class 2011

Patrick Doyle 47 Director Class 2011

Wayne Fortun 61 Director Class Ill 2010

Ernesti Mrozek 57 Director Class III 2010

Lenny Pippin 63 Director Chairman of the Board and
Presiding

Director Class 2011

Alice Richter 57 Director Class Il 2012

Douglas Mi/roy Mr Milroy has served as our Chief Executive Officer

and director since May 2009 Mr Milroy served as our President Direct

Purchase and Business Development from November 2006 to May 2009

Mr Milroy joined us with more than 20 years of global leadership

experience in business-to-business organizations Most recently since

2004 Mr Milroy was managing director of The Milroy Group LLC firm

focused on the acquisition and management of industrial companies in

partnership with other investors Prior to that between 2000 and 2004

Mr Milroy was the Vice President and General Manager Food and

Beverage North America and Water Care for Ecolab Inc Mr Milroy has also

held senior positions with FMC Corporation and McKinsey Company

Mr Milroy serves on the board of JSJ Corporation where he chairs the

Compensation Committee and serves on the Audit Committee

Mr Milroy brings to our board his broad strategic vision for our company

and he is trusted advisor Mr Milroy has in-depth knowledge of all

aspects of our company and its business together with deep understand

ing and appreciation of our customers and their business operations

Mr Milroy creates critical link between management and the board

enabling the board to perform its oversight function with the benefit of

managements perspective on the business As Chief Executive Officer

Mr Milroy is responsible for determining the companys strategy and for

communicating that
strategy throughout the organization Mr Milroys

prior
business experience including his international business experience

provides him with valuable perspective on operational strategic and

management matters facing large companies and an intimate understand

ing of motivating employees to ensure effective execution of initiatives

Mr Milroy also has extensive experience with merger and acquisition

transactions including integrating companies to realize synergies and

create efficiencies

Jeffrey Wright Mr Wright has served as our Executive Vice President

and director since May 2009 and as our Chief Financial Officer since 1999

Previously Mr Wright served as our Senior Vice President from January

2004 until May 2009 our Secretary from February 1999 until May 2004

and our Treasurer from February 1999 until November 2001 Mr Wright

was employed with BMC Industries Inc from 1996 until the time he joined

the company serving as its Controller from 1996 to 1998 and its Treasurer

from 1998 to 1999 From 1993 to 1996 Mr Wright was Treasurer for

Employee Benefit Plans Inc From 1984 to 1993 Mr Wright was employed

with Arthur Andersen Co Mr Wright serves as Chairman of the Textile

Rental Services Association and is director of Hawkins Inc NASDAQ

HWKN where he serves on the Compensation and Governance and

Nominating Committees and chairs the Audit Committee

Mr Wrights experience provides him with deep institutional knowledge

Mr Wright also has comprehensive knowledge of the industrial laundry

business including as result of his service as Chairman of our industry

trade association Mr Wright is also able to provide our board with

valuable insight with respect to the negotiation and implementation of

mergers and acquisitions Mr Wrights financial and public accounting

experience provide him with breadth of knowledge related to financial

oversight internal control over financial reporting and the alignment of

financial and
strategic

initiatives

Robert Wood Mr Wood has served as President of GK Services

Canada Inc and affiliated entities since 1998 and as one of our Regional

Vice Presidents between 1997 and 1998 Mr Wood joined the company in

1995 as General Manager and served as an Executive Vice President of

the company from May 2000 until July 2002 Prior to joining the
company

Mr Wood was Vice President of Marketing and Director of Sales with

Livingston International Inc where he spent 23 years in variety of

operating sales service and marketing positions

Jeffrey Cotter Mr Cotter has served as our Vice President and General

Counsel since June 2008 Mr Cotter joined the company as Senior

Corporate Counsel in January 2006 and was named Director of Legal

Services and Corporate Secretary in September 2007 Prior to joining the

company since 2003 Mr Cotter was shareholder in the law firm of

Leonard Street and Deinard Professional Association where he specialized

in securities law as well as in mergers acquisitions and related transac

tions Prior to being shareholder in Leonard Street and Deinard



Mr Cotter was an associate at the firm 997-1999 2001-2003 as well as

Assistant General Counsel of Stockwalk.com Inc 1999-2001 and an

associate in the law firm of Briggs Morgan P.A Mr Cotter also serves on

the Textile Rental Services Associations Government Affairs Committee

Timothy Curran Mr Curran has served as our Senior Vice President

U.S Field since October 2008 Mr Curran joined the company as Regional

Vice President of the Southeast Region in 2004 Prior to joining the

company Mr Curran served as Vice President Operations for distribution

division of WebMD from 2002 to 2004 and served as Division General

Manager and Director of Business Development for OMNOVA Solutions

performance chemical and decorative products company
from 2000 to

2002 Mr Curran also held various operating and leadership positions with

Honeywell International Inc from 1993 to 2000

JohnS Bronson see information under Election of Class Ill Directors

above

Lynn rump-Caine Ms Crump-Caine is director of the company
and

serves as member of the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors

Ms Crump-Caine founded Outsidein Consulting and she currently serves as

its Chief Executive Officer Between 1974 and her retirement in 2004

Ms Crump-Caine served in various senior capacities with McDonalds

Corporation including as its Executive Vice President Worldwide Opera

tions and Restaurant Systems from 2002 to 2004 its Executive Vice

President U.S Restaurant Systems from 2000 to 2002 and its Senior Vice

President U.S Operations from 1998 to 2000 Ms Crump-Caine serves on

the board of Krispy Kreme Doughnuts Inc NYSE KKD where she chairs

the Compensation Committee and serves on the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committees She also chairs the board of Advocate Health Care

and is member of that boards Executive Audit and Compensation

Committees

Ms Crump-Caines far-reaching operational experience including in various

senior positions with McDonalds Corporation gives her unique under

standing of complex operating systems Ms Crump-Caine provides

valuable perspective to our board in multitude of areas including

training brand development and operations Ms Crump-Caine is likewise

well positioned to understand the multifaceted governance matters facing

large public companies today

Patrick Doyle Mr Doyle is director and serves as member of the

Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors Mr Doyle currently

serves as director and as President and Chief Executive Officer of

Dominos Pizza Inc NYSE DPi position he has held since March 2010

Prior to being named Dominos President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr Doyle served as President of Dominos U.S.A from September 2007 to

March 2010 as Dominos Executive Vice President of U.S Corporate Stores

from October 2004 to September 2007 as Dominos Executive Vice

President of International from May 1999 to October 2004 as Dominos

interim Executive Vice President Build the Brand from December 2000 to

July 2001 and as Dominos Senior Vice President of Marketing from the

time he joined Dominos in 1997 until May 1999 Prior to joining Dominos

Mr Doyle served as Vice President and General Manager for the U.S baby

food business of Gerber Products Company

Mr Doyles experience with Dominos Pizza including most recently as its

President and Chief Executive Officer and director enable him to

understand the importance of achieving sales growth building shareholder

value and cultivating business environment committed to quality

productivity and continuous improvement Mr Doyle also has experience

managing complex route delivery systems Our board has benefited from

Mr Doyles extensive merger and acquisition experience as well as his

familiarity
with international business issues Finally Mr Doyles wide-

ranging experience in the food service industry provides our board with

valuable insight into creating relevant marketing and growth strategies

and building brand awareness

Wayne Fortun see information under Election of Class III Directors

above

Ernesti Mrozek see information under Election of Class III Directors

above

Lenny Pippin Mr Pippin is director serves as the Chairman and

Presiding Director of our Board of Directors and serves as Chair of the

Corporate Governance Committee Mr Pippin served as Vice Chairman

President and Chief Executive Officer of The Schwan Food Company

branded frozen-food company from November 1999 until February 2008

Mr Pippin is currently business consultant Prior to joining Schwans

Mr Pippin served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Lykes

Brothers Inc privately held corporation with operating divisions in the

food agriculture transportation energy
and insurance industries

Mr Pippins prior
business experience with the The Schwan Food Company

and Lykes Brothers provides him with keen understanding of the many

strategic
and operational challenges facing companies such as ours

including the importance of managing complex route delivery system

Mr Pippin also has experience with building sales improving brand

awareness ensuring leadership development and understanding issues

facing international businesses As Chairman of our board Mr Pippin

possesses valuable leadership analytical strategic and risk assessment

skills Mr Pippin is also well versed with corporate governance require

ments facing boards of large public companies

Alice Richter Ms Richter is director and serves as Chair of the Audit

Committee of our Board of Directors Ms Richter is also one of our Audit

Committee Financial Experts Ms Richter has been retired since June 2001

Prior to her retirement Ms Richter was certified public accountant with

KPMG LLP for 26 years Ms Richter joined KPMGs Minneapolis office in

1975 and was admitted to the KPMG partnership in 1987 During her

tenure at KPMG Ms Richter served as the National Industry Director of

KPMGs U.S Food and Beverage practice and also served as member of

the Board of Trustees of the KPMG Foundation from 1991 to 2001

Ms Richter is member of the Boards of Directors of West Marine Inc

NASDAQ WMAR where she serves as Chair of the Audit Committee

Bluestem Brands Inc where she serves as the Chair of the Audit

Committee and Thrivent Financial for Lutherans where she serves on the

Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee and is Chair of

the Technology Committee



With more than 25 years of experience with an international Big public

accounting firm Ms Richter possesses vast understanding of accounting

principles and financial reporting evaluating financial results and the

processes of financial reporting risk management and internal control over

financial reporting of both publicly and privately held companies Ms Rich

ter also brings useful corporate governance and compliance insights from

among other things her service on boards and other audit committees and

her commitment to continuing education as it pertains to board service

and Sarbanes-Oxley compliance issues

Executive Compensation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The following Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes the material

elements of our total compensation program for our Named Executive

Officers NEOs Our NEOs include our Chief Executive Officer our Executive

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and the three most highly

compensated executive officers other than our Chief Executive Officer and

our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer who were serving

as our executive officers at the end of fiscal 2010 The discussion focuses

on our compensation program and decisions each as they relate to these

individuals for fiscal 2010 We address why we believe the program is

right for our company and our shareholders and we explain how

compensation is determined

Overview

What person or group is responsible for determining the compensa

tion levels of executive officers

The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors which consists

entirely
of independent directors and whose membership is determined by

our board is responsible for

approving the design and implementation of our executive compensa

tion program

regularly reporting on committee actions and recommendations at

board meetings

working with the Audit and Corporate Governance Committees of our

Board of Directors as appropriate and

reviewing NEO compensation and making recommendations to our

board which is responsible for approving all NEO compensation

Hay Group serves as an independent compensation consultant to our

Compensation Committee The Compensation Committee also works with

our human resources and compensation and benefits professionals on the

design and implementation of executive compensation programs and

certain retirement plans that are of material significance

The Compensation Committee annually reviews NEO compensation The

Compensation Committee considers information provided by its internal

compensation team and independent compensation consultant and

reviews and recommends compensation actions for NEOs for approval by

our board

Role of Compensation Consultant

Hay Group provides independent compensation consultation and advice to

the Compensation Committee to help ensure that executive compensation

decisions are aligned with the long-term interests of shareholders and with

corporate goals and strategies Although Hay Group primarily supports the

Compensation Committee on occasion Hay Group provides market data

and general compensation consultation to management As requested by

the Compensation Committee Hay Group provides guidance as it relates to

the following committee responsibilities

reviews Compensation Committee agendas and supporting materials in

advance of each meeting

as requested attends Compensation Committee meetings

makes recommendations on companies to include in our peer group

analyzes the selected peer group information and reviews other survey

data for competitive comparisons

reviews our executive compensation programs and competitive posi

tioning for reasonableness and appropriateness

reviews our total executive compensation program and advises the

Compensation Committee of plans or practices that might be changed

to improve effectiveness

oversees survey data on executive pay practices and amounts that come

before the Compensation Committee

provides market data and recommendations on Chief Executive Officer

compensation without
prior

review by management except for neces

sary fact checking

provides market data and recommendations on director compensation

reviews
any significant executive employment or change-in-control

provisions in advance of being presented to the Compensation Commit

tee and/or the board for approval

periodically reviews the Compensation Committees charter and recom

mends changes

advises the Compensation Committee on best-practice ideas for board

governance as it pertains to executive compensation as well as areas of

risk in our compensation program

as requested advises the Compensation Committee on management

proposals and

undertakes other projects at the request of the Compensation

Committee

In fiscal 2010 as part of its ongoing services to the Compensation

Committee as described above Hay Group representative attended all

regularly scheduled meetings of the Compensation Committee either in

person or telephonically and worked on the following projects

reviewed our peer group and made recommendations on changes

thereto

participated in review and design of our long-term incentive and equity

programs



reviewed Board of Director compensation in fiscal 2010 no changes

were made to our boards compensation package and

conducted market analysis of Chief Executive Officer compensation and

made recommendations on changes to Mr Milroys total compensation

package

Certain of our senior officers also have roles in the compensation process

as follows

Mr Milroy recommends compensation actions with respect to our NEOs

other than for himself and submits those recommendations to the

Compensation Committee for review

Mr Milroy provides his perspective on recommendations provided by

the compensation consultant regarding compensation program design

issues

our Senior Vice President Human Resources plays an active role by

providing input on plan design structure and cost and assessing the

implications of all recommendations on recruitment retention and

motivation of company employees as well as company
financial

results and

when requested by the Compensation Committee other executive

officers such as the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Vice President and Controller and our Vice President General Counsel

and Corporate Secretary may also review recommendations on plan

design structure and cost and provide perspective to the Compensa

tion Committee on how these recommendations may affect recruit

ment retention and motivation of our employees as well as our

financial results

Discussion and Analysis

The following discussion and analysis is limited to our NEO compensation

program focuses on the program and decisions for fiscal 2010 and

specifically answers the following questions

What are the objectives of our compensation program

What is our compensation program designed to reward

What is each element of compensation

Why do we choose to pay each element

How do we determine the amount/formula for each element

How does each element and our decision regarding that element fit

into our overall compensation objectives and affect decisions regard

ing other elements

What are the objectives of our compensation program

Our compensation programs objectives are to provide compensation and

benefits plans that enable us to attract motivate and retain highly

qualified experienced executives and reward them for performance that

creates long-term shareholder value We seek to increase shareholder

value by rewarding performance with cost-effective compensation that

ensures appropriate linkage between pay company performance and

results for our shareholders We strive to reward employees fairly
and

competitively through mix of base salary short- and long-term

incentives benefits career growth and development opportunities We

believe the mix of base pay short-term incentives long-term incentives

and other benefits drives performance

What is our compensation program designed to reward

Our compensation program strives to
effectively

utilize elements of

compensation under total reward philosophy that combines annual and

multi-year reward opportunities which are designed to

provide competitive levels of compensation that link compensation to

the achievement of our annual objectives and long-term goals

reward the achievement of company performance objectives and

recognize and reward strong individual initiative and team

performance

Shareholder value and corporate performance are realized through our

ongoing business strategy to

achieve year-over-year growth in revenue and earnings

drive strong cash flow

maintain financial strength and
flexibility

and

reward strong individual performance that is aligned with
company

goals and objectives

What is each element of compensation

There are five components of our executive compensation program

base salary

annual management incentive compensation referred to as our MIP

long-term equity-based compensation

benefits and perquisites and

severance and change-in-control benefits

Base Salary

Base salary is fixed compensation designed to compensate NEOs for their

level of experience and continued performance excellence in their individ

ual roles Providing executives with competitive base salaries allows us to

attract high-caliber talent and retain executives on-going services by

providing them with level of financial certainty Base salary is set in

relation to the competitive market for the position and individual perfor

mance We review executive base salary on an annual basis generally

comparing to the median of the competitive market for each position and

any increases are based on individual performance and prevailing market

conditions

For fiscal 2011 at Mr Milroys request our Compensation Committee did

not increase his base salary In his request Mr Milroy noted continued

sluggish economic conditions and he highlighted that although most of

our management employees did not receive base salary increase

following fiscal 2009 he did receive salary adjustment by virtue of his

promotion to Chief Executive Officer Our board is pleased with Mr Milroys



performance and is confident that his strategic vision with respect to both

short- and long-term goals will benefit the company as whole That

being said the Compensation Committee honored Mr Milroys request

thus on an annualized basis Mr Milroys base salary reported for our next

fiscal year will be identical to his base salary reported in this proxy

statement for fiscal 2010

For NEOs excluding Mr Milroy individual performance is assessed against

business performance objectives and individual performance at mid-year

and at fiscal year-end Each NEO provides self-evaluation during his

performance review with Mr Milroy Twice annually Mr Milroy provides

performance review of the NEOs assessing each NEOs performance

strengths and accomplishments along with challenges and areas for

improvement Mr Milroy makes compensation recommendations base

assessment of individual performance on the MIP calculation and equity

grant which are reviewed by the Compensation Committee and then

submitted to our board for final review and approval

Mr Milroy must also conduct self-assessment of his performance during

the fiscal year which he reviews with the Chairs of the Compensation and

Corporate Governance Committees Each of our directors and the members

of our executive management team also complete separate evaluations of

Mr Milroys performance The Chairs of the Compensation and Corporate

Governance Committee review the assessments with the Corporate

Governance Committee Hay Group then works with the Chair of the

Compensation Committee to make compensation recommendations for

review by the Compensation Committee and final review and approval by

the board In fiscal 2010 no merit increases were granted for the NEOs

consistent with other company-wide actions provided that Mr Milroy

received
salary adjustment when he was elevated to Chief Executive

Officer in May 2009 and our board also approved base adjustment in

fiscal 2010 for the Vice President General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

based on market data

Annual Management Incentive Plan

Our MIP is variable pay program tied to achievement of annual business

and individual performance goals The MIP is designed to compensate

NEOs for meeting specific company financial goals and for individual

performance MIP target incentive levels are based on competitive market

data job content and responsibilities and internal equity Cash incentive

awards to our Chief Executive Officer that are based on quantitative

measures are settled in cash as performance awards pursuant to our 2006

Equity Incentive Plan under terms similar to our MIP awards so that the

payments will be deductible pursuant to Section 162m of the Internal

Revenue Code Target incentive levels are expressed as percentage of

base salary as follows

Target Incentive

Position as of Base Salary

Chief Executive Officer 75%

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 60%

President GK Services Canada 50%

Senior Vice President US Rental
Operations

50%

Vice President General Counsel and Corporate Secretary 40%

Management Incentive Plan Payouts

In fiscal 2010 our MIP design was divided into two measurement periods

for financial goals The first period was comprised of the first two fiscal

quarters of the year and the second period was comprised of the last two

quarters of the fiscal year MIP payouts were calculated based on actual

performance against measures set at the beginning of each period These

measures were reviewed and approved by the Compensation Committee

The measures aligned NEOs with clear line-of-sight responsibility to

Quantitative Financial Measures revenue and earnings benchmarks

were chosen as the key financial measures for the MIP because they

best represent our primary short-term growth goals and
align

with and

support the attainment of our long-term strategy

Individual Discretionary discretionary assessment of performance

which considers all dimensions of performance over the year including

individual performance functional leadership teamwork and collabora

tion and results achieved on assigned tasks or projects

I-
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Plan Measures and Weights and Performance Targets

The plan measures and weights as well as the performance targets and results are as follows

Plan Measures
Weights Performance Targets

Results5

for Financial Measures

CEO EVP President Threshold- Target- Maximum- Achievement Payout

GK Canada Factor

SVPandVP

Company Financial Measures 30%
Payout

100% Payout 200% Payout

Revenue Achievement 32% 28% Period 400.7 417.4 434.1 98.65% 76.44%

Period 405.6 422.5 439.4 97.33% 53.28%

EPSAchievement2 48% 42% Period 0.34 0.41 0.55 114.63% 142.86%

Period 0.71 0.82 1.04 91 .46% 55.45%

Individual Discretionary 20% 30% 0% 100% 200%

Payout Payout Payout

Total 100% 100%

In order to earn payout for the company revenue growth objective performance
must be achieved at or above the threshold level

In order to earn payout for the company earnings per
share

growth objective performance must be achieved at or above the threshold level

The actual payouts for the discretionary component of the MIP achieved for each NEO for fiscal 2010 expressed as percentage of the applicable target incentive referenced in the preceding

table were as follows Mr Milroy 25% Mr Wright 30% Mr Curran 36% Mr Wood 33% and Mr Cotter 33%

Due to the dynamic nature of the fiscal
year

2010 economic environment our MIP
design was divided into two measurement periods for financial goals

Achievement was calculated at the end

of both periods and combined to determine overall performance

Certain adjustments including gains on asset sales and divestitures and income from the accounting change were excluded for
purposes

of calculating incentive compensation

Plan measures and weights were carefully
reviewed by the Compensation

Committee and approved by our board Performance targets are recom

mended
prior

to each fiscal year based on business unit plans expected

progress toward long-term goals and anticipated market conditions The

annual performance targets for company revenue growth and earnings per

share are then presented to and approved by the Compensation Commit

tee MIP payouts for company financial measures are based on actual

business results compared to the performance targets
which were

approved at the beginning of the fiscal year

At the end of the fiscal year rating of the results is recommended by

Mr Milroy for his direct reports and presented to the Compensation

Committee for review and to the board for final review and approval

Mr Milroys results are evaluated by the Compensation and Corporate

Governance Committees with their recommended rating on individual

performance submitted to the board for final review and approval

MIP Calculation

The payout for each quantitative measure of an NEOs MIP calculation is

determined by multiplying the following factors the NEOs base salary his

target incentive the applicable measure weight and the payout factor The

total payout is equal to the sum of the payouts for each measure Our

Compensation Committee determines incentive compensation plan design

for financial measures based generally on achievement of certain targets

against an internal business plan approved annually by our board Over the

past three
years

the payout percentage has ranged from 0% to 146% of

each executive participants target award opportunity for these measures

with an average payout percentage equal to approximately 77% of the

target award opportunity MIP payouts are currently capped at 200% of

target

Our Compensation Committee determines the discretionary portion of each

NEOs MIP award following recommendations from Mr Milroy other than

with respect to himself With respect to all NEOs including Mr Milroy the

Compensation Committee recommends the discretionary bonus amounts

to our board based on performance company results market data

provided by the compensation consultant and previous awards Our board

approves the discretionary recommendation for all NEOs



In making specific grants relative to the discretionary component of each NEOs award our board the Compensation Committee and Mr Milroy other than

with respect to himself considered the following individual accomplishments

Douglas Milroy leadership of development and implementation of our new strategic game plan

fostering the development of
organizational

skills and
capabilities

responsibility for ongoing day-to-day execution of key business
initiatives and

effective management of our leadership transition

effrey Wright active role in development and implementation of our new strategic game plan

active
responsibility

for all financial accounting and financial reporting obligations

management of the companys overall corporate finance and capital structure needs

careful cost management and

in-depth financial
analysis

of our business

Robert Wood active role in development and implementation of our new
strategic game plan

leadership and
strategic direction of our Canadian corporate and field operations

leadership
of process improvement initiatives throughout our Canadian field operations and

careful cost management and significant improvements in underperforming locations

imothy Curran active role in development and implementation of our new
strategic game plan

leadership and strategic direction of our U.S field operations

leadership of process improvement initiatives throughout our U.S field operations and

careful cost management and significant improvements in underperforming locations

effrey
Cotter active role in development and implementation of our new strategic game plan

effective legal support for company-wide business
initiatives

leadership of our
enterprise

risk management process and

attendance to our ongoing legal
and compliance needs

Long-Term Equity Compensation

Long-term equity compensation supports strong organization performance

over period of time typically at least three years Long-term equity

compensation aligns NEOs compensation with shareholders interests

rewards NEOs for increasing long-term shareholder value and promotes

executive retention Long-term equity award targets for each position are

established each year based on competitive market data also taking into

account the rate at which equity grants deplete the number of shares

available for grant run rate and shareholder dilution Individual equity

awards are based on individual performance

In fiscal 2010 we granted two types of equity awards

Non-Qualified Stock Options each stock option represents the
right to

purchase specified number of shares of our common stock at
price

equal to the fair market value of the common stock on the date of

grant Options vest and become exercisable in equal installments over

three
years and have term often years

Restricted Stock restricted stock represents the
right

to own common

stock after the time restrictions lapse Restrictions on restricted stock

generally lapse in equal installments over five years

Vesting schedules and term lengths

Vesting schedules and term lengths for new grants are periodically

reviewed by the Compensation Committee The Compensation Committee

has determined that the existing vesting schedule and term lengths

provide the appropriate balance between employee retention and reward

for performance

Grant Targets and Mix

Our equity grant practice is to use combination of stock options to

reward growth and restricted stock to support retention Each year we

establish target grant values taking into consideration market median

grant levels while still managing annual run rate and shareholder dilution

within appropriate levels We then evaluate the mix with the objective of

delivering as much of the equity grant in stock options as possible to drive

growth For fiscal 2010 for each of our NEOs with respect to the target

expected value of equity compensation grants the Compensation Commit

tee approved an allocation of 25% stock options and 75% restricted stock

After establishing the mix the target grant levels are converted into shares

using the following formulas

Stock Options percentage allocated to stock options target grant

level/Black Scholes value

Restricted Stock percentage allocated to restricted stock target grant



Ievel/per share value of our common stock as of the date of the

calculation

Grant Practice

We make our equity grants effective as of the date of the August Board of

Directors meeting which occurs after the year-end earnings announce

ment On occasion the Compensation Committee may grant stock options

or restricted stock to NEOs at times other than the annual grant date e.g

upon hire or promotion with the grant price
set equal to the closing

market
price on the day of grant

Equity Holding Guidelines

We believe that requiring executive officers to hold
significant

amounts of

our common stock strengthens the alignment of the executive officers

interests with those of our shareholders and promotes achievement of

long-term business objectives Currently our equity holding guidelines

require NEOs to hold one-half of all shares granted for three years net of

the number of shares required to cover estimated taxes and exercise costs

The holding requirements apply to restricted stock at the time of vesting

and stock options at the time of exercise Our NEOs are allowed five years

to achieve ownership targets which are five times base salary for Mr Milroy

and three times base salary for the remaining NEOs The Compensation

Committee annually reviews the progress against the ownership

guidelines

Benefits

Benefits include health and welfare retirement and perquisite programs

that are intended to provide financial protection and security to NEOs and

their families and to reward their dedication and long-term commitment

to the company Our sponsorship coupled with competitive employee

cost-sharing arrangements of these plans is critical to our ability to attract

and retain the talent we need to support our overall business objectives

NEOs have the opportunity to participate in the same retirement health

and welfare plans as our other salaried employees as well as the following

supplemental benefits

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP this plan was frozen as

of January 2007 therefore Messrs Milroy and Cotter do not

participate nor does Mr Wood as he is not covered by the plan

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan DEFCO

Executive long-term disability
insurance

Financial planning services

Chief Executive Officer $7500 each year

All other NEOs $5000 each year

Executive physical

Leased automobiles for certain NEOs which are in the process of being

phased out and replaced with weekly taxable car allowance During

fiscal 2010 the company provided Mr Milroy with leased vehicle

through December 2009 No other NEO had leased vehicle

Additionally Mr Cotter does not receive car allowance The following

NEOs currently receive the following weekly car allowance Mr Milroy

$375 Mr Wood $413 CAD Mr Wright $375 and Mr Curran

$23

Severance and Change-in-Control Benefits Employment Agreements

Severance and change-in-control benefits include salary and certain

benefits that are paid in the event of termination of employment under

certain circumstances including following change in control Severance

and change-in-control benefits help attract executive talent and create an

environment that provides for adequate business transition and knowledge

transfer during times of change The level of this severance protection is

established to be competitive with market best practices We utilize

employment agreements for the following levels in our organization Chief

Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

President and Senior Vice President Specifically we have entered into

employment agreements with Messrs Milroy Wright Wood and Curran

that provide benefits to the executive if the individual is terminated after

change in control of the company Specifically benefits are provided if the

executive is terminated within one year following change in control if

the termination is by the employer without cause or by the executive for

good reason The various key terms are defined specifically in each

agreement Severance benefits are also payable in such circumstances In

the event of change in control and regardless of whether the executive

is terminated unvested equity awards will vest immediately upon the

change in control consistent with the provisions of our equity compensa

tion plan We also have in place an Executive Severance and Change in

Control policy under which Mr Cotter is entitled to certain benefits

following certain termination and change in control events Finally our

employment agreements with Messrs Milroy and Wright contain addi

tional provisions requiring each of them to resign from all positions held

with us in the event their employment with us is terminated including any

of our company boards on which they serve as director

These agreements were put in place and the related triggers were selected

to assure that we will have the continued dedication undivided
loyalty

and objective advice and counsel from these key executives in the event of

proposed transaction or the threat of transaction which could result in

change in control of the company We also believe that these agreements

are beneficial to us because in consideration for these severance arrange

ments the executives agree
to noncompetition and non-solicitation

covenants for period of time following termination of employment

Why do we choose to pay each element

We strive to effectively utilize elements of compensation under total

reward philosophy that combines annual and multi-year reward opportu

nities Our intent is to develop compensation program that rewards the

annual accomplishment of the companys goals and objectives while

supporting our long-term business strategy We want to encourage our

executives to increase shareholder value
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How do we determine the amount/formula for each element

Executive compensation is reviewed annually as follows

Executive compensation is set at levels that the Compensation Committee

believes to be competitive with those offered by selected employers of

comparable size growth and profitability both in and outside our industry

Annually the Compensation Committee reviews all elements of executive

compensation individually
and in the aggregate against market data for

companies with which we compete for executive talent Hay Group works

with our internal human resources and compensation and benefits profes

sionals in conducting research and formulating recommendations for the

Compensation Committees consideration to determine the levels and

components of compensation to be provided for the fiscal
year Hay Group

also provides background material for consideration by the Compensation

Committee with respect to compensation for Mr Milroy The Compensation

Committee evaluates our executive compensation based on competitive

market information obtained from

proxy data from peer group of publicly-traded companies with similar

industry sector business services similar size revenue capitalization

number of employees and geographic proximity to our company and

general survey
data based on similar sized companies

Peer Group Data

The various elements of our executive compensation program for fiscal

2010 were benchmarked relative to the compensation provided to execu

tives of the following peer group

ADC Telecommunications Inc

Apogee Enterprises Inc

Casella Waste Systems Inc

Cintas Corporation

Clean Harbors Inc

Deluxe Corporation

Donaldson Company Inc

H.B Fuller Company

Graco Inc

Rollins Inc

Stericycle Inc

Tennant Company

The Toro Company

TrueBlue Inc

UniFirst Corporation

We annually review the
peer group to ensure an appropriate mix of

companies that are representative of the companies with which we

compete for talent During fiscal 2010 we realigned our peer group to

ensure that it includes appropriate service industry comparisons other

companies with headquarters located near our corporate headquarters and

companies that more closely match our size To that end the following

companies were added to our peer group
in fiscal 2010 ADC Telecommu

nications Inc Casella Waste Systems Inc H.B Fuller Company Graco

Inc Stericycle Inc and Tennant Company In fiscal 2010 the following

companies were removed from our peer group Bowne Company

Comfort Systems USA Inc Crawford Company Exterran Holdings Inc

Invacare Corporation Kinetic Concepts Inc Mine Safety Appliances Com

pany Paychex Inc Pentair Inc Polaris Industries Inc and Varian Medical

Systems Inc

General Survey Data

We benchmark NEO compensation to survey data based on job responsibil

ity generally using market median data from companies with comparable

revenue We also benchmark plan design plan features and participant

eligibility
as part of the overall analysis process

Market data is only one reference point in making compensation decisions

We also consider the following key variables

size and scope of the position and level of responsibility

experience and
capabilities

of the NEO

the NEOs performance and potential

internal equity pay of other NEOs

unique market premiums for key positions

the NEOs compensation history and

business complexity

Disparity among NEOs

There are no policy
differences with respect to the compensation of

individual NEOs The compensation disparity
between our highest paid

Compensation

Committee

Meeting

Held In Agenda

February Review and approve the
peer group composition

May Review market data establish
equity guidelines review MIP

design and establish preliminary company financial performance targets for the upcoming fiscal
year

June Approve MIP design and company financial performance targets for the upcoming fiscal year

August Review performance for
prior year and approve merit increases MIP payouts and equity grants provided our board approves all compensation actions for NEOs

November Review executive
equity holdings and review director compensation
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of internal control over financial reporting that ensures our performance-NEOs and other NEOs is due to the difference in nature among the positions

and market factors

How does each element and our decision regarding that element

fit into our overall compensation objectives and affect decisions

regarding other elements

In general each NEOs compensation at target is weighted more heavily on

variable performance-based compensation than on fixed base compensation

This pay mix supports the role of the NEOs in enhancing value to shareholders

over the long-term The variable pay components at target annual and long-

term incentives represented more than one-half of the total pay opportunity

for all NEOs all of which is at risk Through this mix of pay performance has

significant
effect on the amount of compensation realized by NEOs In making

actual individual pay decisions the Compensation Committee considers

company performance and individual NEO performance

Tax Considerations

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code limits the tax deductibility of

compensation in excess of $1 million paid to our NEOs unless the

compensation constitutes qualified performance-based compensation as

defined in this code section While the Compensation Committee considers

the deductibility of compensation arrangements as an important factor in

compensation decisions for executives deductibility is not the sole factor

used by the Compensation Committee in ascertaining appropriate levels or

modes of compensation We believe that to remain competitive we must

maintain compensation program that will continue to attract retain and

reward the executive talent necessary to maximize shareholder return

How do our compensation policies relate to our risk management

practices and/or risk-taking incentives

We design our compensation programs to ensure they do not encourage

excessive risk-taking and are compatible with effective internal controls

and risk management practices of the company We believe the balance

between short- and long-term incentives supports our shareholders desire

that we deliver results while ensuring financial soundness of our company

through various market cycles Together with the compensation consultant

engaged by the Compensation Committee in fiscal 2010 we again

evaluated the current risk
profile

of our executive and broad-based

compensation programs In doing so we considered those of our policies

and practices that serve to effectively manage or mitigate risk including

provisions of both our annual and long-term incentive plans Specifically

we continued to rely on our multiple performance measures discretion in

payment of individual awards and in granting stock awards use of stock

ownership guidelines and the ability of our Compensation Committee to

incorporate claw back features in stock awards We also noted our process

based awards are based on accurate data robust analysis of historical and

anticipated payouts and our strengthening of an enterprise risk manage

ment function to assist with managing risk of all kinds Based on this

analysis we concluded that the architecture of our compensation pro

grams both executive and broad-based provide multiple effective safe

guards to protect against unnecessary risk-taking effectively balancing risk

and reward in the best interest of our shareholders

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors has furnished the

following report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the foregoing

Compensation Discussion and Analysis with the companys management

Based on that review and discussion the Compensation Committee has

recommended to the companys Board of Directors that the Compensation

Discussion and Analysis be included in the companys proxy statement for

the 2010 annual meeting of shareholders

JOHN BRONSON

PATRICK DOYLE

WAYNE FORTUN

The Compensation Committee Report set forth above will not be deemed to

be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the extent that we

spedfically incorporate such reports by reference and such report will not

otheiwise be deemed to be soliciting materials or to be filed under such acts

Fiscal 2010 Summary Compensation Table

The table below shows the compensation of our NEOs for services in all

capacities to the company
in fiscal 2010 For discussion of the amount of

an NEOs salary and bonus in proportion to his total compensation see the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis on pages to 12

We believe that our compensation practices are fair and reasonable Our

NEOs are not guaranteed salary increases bonus amounts or long-term

equity grants Pension benefits have been frozen and were calculated on

salary and bonus only the proceeds earned on equity or other equity-

based performance awards were not part of the pension calculation We

do not guarantee return or provide above-market returns on compensa

tion that has been deferred We have not re-priced stock options and we

do not grant reload options We believe our compensation program
holds

each NEO accountable for our financial and competitive performance and

for his individual contribution toward that performance and we do not

believe that our compensation practices encourage unnecessary risks
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Change in

Pension Value

and Nonqualified

Restricted
Non-Equity Deferred

Stock Stock Incentive Compensation All Other

Salary Bonus Awards Options Compensation Earnings Compensation

NEO Year $1 $2 $3 $4 $S $c6 $7 Total

Douglas Milroy

Chief Executive Officer 2010 560577 555250 174780 383146 94736 1768488

2009 348821 682818 383144 100000 78781 1593564

2008 301995 45000 254450 261750 135664 54108 1052967

Jeffrey Wright 2010 364205 255748 69878 191620 82044 72841 1036336

Executive Vice President and Chief 2009 355154 532205 101540 78594 15178 90546 1173217

Financial Officer 2008 341348 276550 335789 265594 87286 1306567

Robert Wood 2010 412582 158579 43295 197331 60673 872460

President GK Services Canada 2009 369260 160898 92299 46157 59483 728097

2008 423207 210250 318024 154607 91251 1197339

Timothy Curran 2010 280492 158579 43295 131171 25052 50758 689347

Senior Vice President U.S Field 2009 264363 72652 80314 44000 4667 106408 572404

2008 120057 32074 152131

Jeffrey Cotter 2010 256483 90284 24672 92397 J8
27272 491108

Vice President General Counsel and 2009 220742 51062 29270 31501 20608 353184

Corporate Secretary 2008 36634 5090 41724

The annual base salary set by the Compensation Committee for fiscal 2010 effective September 12009 for each NEO was as follows Mr Milroy $550000 Mr Wright $357245

Mr Wood $427137 CAD in the table above Mr Woods fiscal 2010 base
salary

has been converted to USD using an average exchange rate for fiscal 2010 of 0.9477 Mr Curran $275000

Mr Cotter $250000 The annual base salary set by the Compensation Committee for fiscal 2009 effective September 12008 for each NEO was as follows Mr
Milroy $318206 adjusted to

$550000 effective as of May 72009 Mr Wright $357245 Mr Wood $427137 CAD in the table above Mr Woods fiscal 2009 base salary has been converted to USD
using an average

exchange rate for fiscal 2009 of 0.8645 Mr Curran $275000 Mr Cotter $225000 The annual base salary set by the Compensation Committee for fiscal 2008 effective September 2007 for

each NEO was as follows Mr Wright $345164 Mr Wood $427137 CAD in the table above Mr Woods fiscal 2008 base salary was converted to USD
using an average exchange rate for fiscal

2008 of 0.9908 and Mr Milroy $304504 Messrs Curran and Cotter were not executive officers prior to the beginning of fiscal 2009 thus their base salaries were not determined
by the

Compensation Committee Annual base
salary

rates reflect 52 weeks of pay Our fiscal 2010 calendar included 53 weeks thus the actual earnings are slightly higher than the referenced base

salaries

Our MIP is performance-based In accordance with SEC requirements these amounts are reported in the
Non-Equity

Incentive
Compensation

table and column In fiscal 2008 Mr Milroy received

discretionary bonus equal to 15% of his base
salary or $45000 for his significant contributions involving the

implementation
of SAP software into Lion Uniform Group the development of

revised plan for the introduction of Dockers
apparel in the company utilizing existing facilities and for playing key advisory

role on key new project affecting the companys service

organization which was in addition to his other
assigned responsibilities

The dollar amounts
represent

the
aggregate grant date fair value of restricted stock awards granted during each of the years presented The grant date fair value of restricted stock award is

measured in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 See Note 11 to our audited financial statements for the
year

ended
July 32010 Accounting estimates of forfeitures are not included in these

figures

The dollar amounts
represent

the
aggregate grant date fair value of option awards granted during

each of the
years presented The grant date fair value of an option award is measured in

accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 See Note 11 to our audited financial statements for the
year

ended
July 32010 Accounting estimates of forfeitures are not included in these figures

Includes MIP performance amounts earned for performance in fiscal
years 2010 2009 and 2008

We do not
pay

above market
earnings on deferred compensation Therefore no amounts are reported in this column for deferred compensation For qualified and non-qualified plan benefits

this
represents the actuarial present value of the accrued benefit as of June 30 2010 and valued as of June 30 2010 minus the actuarial present value of the accrued benefit as of

June 30 2009 and valued as of June 30 2009 The benefits have been valued
assuming

benefits commence at age 65 and using FAS 87 assumptions for mortality assumed payment form and

discount rates in effect at the measurement dates Mr Wood is not eligible to
participate

in our Pension Plan SERP DEFCO or 401k plan Instead he participates in Canadian pension

program
and retirement compensation arrangement

The value of
perquisites and other personal benefits is provided in this column see table below

Messrs
Milroy

and Cotter do not participate in our SERP or our Pension Plan

For fiscal
year 2008 the change in value for Mr Wright was $2944 under our Pension Plan and $13741 under our SERP

10
Mr Wood is not covered by our U.S qualified and non-qualified retirement

plans
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All Other Compensation

401k DEFCO Taxahle Executive Total All Other

NEO Year Perquisites Match $2 Match $3 Life $4 Pension $5 LTD $6 Compensation

Douglas Milroy
2010 18390 13690 62655 94736

2009 18286 10762 49733 78781

2008 16058 5068 32982 54108

Jeffrey Wright 2010 22692 9553 40596 72841

2009 18711 9917 61918 90546

2008 34393 10043 42850 87286

Robert Wood 2010 20767 939 37054 1913 60673

2009 17247 871 40333 1032 59483

2008 47778 1040 41250 1183 91251

Timothy Curran 2010 16252 9610 24897 50758

2009 72091 10562 23755 106408

2008

Jeffrey Cotter 2010 4625 10196 12451 27272

2009 192 10289 10127 20608

2008

Amounts for fiscal 2010 reflect the following
Mr

Milroy $500 for financial planning $8515 for the cost of his leased vehicle for the months of July through December calculated based on the

cost of the leased vehicle to the company including lease insurance gas
and maintenance and $9375 for his car allowance from January through June Mr Wright $2726 for financial

planning $19875 for his car allowance and $91 in tax
gross-ups paid in connection with company recognition event Mr Wood $20767 for his car allowance Mr Curran $3930 for

financial planning $12231 for his car allowance and $91 in tax
gross-ups paid in connection with company recognition event and Mr Cotter $4625 for financial planning

Includes company match on 401k and non-elective contributions

Includes company match on DEFCO and non-elective contributions

Includes fees paid by us for taxable life insurance

Includes company match to Canadian retirement plan
for Mr Wood and contributions by us to Canadian retirement compensation arrangement

for Mr Wood

Includes fees paid by us for an executive long-term disability plan
for Mr Wood

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fisca 2010

The following table shows the grants of plan-based awards to our NEOs in fiscal 2010 All awards identified by grant date and approval date reflect

awards made under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Awards with no grant date or award date denoted reflect awards under our MIP All restricted stock

awards vest in equal increments over five-year period beginning with the first anniversary of the date of grant All grants of options vest in equal

increments over three-year period beginning with the first anniversary of the date of grant Holders of restricted stock both vested and unvested shares

are entitled to receive the same dividends as all other shareholders receive In each quarter of fiscal 2010 we paid dividend of $0075 per share

All Other All Other Grant

Stock Option Exercise Date Fair

Awards Awards or Base Value of

Estimated Possible Payouts Estimated Future
Number of Number Price of Stock and

Under Non-Equity Incentive Payouts
Under

Equity Shares of of Shares Option Options

Approval

Plan Awards $2 Incentive Plan Awards
Stock or of Stock Awards Awards

Grant Date Date Minimum Target Maximum Threshold
Target

Maximum Units3 or Units4 $5 $6

Douglas Milroy 412500 825000

08/20/09 08/20/09 25000 35000 22.21 730030

Jeffrey Wright 214347 428694

08/20/09 08/20/09 11515 15354 22.21 325626

Robert Wood 202399 404797

08/20/09 08/20/09 7140 9513 22.21 201874

limothy Curran 137500 275000

08/20/09 08/20/09 7140 9513 22.21 201874

Jeffrey Cotter 100000 200000

08/20/09 08/20/09 4065 5421 22.21 114955

These columns reflect minimum target
and maximum

payouts
under our MIP for fiscal 2010 Mr Woods

target was converted to USD using an exchange rate of 0.9477 The maximum payouts

for NEOs and other executives reporting to the CEO were determined based on formula for the financial measures as follows for each 5% above the EPS target the payout
factor increased

by

15% in period one and 19% in
period two and for each 1% of company total revenue above target the payout

factor increased
by

25% in both periods The actual amount earned
by

each NEO

is reported
under the Non-Equity Incentive Compensation column in the Summary Compensation

table Over the
past

three
years

the payout percentage has ranged from 0% to 146% of each

executive participants target
award opportunity for these measures with an average payout percentage equal to approximately

77% of the target award opportunity MIP payouts are currently

capped at 200% of
target

Subject to the
provisions

of Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code we may pay
some or the entire

quantitative portion
of

any
incentive payments to Mr Milroy

under the terms of our

2006 Equity Incentive Plan
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The stock awards graoted to NEOs in fiscal 2010 were restricted stock awards Each share of restricted stock represeots the right to receive share of oor common stock on the vesting date

Restricted stock vests in five
eqoal installments beginning on the first

anniversary
of the

grant date evcept that the isgoo restricted shares granted to Mr Wright on May 2009 all vest on the

third
anniversary

of the
grant

date Dividends are paid on these shares

Each stock option granted to an NEO in fiscal 2010 represents the right to purchase share of nor common stock at specified exercise price subject to the terms and conditions of the option

agreement These options have ten year term and vest and hecnme exercisable in three equal installments
beginning on the first

anniversary of the grant date

The exercise price is the fair market value of our common stock on the day the option was granted Fair market value is set based on the closing price on the grant date

This column
represents

the
grant

date fair value of each equity award granted during fiscal 2010 which is calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 See Note 11 to our audited financial

statements for the fiscal
year ended July 32010 None of the options or other equity awards granted to our NEOs was re-priced or ntherwise modified For information regarding our equity

compensation grant practices seethe Compensation Discussion and Analysis on
page
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2010

The following table shows the outstanding equity awards for each of the NEOs

Option
Awards

Number of Number of
Stock Awards

Securities Securities Number of Market Value of

Underlying Underlying Shares or Units Shares or Units

Unexercised Unexercised
Option Option of Stock that of Stock That

Options Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not

Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date1 Vested121 Vested $3

Douglas Milroy
9000 39.97 11/20/16 50918 1054003

4256 2128 39.82 08/23/17

25OOO 41.17 11/15/14

5428 108566 34.27 08/21/18

13334 26666 23.68 05/07/19

3500081 22.21 08/20/19

Jeffrey Wright 2639 28.50 09/01/10 37994 786476

3220 27.95 09/01/11

10000 35.69 01/02/13

10002 32.57 08/25/13

5700 36.41 08/31/14

9501 42.97 09/01/15

12120 33.11 09/01/16

4626 2313 39.82 08/23/17

25000 41.17 11/15/14

4593 91866 34.27 08/21/18

153548 22.21 08/20/19

Robert Wood 6000 35.69 01/02/13 16188 335092

6000 32.57 08/25/13

7300 36.41 08/31/14

6150 42.97 09/01/15

1350 39.09 02/22/16

7731 33.11 09/01/16

3516 1758 39.82 08/23/17

2500 41.17 11/15/14

4175 83506 34.27 08/21/18

9513 22.21 08/20/19

Timothy Curran 3000 39.19 01/26/14 12010 248607

4000 36.41 08/31/14

4002 42.97 09/01/15

5481 33.11 09/01/16

2004 1002 39.82 08/23/17

1885 3770161 34.27 08/21/18

1667 33339 35.92 09/23/18

95138 22.21 08/20/19

Jeffrey Cotter 1000 39.44 02/03/16 5909 122316

492 33.11 09/01/16

318 159 39.82 08/23/17

1324 26486 34.27 08/21/18

54218 22.21 08/20/19

For each option shown the expiration
date is the tenth anniversary of the date the option was granted except

for those
options

referenced in footnote
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The following table indicates the dates when the shares of restricted stock held
by

each NEO vest and are no longer subject
to forfeiture

Vesting
Date

Douglas Milroy Jeffrey Wright Robert Wood limothy Curran Jeffrey Cotter

08/20/10 5000 2303 1428 1428 813

08/21/10 1221 1033 939 424 298

08/23/10 1278 1389 1056 603 184

09/01/10 1907 1222 816 50

11/20/10 600

02/22/11 90

05/07/11 4000

08/20/11 5000 2303 1428 1428 813

08/21/11 1221 1033 939 424 298

08/23/11 1278 1389 1056 603 184

09/01/11 1273 812 549 50

11/20/11 600

05/07/12 4000 15000

08/20/12 5000 2303 1428 1428 813

08/21/12 1221 1033 939 424 298

08/23/12 1278 1389 1056 603 184

05/07/13 4000

08/20/13 5000 2303 1428 1428 813

08/21/13 1221 1033 939 424 298

05/07/14 4000

08/20/14 000 2303

Total 50918 37994 16188 12010 5909

Calculated
by multiplying

the number of restricted shares
by $20.70 the closing price of our common stock on July 22010 the last business day of the fiscal year Dividends are paid on these

shares

The
remaining

shares became exercisable on August 23 2010

These
options

cliff vest and become exercisable on November 15 2010 assuming continued employment

These
options continue to vest and the remaining shares become exercisable in two equal installments on August 21 2010 and 2011 assuming continued employment

These
options continue to vest and the remaining shares become exercisable in two equal installments on May 72011 and 2012 assuming continued employment

These options continue to vest and the remaining shares become exercisable in two equal installments on August 20 2010 2011 and 2012 assuming continued employment

These options continue to vest and the remaining shares become exercisable in three equal installments on September 23 2010 and 2011 assuming continued employment

Fiscal 2010 Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The following table lists the number of shares acquired and the value realized as result of option exercises by the NEOs in fiscal 2010 and the value of any

restricted stock units that vested in fiscal 2010

Option Awards

Number of Shares
Stock Awards

Acquired on Value Realized on Number of Shares Value Realized on

Exercise Exercise Acquired on Vesting Vesting $1

Douglas Milroy 7099 170340

Jeffrey Wright 4719 109414

Robert Wood 3307 76597

limothy Curran 1843 42683

Jeffrey Cotter 532 12158

Calculated by multiplying the closing price on the date of
vesting

times the number of shares
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Fiscal 2010 Pension Benefits

The following table shows the present value as of June 30 2010 of the benefit of the NEOs under our qualified
and nonqualified defined benefit pension

plans

Number of Years of

Service Credited

Under Plan at FAS Present Value of Payments During

Measurement Date Accumulated Benefit Cast Fiscal Year

Plan Name

Douglas Milroy GK Services Pension Plan N/A N/A N/A

Gl Services SERP N/A N/A N/A

Jeffrey Wright GK Services Pension Plan 8.00 70349

GK Services SERP 8.00 170388

Robert Wood2 GK Services Pension Plan N/A N/A N/A

6K Services SERP N/A N/A N/A

Timothy Curran GK Services Pension Plan 3.00 29912

GK Services SERP 3.00 46696

Jeffrey
Cottert3 GK Services Pension Plan N/A N/A N/A

GK Services SERP N/A N/A N/A

Mr
Milroy

does not participate in our Pension Plan or our SERP

Mr Wood is not covered
by our U.S qualified and non-qualified retirement plans

Mr Cotter does not participate in our Pension Plan or our SERP

GK Services Pension Plan

Two of our NEOs Messrs Wright and Curran participate in our Pension

Plan Effective December 31 2006 benefits under this plan were frozen

meaning the accrual of future benefits under the plan was discontinued

Benefits are the greater of the amounts determined under the 1989

pension formula or if the participant is eligible under the 1988 pension

formula

The 1989 pension formula is 2/3rds of 1% of participants average

compensation plus one-half of 1% of average compensation in excess of

covered compensation multiplied by benefit accrual service at

December 31 2006 or termination if earlier not to exceed 30

The 1988 pension formula

Eligibility
if participant had an accrued benefit under the Pension

Plan as of December 31 1988 and the participant was not Highly

Compensated Employee during the 1989 plan year the participant is

eligible to continue to earn benefits under the 1988 pension formula

until the earliest of December 31 2006 termination of employment or

the end of the year preceding the plan year in which the participant

became Highly Compensated Employee

Formula 50% of the participants average compensation less 75% of

the estimated primary social security benefit multiplied by years
of

benefit accrual service at December 31 2006 or termination of

employment if earlier not to exceed 30 divided by 30

Compensation generally means wages salaries and other amounts earned

for services provided to us including among other items commissions

incentives bonuses and pre-tax contributions to the 401k plan Compen

sation excludes among other items deferrals to deferred compensation

plans amounts realized from restricted stock stock options and fringe
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benefits Compensation is limited to the compensation thresholds set forth

in Internal Revenue Code Section 401 a1 Average compensation is the

average of the five highest consecutive years of compensation out of the

ten consecutive
years preceding December 31 2006 or termination if

earlier Covered compensation is the average of social security taxable

wage bases for the 35-year period ending with the participants social

security retirement age An employee attains normal retirement age on

the later of the date he or she attains
age

65 or the fourth anniversary of

the first day of the plan year in which the employee became participant

in the plan participant is vested after completing five years of vesting

service and is then eligible for vested termination benefits vested

terminated participant is eligible to commence benefits as early as age 55

in which case benefits are reduced 62/3% for each of the first five years

commencement precedes normal retirement age and 31/3% for each year

thereafter participant is eligible for subsidized early retirement benefits

if termination occurs after age 60 with at least 30 years of benefit accrual

service in which case benefits are reduced 3% for each year commence

ment precedes normal retirement age

None of the NEOs are currently eligible
for subsidized early retirement

benefits

The normal payment form is the life only annuity variety of other

payment forms are available all equivalent in value if paid over an average

lifetime

The present value of benefits shown in the Pension Benefits Table and the

Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earn

ings column of the Summary Compensation Table is the discounted value

of the benefit to commence at age 65 The present values were determined

using assumptions consistent with those used for our Pension Plan



financial reporting purposes under SEAS 87 unless otherwise directed by

SEC Regulation S-K Some of those assumptions are as follows

benefits were assumed to commence at age 65

for the June 30 2009 and June 30 2010 measurement dates for the

SERP benefit and the Pension Plan benefit 65% of the participants are

assumed to elect the life only payment option at benefit commence

ment and 35% are assumed to elect payment in the 100% joint and

survivor payment form Values for earlier measurement dates assume

100% of the participants elect the life only payment option

all values were determined as of June 30 2008 2009 or 2010 as

appropriate

the discount rate used to determine values was 7.2% 6.9% and 5.6%

as of June 30 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively and

no pre-retirement mortality retirement withdrawal or disability was

assumed

Mr Wood Canadian citizen is not covered by our US pension and SERP

plans Mr Wood is covered by defined contribution plan pursuant to

which we contribute 2% of his base salary and match his contributions of

up to 6% of base salary The Canadian government sets limit for total

contributions which for 2010 is $22000 CAD to be adjusted for inflation

each year If this limit is reached Mr Wood is covered by retirement

compensation arrangement or RCA Under the RCA we continue to

contribute an amount equal to 2% of Mr Woods salary and match

Mr Woods contributions of up to 6% of base pay One-half of the money

contributed to the RCA is held by trustee and is invested in widely

available mutual funds The other one-half is held by the Canadian

government as refundable tax One-half of all earnings on funds invested

by the trustee is also paid to the Canadian government and is also held as

refundable tax

SERP

Two of the NEOs Messrs Wright and Curran participate in our SERP

Effective December 31 2006 benefits under the plan were frozen meaning

the accrual of future benefits under the plan was discontinued

Benefits under the plan are determined as 50% of average compensation

multiplied by the ratio of benefit accrual service at December 31 2006 or

termination if earlier divided by projected benefit accrual service to

age 60 no less than 30 determined as of December 31 2006 If at

December 31 2006 the participant was at least age 60 then the ratio is

benefit accrual service at December 31 2006 or termination if earlier

not to exceed 30 divided by 30 Benefits determined under this formula

are reduced by benefits payable from the GK Services Pension Plan

Compensation is generally equal to the compensation used for purposes of

our Pension Plan but also includes any deferrals the participant made to

deferred compensation plan sponsored by the
company Compensation for

SERP benefit purposes is not subject to the thresholds set forth in Internal

Revenue Code Section 401 a17 Average compensation is the average of

the five highest consecutive years of compensation out of the ten

consecutive years preceding December 31 2006 or termination of

employment if earlier An employee attains normal retirement age on the
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date he or she attains age 65 participant is vested after completing five

years of participation service vested terminated participant is eligible to

commence benefits as early as age 55 participant is
eligible

for early

retirement benefits if termination of employment occurs after attainment

of age 55 and the participant is vested In either case the benefit

determined for commencement prior to age 65 is the age 65 benefit

before reduction for our Pension Plan benefit offset reduced 31/3% for

each of the first five
years commencement precedes age 65 and 62/3% for

each year thereafter This is also reduced by our Pension Plan benefit as

reduced for commencement under the terms of that plan as of the same

date

The normal payment form is the life only annuity variety of other

payment forms are available all equivalent in value if paid over an average

lifetime Distributions are subject to compliance with Section 409A of the

Internal Revenue Code

The SERP contains non-compete provision If the participant enters into

competition with the
company during the three

year period following

termination of employment benefits under the SERP are forfeited This

provision is waived for participants working with the company beyond

age 65

The present value of benefits shown in the Pension Benefits Table and the

Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earn

ings column of the Summary Compensation Table is the discounted value

of the benefit to commence at age 65 The present values were determined

using assumptions consistent with those used for our SERP financial

reporting purposes under SFAS 87 unless otherwise directed by SEC

Regulation S-K Some of those assumptions are as follows

benefits were assumed to commence at age 65

for the June 30 2009 and June 30 2010 measurement dates for the

SERP benefit and the Pension Plan benefit 65% of the participants are

assumed to elect the life only payment option at benefit commence

ment and 35% are assumed to elect payment in the 100% joint
and

survivor payment form Values for earlier measurement dates assume

100% of the participants elect the life only payment option

all values were determined as of June 30 2008 2009 or 2010 as

appropriate

the discount rate used to determine values was 7.05% 6.9% and 5.5%

as of June 30 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively and

no pre-retirement mortality retirement withdrawal or disability was

assumed

DEFCO

Our DEFCO is non-qualified plan that provides our executives and NEOs

with the opportunity to defer up to 25% of base
salary

and 50% of incentive

compensation

Participants deferred cash accounts earn rate of return which tracks the

investment return achieved under certain participant-selected investment

funds Participants are eligible to change their investment mix at any time



We credit deferred accounts with additional amounts equal to the value of

the matching contributions At the time of the initial deferral election

participants must also select distribution date no later than age 65 and

form of payment for normal retirement Participants may elect to receive

distributions in single payment or installments

The following table shows contributions to the NEOs deferred compensation account in fiscal 2010 and the aggregate amount of deferred compensation as

of June 30 2010

Potential Post-Employment Payments

Severance

Pursuant to the terms of
existing employment agreements we are required

to make certain payments and to extend certain benefits to Messrs Milroy

Wright Wood and Curran in the event of any termination of any such

employment agreements with each executive or the executives employment

thereunder
Specifically

in the event that an executives employment under

the agreement is terminated by us without cause we must provide to such

executive the following benefits

we must provide the executive with 30 days written notice of

termination

if the executive signs and does not revoke release we must pay to

such executive as separation pay an amount equal to 11 months of

such executives monthly base salary in effect as of the actual date of

termination or in the case of Mr Milroy an amount equal to 1.99

times his annual base salary in effect as of the actual date of

termination such separation pay being made in weekly payments

subject to the terms of such release some payment may be subject to

delay of six months to comply with Section 409A of the Internal

Revenue Code

if such executive or any individual receiving group health plan benefits

through him is eligible under applicable law to continue participation

in our group health plan and elects to do so we will for period of up

to 17 months commencing as of the actual date of termination
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continue to pay our share of the cost of such benefits as if such

executive remained in our continuous employment but only while such

executive or such person is not
eligible

for coverage under any other

employers group health plan

we will for period of at least one year commencing as of the actual

date of termination pay directly to the service provider or reimburse

such executive for all reasonable expenses of reputable outplacement

organization selected by such executive such payments not to exceed

$12000 in the aggregate

we will pay lump sum payment equal to six times the monthly

automobile allowance if applicable and

we will pay to such executive any unpaid management incentive bonus

earned by such executive and to which such executive is entitled

provided such executive was employed by us as of the last day of the

fiscal year prior to the actual date of termination such payment being

made in accordance with the terms of the related plan

In the event an executive voluntarily resigns or an executives employment

is terminated for cause or by reason of death such executive is only

entitled to his base salary through the date of termination or death plus

any other earned but unpaid amounts under his employment agreement

or any benefit plan At the end of this section is table indicating the

estimated incremental amounts we would owe to each of our NEOs upon

such NEOs termination without cause

Executive

Contributions in

Last FY $1

107836

43584

Registrant

Contributions in

Last FY $2

62655

40596

Douglas Milroy

Jeffrey Wright

Robert Wood

limothy Curran 27500 24897 20786 271633

Jeffrey Cotter 8828 12451 1102 36900

Aggregate Earning

in Last FY $3

49630

86342

Aggregate

Withdrawals

Distributions

Aggregate

Balance $4

551099

694465

Amounts in this column reflect salary deferrals by the NEO in fiscal
year

2010 These amounts are also included in the Salary column of the Summary Compensation Table We match 50% of

the NEOs deferral election
up

to 10% of both base salary and incentive pay We make company retirement contributions equal to 2.5% of each NEOs cash compensation including pay
that

exceeds the IRS compensation limit to the NEOs DEFCO account If an NEOs
pay

exceeds the IRS compensation limit we will also make company retirement contribution equal to 4% of the

NEOs cash compensation over the IRS compensation limit

Amounts in this column
represent

contributions made
by us during

fiscal
year

2010 These amounts are also reflected in the All Other Compensation that is reported
in the Summary

Compensation Table

The amounts in this column are not included in the Summary Compensation
Table because

they are not above-market or preferential earnings on deferred compensation Earnings are based on

indices of widely available mutual funds

Amounts reported in this column for each NEO include amounts previously reported in the Summary Compensation
Table in previous years

when earned if that NEOs compensation was required

to be disclosed in previous year
Amounts

previously reported
in such

years
include

previously earned but deferred salary
and incentive and company matching

contributions This total reflects

the cumulative value of each NEOs deferrals and matching contributions and investment experience



No executive is required to seek other employment Any executives

commencement of employment with another employer will not reduce our

obligations to make severance payments

Change in Control

Following is discussion of the
potential payments due to Messrs Milroy

Wright Wood and Curran under their employment agreements in the event

of change in control of the company followed bya Change in Control

Termination At the end of this section is table indicating the estimated

incremental amounts that would have been triggered for each of these NEOs

and Mr Cotter who is entitled to payments pursuant to our Executive

Severance and Change in Control Policy had there been Change in Control

Termination as of July 2010

The employment agreements address termination due to change in control

and for good reason and provide as follows

Change in Control occurs when

anyone attains control of 30% of our voting stock

challengers replace majority of our Board of Directors within two

years or

merger or consolidation with or disposal of all or substantially all of

our assets to someone other than the
company

Change in Control Termination occurs when Change in Control has

taken place and the executive then is terminated within one year of the

Change in Control either by the employer for any reason other than for

cause or by the executive for good reason Good reason is defined

following Change in Control to include the following

substantial adverse involuntary change in the executives status or

position as an executive with the
company

material reduction by the
company

in the executives base salary as in

effect on the day before the Change in Control

material adverse change in physical working conditions interfering

with the executives work

requirement to relocate other than on intermittent basis more than

35 miles from corporate headquarters as condition of employment

failure by the
company to obtain from any successor an assumption of

the executives employment agreement

attempted termination other than pursuant to the executives employ

ment agreement or

any material breach of the executives employment agreement

In the event of Change in Control of the company and the related

termination of an executives employment by such executive for good

reason or by us for any reason or for no reason other than for cause in

each case prior to the first anniversary of the Change in Control the

following description is qualified in its entirety by reference to the

respective employment agreements of the executives

we must provide the executive with 30 days written notice of

termination

we will pay the executive an amount equal to 17 months of such

executives base salary or in the case of Mr Milroy an amount equal

to 1.99 times his annual base salary subject to certain limitations

if such executive or any individual receiving group health plan benefits

through him is
eligible

to continue participation in our group health

plan and elects to do so we must for period of up to 17 months

continue to pay the employers share of the cost of such benefits as if

such executive remained in our continuous employment subject to

certain limitations

we will for period of at least one year pay directly or reimburse such

NEO for all reasonable outplacement expenses such payments not to

exceed $12000

we will pay the executive the amount necessary to acquire and obtain

full title to any personal automobile leased by us for the executive or if

the executive does not have the use of personal automobile but has

been given an automobile allowance we will pay the executive lump

sum payment equal to three times the annual automobile allowance

such executive is then receiving

we will pay for financial planning and tax preparation expenses not to

exceed $5000 or in the case of Mr Milroy $7500 for 17 months and

we will pay any management incentive bonus earned by the executive

and to which the executive is entitled provided the executive was

employed by us as of the last day of the fiscal year prior
to the actual

date of termination such payment being made in accordance with the

terms of the related plan

In addition upon the occurrence of Change in Control and without

regard to an executives employment status but presuming that the

executive remains in our employ on the date of the Change in Control the

following shall occur with respect to any and all economic incentives

including without limitation stock options and awards of restricted stock

that are owned by such executive on the date of the Change in Control

the restrictions on any previously issued shares of restricted stock will

immediately lapse

all outstanding options and stock appreciation rights
will become

immediately exercisable and

all performance criteria for all performance shares will be deemed to be

met and immediate payment made

If any benefits payable would be an excess parachute payment then

payments and benefits will be reduced to the minimum extent necessary

so that no portion of any such payment or benefit as so reduced

constitutes an excess parachute payment provided that such reduction will

be made only if and to the extent that that such reduction would result in

an increase in the aggregate payment and benefits provided on an after

tax basis taking into account any excise tax imposed by Internal Revenue

Code Section 4999

21



Disability

During any period in which any such executive is disabled the executive

will continue to receive all base salary benefits and other compensation

Disability means the unwillingness or inability
of the executive to

perform the essential functions of the executives position with or without

reasonable accommodation for period of 90 days consecutive or

otherwise within any period of six consecutive months If this occurs we

will issue Notice of Termination and if the executive has not returned to

the full-time performance of his/her duties within 30 days the thirtieth

day after Notice of Termination will be the executives date of termination

Post-Employment Payment Tables

The tables below provide the estimated amounts that would have been triggered for each NEO below had there been termination under the various

scenarios described above as of July 2010 Although we have not entered into an employment agreement with Mr Cotter he is entitled to certain

separation benefits pursuant to our Executive Severance and Change in Control Policy

Severance

Health Benefits

Outplacement5

109450011 10945001

iiiiict iiiii

12000 12000

97506 585O0

7500 7500

46164610 55109911
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105400313

1596507 2788712

Reflects 1.99 times base salary

Reflects seven months of base salary one month for the notice period plus six months pay

Reflects 17 months of health benefits

Reflects seven months of medical and dental benefits one month for the notice period plus six months pay

Outplacement is capped at $12000

Reflects six times the monthly car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

Reflects three times the annual car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

Reflects months of the annual car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

Financial
planning

is capped at $7500

10
Includes $402011 of Mr Milroys contribution account and $59635 of the companys contribution account

11
Includes $402011 of Mr Milroys contribution account and $149087 of the companys contribution account Pursuant to the DEFcO acceleration of vesting would require acquisition by

third

party
of 50% of our stock rather than the 30% threshold stated in Mr Milroys employment agreement Mr Milroys DEFCO account will become fully vested

upon change in Control

12
No value reflected all unvested stock options as of July 2010 had an exercise

price greater
than the closing price of $20.70 on such date

13
Reflects the value of 50918 currently unvested shares of restricted stock had the

vesting
of such shares accelerated on July 32010 when the closing price of our common stock was $20.70

Jeffrey Wriqht ___________________________________________________

Termination by Us Change of Control

Payment Type
Without Cause Termination Disability

Severance
3274741 5060972 208393

Health Benefits 6849 6849 2989

Outplacement6 12000 12000

Car
9750 585008 1375

Financial Planning110
5000 5000

Deferred Compensation 694465 694465 694465

Accelerated Vesting of Options

Accelerated Vesting
of Restricted Stock

78647613

Total 1055538 2069386 917222

Reflects 11 months of base
salary

Reflects 17 months of base salary

Reflects seven months of base salary one month for the notice period plus months pay

Reflects 17 months of health benefits

Reflects seven months of medical and dental benefits one month for the notce period pius six months pay

Outplacement
is capped at $12000

Reflects six times the monthly car allowance rate at an annual rate of $19500

Reflects three times the annual car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

Douglas Milroy

Termination by Us Change of Control

Payment Type
Without Cause Termination

Car

Financial PIanning9

Deferred Compensation

Accelerated Vesting of Options

Accelerated
Vesting

of Restricted Stock

Total

Disability

3208332

47444

113758

46164610

798599
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Reflects months of the annual car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

10
Financial planning is capped at $5000

h1
Includes $417414 of Mr Wrights contribution account and $277050 of the company contribution account Mr Wrights DEFCO account is fully vested

12
No value reflected all unvested stock options as of July 2010 had an exercise price greater than the closing price of $20.70 on such date

13
Reflects the value of 37994 currently unvested shares of restricted stock had the

vesting
of such shares accelerated on July 32010 when the closing price of our common stock was $20.70

Robert Wood

Termination
by

Us Change of Control

Payment Type Without Cause Termination Disability

Severance 3710641 5734632 236132

Health Benefits 2321 2321 956

Outplacement6 12000 12000

Car 10188 611278 1886

Financial Planning10 5000 5000

Deferred CompensationU

Accelerated
Vesting

of
Options

12

Accelerated Vesting of Restricted Stock 33509213

Total 400573 989002 248974

Reflects 11 months of base salary

Reflects 17 months of base salary

Reflects seven months of base salary one month for the notice period plus six months pay

Reflects 17 months of health benefits

Reflects seven months of medical and dental benefits one month for the notice period plus six months pay

Outplacement is capped at $12000

Reflects six times the monthly car allowance at an annual rate of $21500 CAD converted to US dollars
using an exchange rate of 0.9477

Reflects three times the annual car allowance at an annual rate of $21500 CAD converted to US dollars using an exchange rate of 0.9477

Reflects seven times the monthly car allowance at an annual rate of $21500 CAD converted to US dollars using an exchange rate of 0.9477
lx

Financial planning is capped at $5000

fh
Mr Wood is not covered by the DEFCO

12
No value reflected all unvested stock options as of

July 32010 had an exercise price greater than the closing price of $20.70 on such date

13
Reflects the value of 16188 currently unvested shares of restricted stock had the

vesting of such shares accelerated on July 32010 when the closing price of our common stock was $20.70

Timothy Curran

Termination by Us Change of Control

Payment Type Without Cause Termination
Disability

Severance 252083 3895832 160417

1111 111 47445

12000 12000

97507 58500 11375

5000 5000

22705311 27163312 22705311

13

24860714

516997 996435 403589

Health Benefits

Outplacement6

Car

Financial Planning10

Deferred Compensation

Accelerated Vesting of Options

Accelerated Vesting of Restricted Stock

Total

Reflects 11 months of base salary

Reflects 17 months of base salary

Reflects seven months of base salary one month for the notice period plus six months pay

Reflects 17 months of health benefits

Reflects seven months of medical and dental benefits one month for the notice period plus six months pay

Outplacement is capped at $12000

Reflects six times the monthly car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

Reflects three times the annual car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

Reflects seven times the monthly car allowance at an annual rate of $19500

10
Financial planning is capped at $5000

11
Includes $160182 of Mr Currans contribution account and $66871 of the company contribution account

12
Includes $160182 of Mr Currans contribution account and $111451 of the company contribution account Pursuant to the DEFCO acceleration of vesting would require acquisition bya third

party
of 50% of our stock rather than the 30% threshold stated in Mr Currans employment agreement Mr Currans DEFCO account will become fully vested upon change of control

13
No value reflected all unvested stock options as of July 2010 had an exercise price greater

than the
closing price of $20.70 on such date

14
Reflects the value of 12010 currently unvested shares of restricted stock had the vesting of such shares accelerated on July 2010 when the closing price of our common stock was $20.70

LU

LU
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Jeffrey Cotter

Termination by Us Change of Control

Payment Type Without Cause Termination Disability

Severance 2291672 354167 iO00O

Health Benefits 7190 111116 1877

Outplacement181
12000 12000

Financial Planning

Deferred Compensation 21414 3690010 21414

Accelerated
Vesting

of
Options

11

Accelerated Vesting of Restricted Stock
12231612

Total 269770 536494 123291

We have not entered into an employment agreement with Mr Cotter however if Mr Cotter experiences change in control termination or is severed from the company without cause which

termination requires 30 days notice from the company he would be entitled to certain benefits under our Executive Severance and Change in Control Policy

Reflects 11 months of base
salary

Reflects 17 months of base
salary

Reflects thirteen weeks of base salary at 100% and thirteen weeks of base salary at 60% pursuant to our Short-Term Sickness and Accident Plan

Reflects 11 months of health benefits

Reflects 17 months of health benefits

Reflects twelve weeks of medical and dental benefits

Outplacement is capped at $12000 In the event of termination without cause outplacement expenses
will be paid at the companys discretion in the event of Change in Control

termination the company will be required to pay outplacement expenses subject to
cap

of $12000

Includes $11091 of Mr Cotters contribution account and $10324 of the company contribution account

10
Includes $11091 of Mr Cotters contribution account and $25809 of the company contribution account Pursuant to the DEFCO acceleration of

vesting
would

require acquisition by third party

of 50% of our stock Mr Cotters DEFCO account will become
fully

vested upon change of control

11
No value reflected all unvested stock options as of July 32010 had an exercise price greater

than the closing price of $20.70 on such date

12
Reflects the value of 5909 currently unvested shares of restricted stock had such shares vested on July 2010 when the closing price of our common stock was $20.70

Compensation Paid to Board Members

During fiscal 2010 we paid each director who was not otherwise employed

by us an annual fee of $32000 along with $2000 fee for each meeting of

the Board of Directors attended in person $500 for those attended

telephonically and $1000 for each committee meeting of the Board of

Directors attended in person $500 for those attended telephonically We

also paid an additional $80000 retainer for the Chairman of the Board

$10000 retainer to the Chair of the Audit Committee and $5000 retainer

to the Chairs of the Compensation and Corporate Governance Committees

We did not increase fees paid to our non-employee directors in fiscal 2010

In addition directors who are not otherwise employed by the company are

eligible to participate
in the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan For fiscal 2010 each

director was granted an option to purchase 2400 shares of our common

stock at an option exercise price equal to the market
closing price

on the

date of grant Each option has 10-year term and becomes exercisable on

the first anniversary of the grant date Each new director receives one-time

grant of options to purchase 3000 shares of common stock upon
his or her

initial election to the Board of Directors Each such option has 10-year term

and vests in three equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of

the grant date Non-employee directors also receive an annual stock grant

in fiscal 2010 this annual stock grant was 1200 shares of common stock on

the first business day of the calendar year

Each director who is not an employee of the company is eligible to

participate in our Amended and Restated Director Deferred Compensation

Plan under which the non-employee director may elect to defer all or part

of his or her Board of Director fees and annual stock grants until the earlier

of specific date identified by the non-employee director or the termination

of his or her services as member of the board for any reason The amount

of any cash compensation deferred by non-employee director is converted

into number of stock units determined based upon the average of the

closing prices of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

during the ten business days preceding the relevant valuation date and is

credited to deferred compensation account maintained in his or her name

Deferred stock grants are converted on share-for-share basis on the date of

deferral and also credited to the non-employee directors account The

account will be credited with additional stock units also based on such

average market value upon the payment date for any
dividends declared on

our common stock At the end of the deferral period the amounts

accumulated in the deferred compensation account will be distributed in the

form of common stock under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan equal to the

number of whole stock units in the account and cash in lieu of any fractional

shares based on such average market value as of the distribution date

Non-employee directors are not eligible
to participate in any company-

sponsored pension plan

We also have in place stock ownership requirements for our non-employee

directors
Specifically

each of our directors is required to own minimum

number of shares equal to three times the directors annual base retainer

Once achieved each director must maintain this ownership level at all times

during the directors tenure with the company The Compensation Commit

tee annually reviews the progress against the ownership guidelines

In

-I

-I

Ii

-I
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Director Summary Compensation Table

The following table shows the compensation of the companys non-employee directors for services in all capacities to us in fiscal 2010 except as otherwise

indicated

Fees Earned or Paid Stock
Option

in Cash Awards Awards Total

Paul Baszucki4
36600 30624 15456 82680

John Bronson 51500 30624 15456 97580

Patrick
Doyle 47500 30624 15456 93580

Wayne Fortun
52500 30624 15456 98580

Ernest Mrozek
48500 30624 15456 94580

Lenny Pippin 96000 30624 23184 149808

Alice Richter
58500 30624 15456 104580

Lynn Crump-Caine 48500 30624 15456 94580

Includes amounts deferred at the directors election As discussed above directors can elect to defer all or part of their compensation

The dollar amounts
represent the aggregate grant date fair value of stock awards

granted during each of the years presented The
grant

date fair value of stock award is measured in

accordance with FASB ASC
Topic 718 See Note 11 to our audited financial statements for the year ended July 2010 Wayne Fortun and

Lynn Crump-Caine elected to defer the January

2010 stock award until the date of termination from the board

The dollar amounts represent the aggregate grant
date fair value of

option awards granted during each of the
years presented The

grant date fair value of an option award is measured in

accordance with FASR ASC Topic 718 See Note 11 to our audited financial statements for the
year

ended July 32010 Accounting estimates of forfeitures are not included in these
figures

On

January 42010 each director received an annual
grant

of 2400 options
with the

exception ofM Lenny Pippin who received
grant

of 3600 options with fair value of $6.44
per option

Assumptions used in the valuation of stock option and stock awards are set forth in Note 11 to our audited financial statements for the year ended July 2010 Mr Baszuckis January 2010

option grant
had not vested by his retirement from the board in May 2010 therefore the award was forfeited

Mr Baszucki retired from our board on May 2010
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PROPOSAL NUMBER

Approval of the Restated Equity
Incentive Plan 2010

In August 2010 our Board of Directors approved the GK Services Inc

Restated Equity Incentive Plan 2010 Restated Plan and recommended

shareholder approval thereof This plan restates our 2006 Equity Incentive

Plan 2006 Plan approved by shareholders at our November 16 2006

annual meeting When the 2006 Plan was approved we indicated that we

expected the 2000000 shares
originally

authorized under the plan to be

sufficient for anticipated grant needs for three to five years
We have made

four years of grants under the 2006 Plan and today only 442054 shares

remain available for grant If the Restated Plan is approved an additional

1000000 shares will be available for grant Thus we will have available

total of 1442054 shares for future grants As discussed more fully below

we believe that the additional shares authorized under the Restated Plan

will be sufficient for our equity compensation needs for the next three

fiscal years following approval of the plan The total number of authorized

shares under the Restated Plan will be 3000000 2000000 under the

2006 Plan and an additional 1000000 under the Restated Plan

We are seeking shareholder approval of the Restated Plan for number of

reasons including allowing us to increase share
availability

and continue

our equity compensation philosophy Our shareholders benefit when we

make equity grants to certain employees and our directors because equity

compensation motivates key employees and directors Equity grants also

provide an incentive to produce superior return to our shareholders by

offering an opportunity to participate in such gains In addition equity

grants facilitate stock ownership and reward the achievement of high

level of performance Equity compensation grants also assist us in our

ability to attract retain and motivate highly qualified individuals in

competitive market The 2006 Plan may not have sufficient shares available

to support our next annual grant cycle
in August 2011 therefore we are

requesting additional shares to ensure that we are able to continue to

execute our equity compensation philosophy

We are also seeking shareholder approval of the Restated Plan to enable it

to continue to be used as vehicle for awarding performance-based

compensation to our Chief Executive Officer and certain other senior

executive officers that will be deductible by us even if compensation for

these executives exceeds $1.0 million Section 162m of the Internal

Revenue Code requires shareholder approval of the criteria that can be

used to measure such awards The Restated Plan adds additional allowable

performance criteria If the Restated Plan is approved the shareholder

authorization will extend until the first shareholder meeting held in 2014

we would otherwise be required to obtain shareholder approval of the

performance measures by the 2011 annual shareholders meeting The

Restated Plan also provides that awards of performance units that entitle

participant to payment only of cash and not stock do not reduce the

number of shares available for issuance under the plan By approving the

Restated Plan shareholders also approve the issuance of incentive stock

options under the Restated Plan with respect to the shares available for

issuance as of the date of the approval of the Restated Plan by

shareholders

We currently anticipate that the Restated Plan will be sufficient for our

needs for the next three years Actual run rates and share usage may vary

depending on number of circumstances such as mergers and acquisi

tions changes in market compensation practices organic expansion of our

business turnover among plan participants and other factors some of

which cannot be presently anticipated and are outside of our control

We utilize equity awards to compensate recognize and retain certain

employees In connection with these awards and with an eye toward

ensuring that equity awards do not have an inappropriate dilutive impact

on our capital structure we annually evaluate the average percentage of

our outstanding common stock subject to awards made under our 2006

Plan also known as our burn rate We calculate our burn rate at the end

of each fiscal
year

and average that years burn rate with the burn rate

from the preceding two fiscal years to determine our three-year burn rate

As discussed in greater detail on page 29 during each of the three years

following adoption of the Restated Plan we have committed that our

three-year burn rate will not exceed 3.45% per year

We believe the terms of the Restated Plan are beneficial to shareholders

for number of reasons

the plan prohibits repricing without shareholder approval

the plan prohibits reload options

the plan requires options for shares to be priced at not less than the fair

market value of the shares on the grant date

the requested number of authorized shares covers relatively
short

expected duration which

minimizes undesirable consequences
of share overhang i.e the

total number of shares related to outstanding options and other

equity awards plus shares available for grant in relation to the total

number of shares outstanding and

gives shareholders the right to approve or reject
future plans in the

near term to prevent undesirable dilution or excessive share

overhang

the flexible nature of the plan gives us the ability to respond to market

trends by enabling us to grant wide variety of awards and adjust the

mix of awards between options and restricted stock

the plan does not include liberal share recycling provisions

the plan does not allow the re-grant
of shares that are used for tax

withholding or awards that are settled in cash other than performance

units that can never be settled in stock

the plan authorizes the compensation committee to include claw back

provisions in grants and

awards of stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock

units deferred stock units and stock cannot exceed one-third of the

total authorized shares

Description of Restated Plan

The following is summary description of the Restated Plan The entire

plan is attached as Annex to this proxy statement which is marked to
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show changes from the 2006 Plan The following description is
qualified

in

its entirety by reference to the plan

Plan Term The Restated Plan will become effective upon approval by

our shareholders Under the plan no incentive stock options may
be

granted after the tenth anniversary of the date the restatement of the plan

becomes effective Other awards can continue to be made until all

available shares have been used

Shares Authorized The Restated Plan authorizes the issuance of an

additional 1000000 shares of our common stock as that class may be

renamed or redesignated Awards of stock appreciation rights restricted

stock restricted stock units deferred stock units and stock cannot exceed

one-third of the total authorized shares The number of shares available

for issuance under the plan will not be reduced for awards which are

cancelled or which expire or are forfeited but will be reduced by the

portion of awards settled in cash or withheld in connection with the

exercise or settlement of an award e.g tax withholding However

performance units that at the time of issuance can be settled only for cash

and not for stock will not reduce the number of shares available for

issuance under the plan We do not currently have
any performance units

outstanding Net share counting will not be used to determine the number

of shares available for awards In addition shares tendered in connection

with the exercise of an award will not affect the number of shares available

for issuance under the plan

Eligibility
Our employees prospective employees directors or advisors

and those of our affiliates selected by the committee as described below

are eligible to become participants in the Restated Plan Currently we

intend to use the plan to make grants to approximately 50 employees and

directors although all of our employees and prospective employees are

eligible for awards under the plan

Award Types The committee may grant awards in the form of stock

options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units

deferred stock units performance shares performance units stock awards

or any other stock-based award

Individual ward Limits Subject to certain anti-dilution and other

adjustments no employee may be granted in any calendar year awards

covering more than 250000 shares In addition under the Restated Plan

the maximum amount payable to participant for performance units

intended to qualify as performance based compensation under

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code cannot exceed $2500000 in

any calendar year

Administration The Restated Plan is administered by the Compensation

Committee of our Board of Directors or another committee of two or more

directors established by the board from time to time such committee or

such other committee being referred to herein as the committee Under

stock exchange rules members of the committee are required to satisfy

the exchanges standards for independence subject to certain narrow

exceptions Subject to the provisions of the Restated Plan the committee

has the power

to prescribe amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the

plan and to define terms not otherwise defined in the plan

to determine which persons are eligible to participate to which of such

participants if any awards shall be granted and the timing of any such

awards

to grant awards to participants and determine the terms and conditions

of the awards including the number of shares subject to awards and

the exercise or purchase price
of such shares and the circumstances

under which awards become exercisable or vested or are forfeited or

expire and the extent to which reimbursement to the company or any

affiliate of
any payment of cash or shares under any award shall be

required

to establish and
verify

the extent of satisfaction of
any performance

goals or other conditions applicable to the grant issuance exercis

ability vesting and/or
ability

to retain any award

to prescribe and amend the terms of the agreements or other

communications evidencing awards made under the plan which need

not be identical and the terms of or form of any document or notice

required to be delivered to us by participants under the plan

to determine whether and the extent to which adjustments are

required as result of any reorganization reclassification combination

of shares stock split reverse stock
split spin-off or stock dividend

to interpret and construe the plan any rules and regulations under the

plan and the terms and conditions of any award granted under the

plan and to make exceptions to any such provisions in good faith and

for our benefit and

to make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for the

administration of the plan

Stock Options Stock options may be granted as non-qualified stock

options or incentive stock options and must be granted at
price no lower

than the fair market value of the stock on the day of grant Stock options

may be exercised during period of time fixed by the committee except

that no incentive stock option may be exercised more than ten years after

the day it is granted Otherwise the committee has discretion to determine

the number of shares subject to an option subject to the plans stated

limits the vesting expiration and forfeiture provisions for options the

restrictions on transferability
of an option and any other terms and

conditions otherwise consistent with the plan The exercise price of an

option may be paid through various means acceptable to the committee

including in cash or to the extent allowed by the committee by delivering

either physically or by attestation previously owned shares or by

delivering to the company the proceeds of shares of the companys stock

issuable under an option The plan prohibits re-pricing stock options

without shareholder approval including canceling previously awarded

stock options and re-granting them with lower exercise price and

prohibits granting stock options that include reload feature

Stock Appreciation Rights stock appreciation right
entitles partic

ipant to receive payment in cash common stock or combination of

both in an amount equal to the difference between the fair market value

of the stock at the time of exercise and the exercise
price

of the award

which
may not be lower than the fair market value of our common stock
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any award of performance shares or performance units including the
on the day of grant Stock appreciation rights may

be exercised during the

period of time after the grant date fixed by the committee Stock

appreciation rights may be granted either in tandem with or as

component of other awards granted under the Restated Plan or not in

conjunction with other awards and may but need not relate to
specific

option Stock appreciation rights are generally subject to the same terms

and limitations as options or when granted in tandem with other awards

to the same terms as those other awards Stock appreciation rights cannot

be re-priced without shareholder approval including canceling previously

awarded stock appreciation rights and re-granting them with lower

exercise price

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units Deferred Stock Units and Stock

Awards An award of restricted stock consists of specified number of

shares of our common stock that are subject to restrictions on transfer

conditions of forfeiture and any other terms and conditions for periods

determined by the committee Prior to the termination of the restrictions

participant may vote and receive dividends on the restricted stock but

may not sell or otherwise transfer the shares The committee may also

make stock awards of common stock without restrictions

An award of restricted stock units entitles participant to receive

specified number of shares of common stock upon the expiration of

stated vesting period It may also include the
right

to dividend equivalents

if and as so determined by the committee Unless the committee

determines otherwise once restricted stock unit vests the shares of

common stock specified in the award will be issued to the participant

participant who has been awarded restricted stock units may not vote the

shares of common stock subject to the units until the shares are issued

Until the vesting period applicable to restricted stock unit award expires

and the shares are issued the participant also may not transfer or

encumber any interest in the restricted stock unit or in any related dividend

equivalents

An award of deferred stock units entitles participant to receive specified

number of shares of common stock at specified time in the future It

may

also include the
right

to dividend equivalents if and as so determined by

the committee Unless the committee determines otherwise at the

specified future time the shares of common stock specified in the award

will be issued to the participant participant who has been awarded

deferred stock units may not vote the shares of common stock subject to

the units until the shares are issued Until the shares are issued the

participant also
may not transfer or encumber any interest in the deferred

stock unit or in any related dividend equivalents The committee has

discretion to determine the terms of any award of restricted stock

restricted stock units or deferred stock units including the number of

shares subject to the award subject to the plans stated limits and the

minimum period if

any over which the award may vest

Performance Shares and Performance Units grant of performance

shares or performance units entitles participant to receive cash common

stock which may be in the form of restricted stock or restricted stock unit

or combination of both based on the degree of achievement of pre

established performance targets over performance cycle
determined by

the committee The committee has discretion to determine the terms of

maximum amount payable subject to the plans stated limits the

performance period performance criteria which may be based on financial

and/or operational performance and/or personal performance evaluations

and level of achievement versus these criteria the timing of any payment

restrictions on an award of performance shares or performance units prior

to actual payment
forfeiture provisions and any other terms and

conditions consistent with the plan The committee may specify that all or

portion of an award of performance shares or performance units is

intended to
satisfy

the requirements for performance-based compensa

tion under Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code using qualifying

performance criteria described below Performance units that at the time

of issuance are designated to be settled only in cash and not in stock do

not reduce the number of shares available for issuance under the plan

Qualifying Performance Criteria The committee may establish perfor

mance criteria and the level of achievement against such criteria that

determines the number of shares of common stock to be granted retained

vested issued or issuable under or in settlement of or the amount payable

pursuant to an award The criteria may be based on qualifying performance

criteria or other standards of financial performance and/or personal

performance evaluations The committee may also specify percentage of

an award that is intended to satisfy
the requirements for performance-

based compensation under Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code

The performance criteria for that portion of an award must be measure

based on one or more qualifying performance criteria selected by the

committee and specified at the time the award is granted Even if

performance goals are satisfied the committee may
reduce the number of

shares issued under or the amount paid under an award on the basis of

such further considerations as the committee in its sole discretion

determines

Qualifying performance criteria will be any one or more of the following

performance criteria either individually alternatively or in any combina

tion applied to either the company as whole or to business unit or

subsidiary either individually alternatively or in any combination and

measured either annually or cumulatively over period of
years on an

absolute basis or relative to pre-established target to previous years

results or to designated comparison group in each case as specified by

the committee in the award

cash flow

earnings per share

earnings before interest taxes and amortization

share price performance

return on capital

return on assets or net assets

revenue

net earnings or net income

operating income or net operating income
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operating margin or profit margin

return on operating revenue

return on invested capital

market segment share

brand recognition/acceptance

customer satisfaction

return on equity

total shareholder return

growth in sales

productivity ratios

expense targets

working capital targets or

operating efficiencies

The committee may appropriately adjust any evaluation of performance

under qualifying performance criterion to exclude any of the following

events that occurs during performance cycle

asset write-down

litigation or claim judgments or settlements

the effect of changes in or under provisions of tax laws accounting

principles or other such laws or provisions affecting reported results

accruals for reorganizations or restructuring programs and

any extraordinary nonrecurring items described in FASB Accounting

Standards Codification 255-20 formerly Accounting Principles
Board

Opinion No 30 and/or in managements discussion and analysis of

financial condition and results of operations appearing in our annual

report to shareholders for the applicable year

Any qualifying performance criteria must be objectively determinable

must be established by the committee while the outcome for the

performance cycle is substantially uncertain and while no more than

90 days or if less 25% of the number of days in the performance cycle

have passed and must otherwise meet the requirements of Section 162m
of the Internal Revenue Code

Burn Rate Consistent with guidance suggested by Institutional Share

holder Services Inc ISS we determine the average annual percentage

of our outstanding common stock subject to awards made under our 2006

Plan also known as our burn rate by adding the number of options and

the number of full value shares awarded under the plan and dividing that

amount by the weighted average common shares outstanding Full value

shares are shares in which the recipient receives the entire value of the

award upon vesting e.g restricted stock consistent with ISS suggested

guidance we determine the number of full value shares by multiplying the

actual number of restricted shares awarded times multiplier that is

determined based on the volatility of our stock price over 200 day period

In fiscal 2010 this multiplier was 2.5

Since adoption of the 2006 Plan our three-year burn rate has been well

within caps suggested by ISS except in fiscal 2010 when it was 3.68% As

the table below illustrates ISS suggested three-year burn rate in fiscal

2010 was significantly lower than in previous years primarily resulting

from extraordinary market
volatility Further as discussed above we

expect that the number of additional authorized shares requested under

the Restated Plan will suffice for anticipated awards for the next three

years During this time we fully expect to be within ISS suggested burn

rate guidance

55 Suggested

Three-Year GK Three-Year

Fiscal Year Buru Rate Burn Rate

2008 4.05 3.27

2009 4.01 3.21

2010 2.89 3.68

In the table above the three-year burn rate calculation for fiscal 2008

includes only two years of grants made under the 2006 Plan as the plan

was not approved until August 2006

In light of prevailing continued difficult economic conditions and significant

market
volatility

ISS recognized that the 2010 three-year burn rate caps

decreased for Russell 3000 companies in our Global Industrial Classification

Standards Peer Group 2020 Commercial Services and Supplies As such

ISS provided additional
flexibility

in terms of how companies may meet its

suggested burn rate caps Accordingly we have committed that during

each of the three years following adoption of the Restated Plan our three-

year burn rate will not exceed 3.45% ISS average burn rate cap for 2009

and 2010 This commitment will protect our shareholders against inappro

priate levels of dilution
resulting

from equity awards and maintain our

ability to attract and retain highly qualified employees

Transferability Awards are not transferable or assignable unless pro

vided otherwise by the committee The committee may grant or amend an

award to allow transfer or assignment to certain family members and in

other limited circumstances

Amendment and Termination Our board or the committee may modify

suspend or terminate the plan but may not without the
prior approval of

our shareholders make any change to the plan that increases the total

amount of common stock which may be awarded except to reflect

changes in capitalization increases the individual maximum award limits

except to reflect changes in capitalization changes the class of persons

eligible to participate reduces the exercise price of outstanding stock

options or stock appreciation rights or otherwise amends the plan in
any

manner requiring shareholder approval by law or under the applicable

exchange listing requirements

International Participants The committee has the authority to adjust the

terms of the plan or awards to participants who reside or work outside the

United States and who are not NEOs in order to conform to local law or to

obtain any favorable tax treatment for the participant or the
company or

an affiliate
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Miscellaneous On September 21 2010 the closing market price of

share of our common stock was $22.66 and there were 1067197 stock

option awards outstanding under the 2006 Plan Information about restricted

stock and options granted in 2010 under the 2006 Plan to our NEOs can be

found in the table under the heading Grants of Plan Based Awards in Fiscal

2010 on page 14 Under the 2006 Plan in fiscal year 2010 we made the

following grants 65810 shares of restricted stock and options covering

94402 shares to current executive officers including NEOs as group

43055 shares of restricted stock and options covering 58084 shares to all

employees excluding executive officers and NEOs as group and

9600 shares of restricted stock and options covering 20400 shares to our

non-employee directors Additionally on August 19 2010 the company

granted 86595 shares of restricted stock and granted options covering

203256 shares to executive officers including NEOs as group and granted

35407 shares of restricted stock and options covering 53755 shares to all

employees excluding executive officers and NEO5 as group We currently

have 442054 shares remaining available for future use

Additional information about the 2006 Plan is provided under Equity

Compensation Plan Information on page 31

No information can be provided with respect to options or awards that

may be granted in the future under the Restated Plan Such awards are

within the discretion of the committee The committee has not determined

future awards or who might receive them

Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following discussion of the federal income tax consequences of the

Restated Plan is intended to be summary
of applicable federal law as

currently in effect Foreign state and local tax consequences may differ and

may be amended or interpreted differently during the term of the Restated

Plan or of awards granted thereunder Because the federal income tax rules

governing awards and related payments are complex and subject to frequent

change award holders are advised to consult their individual tax advisors

Non-Qualified Stock Options participant who is granted non-

qualified stock option will not recognize income and we will not be

allowed deduction at the time the option is granted When participant

exercises non-qualified stock option the difference between the exercise

price
and

any higher market value of the stock on the date of exercise the

stock option gains will be ordinary income to the participant and will be

allowed as deduction for federal income tax purposes to the company or

subsidiary The company or subsidiary is obligated to report and if the

participant is or was an employee withhold on the amount of ordinary

income The
capital gain holding period of the shares acquired will begin

one day after the date the stock option is exercised When participant

disposes of shares acquired by the exercise of the option any amount

received that is more than the fair market value of the shares on the

exercise date will be treated as short-term or long-term capital gain

depending upon the holding period of the shares If the amount received is

less than the market value of the shares on the exercise date the loss will

be treated as short-term or long-term capital loss depending upon the

holding period of the shares

Incentive Stock Options Only employees can be issued incentive stock

options An employee who is granted an incentive stock option also will

not recognize income and the company will not be allowed deduction at

the time the option is granted When participant exercises an incentive

stock option while employed by the company or subsidiary or within the

three-month period one-year period in the case of disability after his or

her employment ends the participant will not recognize any ordinary

income at that time However any excess of the fair market value of the

shares acquired by such exercise over the exercise
price

will be an item of

tax preference for purposes
of

any
federal alternative minimum tax

applicable to individuals If the shares acquired upon exercise are disposed

of more than two years after the date of grant and one year
after the date

of transfer of the shares to the participant statutory holding periods

any
sale proceeds that exceed the total exercise price

of these shares will

be long-term capital gain Except in the event of the optionees death if

the shares are disposed of prior to the expiration of the statutory holding

periods Disqualifying Disposition generally the amount by which the

fair market value of the shares at the time of exercise exceeds the total

exercise price will be ordinary income If Disqualifying Disposition occurs

we will be entitled to federal income tax deduction for similar amount

StockAppreciation Rights The grant of stock appreciation right

payable is generally not taxable event for participant Upon exercise of

the appreciation right the participant will generally recognize ordinary

income equal to the fair market value of any
shares or cash received We

will be entitled to tax deduction at the same time for the same amount

and will be obligated to report and if the participant is or was an

employee withhold on that amount The participants later sale of any

shares received generally will give rise to
capital gain or loss equal to the

difference between the sale price
and the ordinary income recognized

when the participant received the shares and these capital gains or

losses will be treated as short-term or long-term capital gains or losses

depending upon the holding period of the shares

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units Deferred Stock Units Performance

Shares and Stock Awards Grantees of restricted stock performance

shares or stock awards to the extent such stock awards are unvested at

the time of grant do not recognize income at the time of the grant of such

awards Grantees of restricted stock units and deferred stock units also do

not recognize income at the time of the grant of the awards However

when the award vests for restricted stock performance shares or stock

awards or is paid for restricted stock units or deferred stock units the

grantee generally recognizes ordinary income in an amount equal to the

fair market value of the stock or cash at such time We will receive

corresponding deduction and will be required to report and if the

participant is or was an employee withhold at that time

participant could within 30 days after the date of an award of restricted

stock performance shares or stock awards but not an award of restricted

stock units or deferred stock units elect to report compensation income

for the tax year
in which the award occurs If the participant makes such

an election the amount of compensation income would be the value of

the award at the time of grant Any later appreciation in the value of the

award would be treated as capital gain and realized only upon
the sale of

the stock subject to the award If however the award is forfeited after the

participant makes such an election the participant would not be allowed

any
deduction for the amount earlier taken into income Upon the sale of
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shares subject to the award participant would realize capital gain or

loss in the amount of the difference between the sale
price

and the value

of the shares previously reported by the participant as compensation

income We would receive deduction at the time and in the amount of

the compensation income included by the participant We would also be

required to report and if the participant is or was an employee withhold

on that compensation income

Performance Units participant will not have taxable income upon the

grant of contingent right to performance unit Rather taxation will be

postponed until the performance unit becomes payable At that time the

participant will recognize ordinary income equal to the value of the

amount then payable We would receive deduction at the time and in

the amount of the compensation income included by the participant We

would also be required to report and if the participant is or was an

employee withhold on that compensation income

Tax Withholding In connection with awards under the plan the

company may withhold from any cash otherwise payable to participant

or require participant to remit to the
company an amount sufficient to

satisfy federal state local and foreign withholding taxes Tax withholding

obligations could be satisfied by withholding shares to be received upon

exercise of an option or stock appreciation right the vesting of restricted

stock performance share or stock award or the payment of restricted

stock unit deferred stock unit or performance unit or with the consent of

the committee by delivery to the company of previously owned shares of

common stock We are permitted to reasonably delay the issuance or

delivery of shares if we need to do so to meet our withholding obligations

Company Deduction and Section 162m For our NEOs Section 162m

of the Internal Revenue Code limits the amount of compensation otherwise

deductible by us and our subsidiaries for such year to $1000000 for each

such individual except to the extent that such compensation is perfor

mance-based compensation We expect that non-qualified stock options

incentive stock options and stock appreciation rights should qualify as

performance-based compensation We also expect to issue performance

units that will be settled only in cash and not in stock to our Chief

Executive Officer and possibly other NEOs that will also qualify as

performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162m of the

Internal Revenue Code The committee may establish performance condi

tions and other terms with respect to grants of restricted stock restricted

stock units performance shares and performance units in order to qualify

such grants as performance-based compensation for
purposes of this

section At the time of grant the committee will determine the extent to

which such grant will be performance-based compensation for purposes of

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code In addition the committee

will
certify

the extent to which the qualifying performance criteria have

been satisfied before
any payment is made that is intended to qualify as

performance-based compensation

Important Disclaimer Regarding Tax Advice Under Treasury Cfrcular

230 The tax discussion set forth in this proxy statement is intended only

as general guide to the possible tax consequences of incentives issued

under the plan Such tax discussion is not intended or written to be used

and cannot be used by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties

that may be imposed on the taxpayer Each recipient of awards under the

plan should seek tax advice based on such recipients partkular circum

stances from an independent tax advisor

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain information as of July 32010 with respect to equity compensation plans under which securities are authorized for issuance

Number of

Securities

Remaining

Available for

Future Issuance

Number of Under
Equity

Securities to be
Weighted- Compensation

Issued Upon Average Exercise Plans
Excluding

Exercise of Price of Securities

Outstanding Outstanding Reflected in

Options Options
Column A1

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders21

Employee Plans3
628842 34.94

1996 Directors Stock Option Plan 40500 35.79

2006
Equity Compensation Plan 811735 33.40 817158

Total
1481077 817158

Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders

None

Total

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for our fiscal
year

ended
July 32010 in Item Sand in the Share Based Payment Plans footnote to our financial statements we inadvertently misstated

the number of equity awards remaining available for
grant as 541196 This number should have been 817158 as is stated above

Additionally in August 2010 we granted 122002 shares of

restricted stock and options covering 257011 shares of common stock to our employees As result as of September 72010 only 442054 shares remained available for future issuance under

the 2006 Plan

See Note 11 to the audited financial statements for the fiscal
year

ended
July 32010

Includes our 1989 Stock Option and Compensation Plan and 1998 Stock Option and
Compensation

Plan
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To Ratify the Appointment of Independent Auditors

Our Board of Directors and management are committed to the quality

integrity
and transparency of the companys financial reports Independent

auditors play an important part in our system of financial control In

accordance with the duties set forth in its written charter the Audit

Committee of our Board of Directors has appointed Ernst Young LLP as

our independent auditors for the 2011 fiscal year representative of

Ernst Young will attend this years annual meeting and will be available

to respond to appropriate questions from shareholders and also will have

the opportunity to make statement if he or she desires to do so

If the shareholders do not ratify the appointment of Ernst Young the

Audit Committee may reconsider its selection but is not required to do so

Notwithstanding the proposed ratification of the appointment of Ernst

Young by the shareholders the Audit Committee in its discretion may

direct the appointment of new independent auditors at any time during

the year without notice to or the consent of the shareholders if the Audit

Committee determines that such change would be in our best interest

Fees Billed to Company by Auditors

Set forth below are the fees billed by Ernst Young for the fiscal years

ended July 2010 and June 27 2009

Fiscal Year

Ended

June 27 2009

753789

9173

209446

Audit Fees1 548986

Audit-Related Fees2 9424

Tax Fees3 372600

All Other Fees 7840

Total 938850 972408

Represents
amounts related to the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements

and internal control over financial reporting and the review of our consolidated financial

statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-0

Represents
amounts reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our

consolidated financial statements which are not reported under the Audit Fees category

Represents
fees related to tax compliance and tax planning services

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has reviewed the services

described in footnotes and above provided by Ernst Young as well

as the amounts billed for such services and after consideration has

determined that the receipt of these fees by Ernst Young is compatible

with the provision of independent audit services The Audit Committee has

discussed these services and fees with Ernst Young and management to

determine that they are appropriate under applicable rules and regulations

Pre-Approval Policy

All services performed by Ernst Young have been pre-approved in accordance

with the Audit Committee charter The charter provides that all audit and non-

audit accounting services that are permitted to be performed by our

independent accountant under applicable rules and regulations must be pre

approved by the Audit Committee or by designated independent members of

the Audit Committee other than with respect to de minimus exceptions

permitted under Section 202 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
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Prior to or as soon as practicable following the beginning of each fiscal year

description of audit audit-related tax and other services expected to be

performed by Ernst Young in the following fiscal year is presented to the

Audit Committee for approval Following such approval any requests for

audit audit-related tax and other services not presented and pre-approved

must be submitted to the Audit Committee for specific pre-approval

Normally pre-approval is provided at regularly
scheduled meetings Flow-

ever the authority to grant specific pre-approval between meetings as

necessary may be delegated to one or more members of the Audit

Committee who are independent directors In the event such authority is so

delegated the Audit Committee must be updated at the next
regularly

scheduled meeting with respect to any services that were granted specific

pre-approval by delegation During the fiscal year 2010 the Audit Committee

has functioned in conformance with these procedures

GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Board of Directors and Committees

Board of Directors

In May 2009 our board made the decision to separate the office of

Chairman of the Board from the office of Chief Executive Officer and

appointed Mr Lenny Pippin Chairman of the Board As Chairman

Mr Pippins primary responsibilities
include managing the board facilitat

ing communication among directors and between the board and manage

ment leading Chief Executive Officer succession planning and leading the

board self-evaluation process We believe our board structure supported

the transition in corporate leadership in 2009

Our board understands that there is no single generally accepted approach

to providing board leadership and that given the dynamic and competitive

environment in which we operate the right board leadership structure

may vary as circumstances warrant As such our board will review

periodically whether to retain non-executive in the Chair position This

review will consider the pros
and cons of alternative leadership structures

in light of our operating and governance environment at the time with

the goal of achieving the optimal model for effective oversight of

management by our board

Our board has also established the following committees to assist with

providing oversight to the company an Audit Committee Compensation

Committee and Corporate Governance Committee Our board has adopted

written charter for each of its committees copies of which are available

at our website at http//www.gkservices.com

Our board held five meetings during fiscal 2010 all of which were held in

person
and took action by written consent one time No director attended

fewer than 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the board and

the committees of the board on which such director served during the

2010 fiscal year

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings of Shareholders

We do not have formal
policy

with respect to attendance by board members

at the annual meeting of shareholders but all directors are encouraged to

attend and we attempt to coordinate scheduling of our annual meeting of

Fiscal Year

Ended

July 32010



shareholders to accommodate attendance by directors All but one of our

directors attended our fiscal 2009 annual meeting of shareholders

Independence

With the exception of Messrs Milroy and Wright all of the members of our

board are independent within the meaning of applicable NASDAQ Global

Select Market and SEC rules When considering the independence of

directors the board determined that Mr Doyles position as President and

Chief Executive Officer of Dominos Pizza Inc which is customer of the

company did not impair the independence of Mr Doyle All of the

transactions with Dominos Pizza were conducted on arms length terms in

the ordinary course of business and the amount involved with the

transactions represent less than 1% of the revenues of Dominos Pizza

Board Oversight of Company Risk

We
rely on our comprehensive enterprise risk management process ERM

to aggregate monitor measure and manage risks Through our ERM

process our board and management work together to identify assess and

manage
risks that

may
affect our ability

to execute our corporate strategy

and fulfill our business objectives As part of our ERM process

management regularly reviews the effectiveness of our risk management

practices and capabilities to determine our risk exposure Management

then elevates certain key risks for discussion at the board level Our board

with the assistance of management also annually assesses the effective

ness of our ERM program Our ERM program is overseen by our board our

Vice President and General Counsel who is member of our executive

team and our Director of Internal Audit share day-to-day management

responsibility
for this program

Additionally our Audit Committee is primarily responsible for oversight of

our policies
and practices concerning internal control over financial

reporting and risk assessments related to such internal controls Our Audit

Committee reviews and takes appropriate action with respect to the

companys annual and quarterly financial statements the internal audit

program and disclosures made with respect to the companys internal

controls To facilitate these risk oversight responsibilities the committee

receives regular briefings from members of management on the internal

audit plan Sarbanes-Oxley 404 compliance significant litigation ethics

program matters and health safety and environmental matters The

committee also regularly holds executive sessions with representatives of

our independent public accounting firm

In addition to the Audit Committees role in financial risk oversight each of

the other board committees considers risk as it relates to its
particular

areas of responsibility Our Compensation Committee oversees and admin

isters our incentive and equity compensation programs to ensure that the

programs create incentives for strong operational performance and for the

long-term benefit of the company and its shareholders without incentiviz

ing undue risk The committee receives regular briefings from our Senior

Vice President Human Resources our Vice President and General Counsel

our Director of Compensation and Benefits and the committees retained

compensation consultant on compensation matters Finally our Corporate

Governance Committee oversees risks related to board composition and
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governance matters and receives regular briefings from our Vice President

and General Counsel

Corporate Governance Committee

We have established Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of

Directors comprised solely
of independent directors as defined by

applicable rules and regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission

NASDAQ Global Select Market and other relevant regulatory bodies one of

whom also serves on the Compensation Committee of the board The

primary roles of the Corporate Governance Committee are to monitor the

effectiveness of the board in carrying out certain responsibilities to assure

appropriate board composition to recommend Chief Executive Officer

and review annually the performance of the companys Chief Executive

Officer and the operation of the Board of Directors including its Chairman

and its various committees and to assure that succession plans for senior

management are developed and implemented In addition the Corporate

Governance Committee presents qualified director candidates to the full

board and considers qualified nominees recommended by shareholders

The Corporate Governance Committee which presently consists of

Chair Lenny Pippin and Mr Bronson held four meetings during fiscal

2010 all of which were held in person and took action by written consent

one time The Corporate Governance Committee has one member in

common with the Compensation Committee The Chair and members of

the Corporate Governance Committee are appointed by our board at its

annual organizational meeting

Audit Committee

We have established an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors which

assists the board in fulfilling certain oversight responsibilities
and consists

solely
of independent directors The Audit Committee operates pursuant to

written charter adopted by the board As set forth in the charter the

primary responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include serving as an

independent and objective party to monitor our financial reporting process

and the system of internal control over financial reporting reviewing and

appraising the audit results of our independent auditors and internal audit

department and providing an open avenue of communication among the

independent auditors financial and senior management the internal audit

department and our board The charter also requires that the Audit

Committee appoint our independent auditors and review and pre-approve

the performance of all audit and non-audit accounting services to be

performed by our independent auditors other than services
falling

within

the de minimus exceptions permitted under Section 202 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act

The Audit Committee which presently consists of Chair Alice Richter

Ms Crump-Caine and Mr Mrozek held ten meetings during fiscal 2010

three of which were held in person
and seven of which were conducted by

telephone and did not take action by written consent The Audit

Committee met and held discussions with management and representa

tives from Ernst Young prior to the public release of earnings information

for each of our completed fiscal periods and
prior

to each Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q and Annual Report on Form 10-K being filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission



Our Board of Directors has determined that two members of the Audit

Committee specifically Ms Richter and Mr Mrozek are Audit Committee

Financial Experts as that term is defined in Item 4O7d5 of Regula

tion S-K promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 In

addition each member of the Audit Committee is an independent

director as such term is defined in Rule 5605a2 of the NASDAQ Global

Select Markets
listing standards and meets the criteria for independence

set forth in Rule 56O5c2 of the NASDAQ Global Select Markets
listing

standards and Rule 1OA-3b1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Our Board of Directors has also determined that each of the Audit

Committee members is able to read and understand fundamental financial

statements and that at least one member of the Audit Committee has past

employment experience in finance or accounting

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors which presently

consists of Chair Wayne Fortun and Messrs Bronson and Doyle held six

meetings during fiscal 2010 five of which were held in person and one of

which was conducted by telephone and did not take action by written

consent All members of the Compensation Committee are independent

directors within the meaning of the NASDAQ Global Select Markets

Rule 5605a2 and non-employee directors within the meaning of

Rule 16b-3b3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The Compen

sation Committee reviews our remuneration
policies

and practices and

makes recommendations to our board in connection with all compensation

matters affecting our NEOs

Ability of Shareholders to Communkate with the Companys
Board of Dire ctors

We have established means for shareholders and others to communicate

with our board If shareholder wishes to address matter regarding our

financial statements accounting practices or internal controls the matter

should be submitted in writing addressed to the Chair of the Audit

Committee in care of the Corporate Secretary at our headquarters address

If the matter relates to our governance practices business ethics or

corporate conduct it should be submitted in writing addressed to the Chair

of the Corporate Governance Committee in care of the Corporate Secretary

at our headquarters address If the matter relates to our compensation

practices it should be submitted in writing addressed to the Chair of the

Compensation Committee in care of the Corporate Secretary at our

headquarters address If shareholder is unsure where to direct

communication the shareholder may direct it in writing to the Chairman

of the Board of Directors or to any one of the independent directors of the

company in care of the Corporate Secretary at our headquarters address

As appropriate these shareholder communications will be forwarded by

the Corporate Secretary to the appropriate addressee

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed our audited consolidated financial

statements for the last fiscal year and has discussed them with manage

ment and the independent registered public accounting firm

Specifically the Audit Committee has discussed with Ernst Young the

matters required to be discussed by statement on Auditing Standards

No 61 as amended AICPA Professional Standards Vol AU section 380

as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in

Rule 32001

The Audit Committee has received and reviewed the written disclosures

and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm

required by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board regarding the independent accountants communication

with the audit committee concerning independence and has discussed

with the independent accountant the independent accountants indepen

dence including consideration of the compatibility of non-audit services

with such independence

The Audit Committee based on the review and discussions described above

with management and Ernst Young has recommended to our Board of

Directors which adopted this recommendation that the audited consoli

dated financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K

for fiscal 2010 for
filing

with the Securities and Exchange Commission

As reported

LYNN CRUMP-CAINE

ERNESTJ MROZEK

ALICE RICHTER

The Audit Committee Report set forth above will not be deemed to be

incorporated by reference into any filing
under the Securities Act of 1933

or under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the extent that we

spedfically incorporate such reports by reference and such report will not

otherwise be deemed to be
soliciting

materials or to be filed under such

acts

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No member of our Compensation Committee was during fiscal 2010 an

officer former officer or employee of the company or any of its subsidiar

ies During fiscal 2010 none of our executive officers served as member

of the compensation committee of another entity one of whose

executive officers served on the Compensation Committee of our Board of

Directors ii the board of directors of another entity one of whose

executive officers served on the Compensation Committee of our Board of

Directors or iii the compensation committee or other board committee

performing equivalent functions or in the absence of any such committee

the entire board of directors of another entity one of whose executive

officers served as member of our Board of Directors

Consideration of Director Candidates

The Corporate Governance Committee together with the Chairman of the

Board and other directors recruits director candidates and presents

qualified candidates to the board for consideration At each annual

shareholders meeting the board proposes to the shareholders slate of

nominees for election or re-election to the board Shareholders may

propose director nominees for consideration by the Corporate Governance

Committee by submitting recommendation in writing to the Chair of the

Corporate Governance Committee in care of our Corporate Secretary at our

headquarters address We use third party search firms to locate and

evaluate qualified candidates

-I

-I

Ii

-I
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Governance Committee will consider reports of the interviews and the
Qualified director candidates whether identified by shareholders or other

wise will be considered without regard to race color religion sex

ancestry national origin or disability The Corporate Governance Commit

tee will consider each candidates general business and industry experience

his or her
ability

to act on behalf of shareholders overall board diversity

potential concerns regarding independence or conflicts of interest and

other factors relevant in evaluating board nominees The Corporate

Governance Committee seeks directors who represent mix of back

grounds and experiences that will enhance the quality of the boards

deliberations and decisions The Corporate Governance Committee consid

ers number of factors in its evaluation of diversity including diversity

with respect to viewpoint skills experience community involvement

geography age race gender and ethnicity Based on these factors and the

qualifications and background of each director we believe the current

composition of our board is diverse

If the Corporate Governance Committee approves
candidate for further

review following an initial screening the Corporate Governance Committee

will establish an interview process for the candidate Generally the

candidate will meet with at least majority of the members of the

Corporate Governance Committee along with the Chairman of the Board

and our Chief Executive Officer Contemporaneously with the interview

process
the Corporate Governance Committee will conduct comprehen

sive conflicts-of-interest assessment of the candidate The Corporate

conflicts-of-interest assessment to determine whether to recommend the

candidate to the board The Corporate Governance Committee will also

take into consideration the candidates personal attributes including

personal integrity and concern for the companys success and welfare

willingness to apply sound and independent business judgment awareness

of directors vital role in our good corporate citizenship and image time

available for meetings and consultation on company matters and willing

ness to assume broad fiduciary responsibility

Shareholders who wish to nominate candidate for election to our board at

the annual meeting must comply with our advance notice bylaw described

elsewhere in this proxy statement

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted Code of Conduct for our Board of Directors and Code

of Ethical Conduct for Senior Executives and Financial Managers The latter

of these codes as applied to our principal
financial officers constitutes our

code of ethics within the meaning of Section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act These codes are posted on our website at http//www.gkservices.com

We will promptly disclose on our website amendments to certain

provisions of these codes and
any

waivers of provisions of these codes

required to be disclosed under the rules of the SEC or the NASDAQ Global

Select Market
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Voting Securities and Prindpal Holders Thereof

The following table sets forth as of September 72010 the record date for the annual meeting certain information with regard to the beneficial ownership

of our common stock and the voting power resulting from the ownership of such stock by all persons known by us to be the owner of record or

beneficially of more than 5% of our outstanding common stock ii each of our directors and each of the nominees for election to our board iii each

NEO and iv all executive officers and directors as group without regard to whether such persons are also reporting persons for purposes of Section 16a
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Unless otherwise indicated the address of each of the following persons is 5995 Opus Parkway

Minnetonka Minnesota 55343

Class Common Stock

Number of Percent

Name of Beneficial Owner
Shares of Class

Wright Jeffrey 140482

Milroy Douglas 138382

Wood Robert 0w
86529

Curran limothy 54103

Fortun Wayne 26535

Pippin Lenny71 21200

Cotter Jeffrey 19452

Bronson John
19000

Richter Alice 18500

Doyle Patrick10
17000

Mrozek Ernest JO
17000

Crump-Caine Lynn1B 5600

All executive officers and directors as group 12 persons112 563783 3.04%

Dimensional Fund Advisors Inc.13

6300 Bee Cave Road

Austin IX 78746 1562448 841%

Barclays
Global Investors NA13

400 Howard Street

San Francisco CA 94105 401 367 755%

Rowe Price Associates lnc.13

100 East Pratt Street

Baltimore MD 21202
1240240 6.68%

-I

Indicates an amount less than 1%

en
Unless otherwise noted each

person
or

group
identified

possesses
sole

voting
and investment power with respect to the shares shown opposite the name of such

person or group

Includes 71786 shares
subject

to stock
options that are exercisable within 60 days and 42306 shares of unvested restricted stock Also includes 21930 shares for which Mr Wright shares voting

power with his spouse

Includes 51241 shares subject to stock
options that are exercisable within 60 days and 67065 shares of unvested restricted stock Also includes 3000 shares for which Mr Milroy shares voting

power with his spouse

Includes 51326 shares subject to stock
options that are exercisable within 60 days and 22019 shares of unvested restricted stock Also includes 4720 shares pledged as security against line of

credit

Includes 29764 shares
subject to stock

options that are exercisable within 60 days and 19215 shares of unvested restricted stock

Includes 13700 shares subject to stock options that are exercisable within 60 days

Includes 18300 shares
subject to stock

options that are exercisable within 60 days

Includes 6424 shares subject to stock options that are exercisable within 60 days and 11563 shares of unvested restricted stock

Includes 12700 shares
subject to stock

options that are exercisable within 60 days

10
Includes 11700 shares subject to stock options that are exercisable within 60 days

Includes 4400 shares subject to stock
options

that are exercisable within 60 days

12
Includes 295741 shares subject to stock options that are exercisable within 60

days
and 162168 shares of unvested restricted stock

13
Based solely upon the most recent report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

pursuant
to Rule 13f-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

The foregoing footnotes are provided for informational purposes only and each person disclaims beneficial ownership of shares owned by any member of

his or her family or held in trust for
any other person including family members or held by family limited partnership or foundation

Certain Transactions interest Our boards related review and approval policies are not in writing

Our board reviews and approves any transactions with related parties in but in conducting such reviews and approving such transactions among

which the related person has or will have material direct or indirect other things our board considers the type of transaction proposed
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appropriate regulatory requirements the monetary value of the transac

tion the nature of the goods and/or services involved and whether the

transaction may influence the related persons ability to exercise indepen

dent business judgment when conducting the companys business and

affairs

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our officers

and directors and persons who own more than 10% of registered class

of our equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in

ownership with the SEC and the NASDAQ Global Select Market Officers

directors and greater than 10% shareholders are required by SEC regula

tions to furnish us with copies of all Section 16a forms they file

Based solely on our review of the copies of such forms furnished to the

company or written representations that no Forms were required we

believe that during fiscal 2010 our officers directors and greater than 10%

beneficial owners complied with all applicable Section 16a filing

requirements

Proposals of Shareholders for the 2011 Annual Meeting

Rule 14a-8

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 some

shareholder proposals may be
eligible

for inclusion in our 2011 proxy

statement These shareholder proposals must be submitted along with

proof of ownership of our stock in accordance with Rule 14a-8b2 to our

principal executive offices in care of our Corporate Secretary Failure to

deliver proposal by one of these means may result in it not being

deemed timely received We must receive all submissions no later than

June 72011 Submitting shareholder proposal does not guarantee that

we will include it in our proxy statement

Advance Notice Provision

Our Amended and Restated Bylaws also have an advance notice procedure

that shareholders must comply with to bring business before an annual

meeting of shareholders including the nomination of directors The

advance notice procedure requires that shareholder interested in present

ing proposal for action at an annual meeting of shareholders must

deliver written notice of the proposal together with certain specified

information
relating

to such shareholders stock ownership identity
and

other matters to our Corporate Secretary at least 120 days in advance of

the date that our proxy statement was released to shareholders in

connection with the previous year or if no annual meeting was held or if

the date of the annual meeting has changed by more than 30 days from

the date contemplated at the time of the previous years proxy statement

the notice must be received not less than 120 days in advance of the first

date that the solicitation was made We currently contemplate mailing our

2010 proxy statement to our shareholders in late September 2010

Therefore proposals must be submitted in accordance with the foregoing

by June 72011

Due to the complexity of the respective rights of the shareholders and the

company under Rule 14a-8 and the advance notice provision any

shareholder desiring to propose such an action is advised to consult with
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his or her
legal

counsel with respect to such rights We suggest that any

such proposal be submitted to us by certified mail return receipt

requested

Discretionary Proxy Voting Authority

Untimely Shareholder Proposals

Rule 14a-4 promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

governs our use of our discretionary proxy voting authority with respect to

shareholder proposal that the shareholder has not sought to include in

our proxy statement As set forth above shareholders must comply with

the advance notice procedure in our bylaws if they are to submit proposal

for consideration at our annual meeting We do not intend to entertain

any proposals or nominations at the annual meeting that do not meet the

requirements set forth in our bylaws If the shareholder does not also

comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-4c2 under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 we may
exercise discretionary voting authority

under proxies that we solicit to vote in accordance with our best judgment

on any such shareholder proposal or nomination

Shareholders Sharing an Address

Shareholders sharing an address with another shareholder may receive only

one copy of our annual report and proxy materials at that address unless

they have provided contrary instructions Any such shareholder who wishes

to receive separate annual report or set of proxy materials now or in the

future may write us to request separate copy of these materials from

Investor Relations GK Services Inc 5995 Opus Parkway Minnetonka MN

55343 or by calling
Investor Relations at 952 912-5500 Any shareholders

sharing an address with another shareholder can request delivery of single

copy of annual reports or proxy statements if they are receiving multiple

copies of annual reports or proxy statements by contacting us as set forth

above

Annual Report on Form 10-K

copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July

2010 as filed with the SEC including the financial statements schedules

and list of exhibits and any
exhibit

specifically requested will be furnished

without charge to any
shareholder upon written request Please write or

call our Director of Investor Relations at the following address or telephone

number GK Services Inc 5995 Opus Parkway Minnetonka Minnesota

55343 phone 952 912-5500 You may also access copy of our Form 10-K

on both our website at http//www.gkservices.com and the SECs website

at http//www.sec.gov

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials

for the Shareholder Meeting to be Held on November 2010

Our
proxy statement and 2010 Annual Report are available at

www.gkservices.com

Directions to the Meeting

You may request directions to the annual meeting by writing or calling our

Director of Investor Relations at the following address or telephone

number GK Services Inc 5995 Opus Parkway Minnetonka Minnesota

55343 phone 952 912-5500



Solicitation

We will bear the cost of preparing assembling and mailing the proxy

proxy statement annual report and other material which may be sent to

the shareholders in connection with this solicitation Brokerage houses and

other custodians nominees and fiduciaries may be requested to forward

soliciting
material to the beneficial owners of stock in which case they will

be reimbursed by us for their expenses in doing so Proxies are being

solicited primarily by mail but in addition our officers and regular

employees may
solicit proxies personally by telephone by special letter or

via the Internet

Our Board of Directors does not intend to present to the meeting any other

matter not referred to above and does not presently know of any matters

that may be presented to the meeting by others However if other matters

come before the meeting it is the intent of the
persons named in the

enclosed proxy to vote the proxy in accordance with their best judgment

By Order of the Board of Directors

GK Services Inc

Jeffrey Cotter

Vice President General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
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GK SERVICES INC

OO6RESTATED EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 2010

Purpose The purpose of the GK Services Inc OO6Restated

Equity Incentive Plan 201 OjiThe Plan is to motivate directors key

employees and advisors to produce superior return to the

stockholdersshareholders of GK Services Inc by offering
them an

opportunity to
participate

in stockholdershareholder gains by

facilitating stock ownership and by rewarding them tor achieving

high level of corporate financial performance The Plan is also

intended to facilitate recruiting and retaining talented executives for

key positions by providing an attractive capital accumulation opportu

nity The Plan was initially adopted by the Board as defined below

on August 23 2006 as the Services Inc 2006 Equity

Incentive Plan on August 23 2006 and approved by the

shareholders at the annual meeting of shareholders held

November 16 2006 The Plan as restated was adopted by the

Board on August 19 2010 subject to the approval of stockholders

shareholders at the annual meeting of stockholdersshareholders

scheduled tor November 16 2006.4 2010

Definitions

2.1 The following terms whenever used in this Plan shall have the

meanings set forth below

Affiliate means any corporation or limited liability

company majority of the voting stock or membership

interests of which is
directly

or indirectly owned by the

Company and any partnership or joint venture desig

nated by the Committee in which any such corporation or

limited liability company is partner or joint venturer

Award means grant made under this Plan in the form

of Performance Shares Restricted Stock Restricted Stock

Units Options Performance Units Stock Appreciation

Rights or Stock Awards

Award Agreement means written agreement or other

communication evidencing the terms and conditions of

an Award in the form of either an agreement to be

executed by both the Participant and the Company or an

authorized representative of the Company or certifi

cate notice term sheet or similar communication

Beneficiary means the person or persons
determined in

accordance with Section 13

Board means the Board of Directors of the Company

Change in Control means the occurrence of any of the

following events

any
Person within the meaning of Section

13d3 or 14d2 of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 the Act other than the Company or

any company owned directly or indirectly by the

shareholders of the Company in substantially the

same proportions as their ownership of stock of

the Company becomes the Beneficial Owner

within the meaning of Rule 3d-3 promulgated

AN EX

under the Act of 30% or more of the combined

voting power of the then outstanding securities of

the Company entitled to vote generally in the

election of directors excluding however any cir

cumstance in which such beneficial ownership

resulted from any acquisition by an employee

benefit plan or related trust sponsored or ma in-

tamed by the Company or by any corporation

controlling controlled by or under common con

trol with the Company

ii change in the composition of the Board since

August 23 2006 the Effective Date such that

the individuals who as of such date constituted

the Board the Incumbent Board cease for any

reason to constitute at least majority of such

Board provided that any individual who becomes

director of the Company subsequent to the

Effective Date whose election or nomination for

election by the Companys stockholdersshare

holders was approved by the vote of at1fä

majority of the directors then comprising the

Incumbent Board shall be deemed member of

the Incumbent Board and provided further that

any
individual who was initially

elected as

director of the Company as result of an actual or

threatened election contest as such terms are used

in Rule 14a-12 of Regulation 14A promulgated

under the Act or any other actual or threatened

solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf

of any person or entity other than the Board shall

not be deemed member of the Incumbent Board

iii reorganization recapitalization merger or con

solidation Corporate Transaction involving the

Company unless securities representing 60% or

more of the combined voting power of the then

outstanding voting securities entitled to vote gen

erally in the election of directors of the Company

or the corporation resulting from such Corporate

Transaction or the parent of such corporation are

held subsequent to such transaction by the person

or persons
who were the beneficial holders of the

outstanding voting securities entitled to vote gen

erally in the election of directors of the Company

immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction in

substantially the same proportion as their owner

ship immediately prior to such Corporate

Transaction or

iv the sale transfer or other
disposition

of all or

substantially all of the assets of the Company

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as

amended from time to time and the
rulings

and regula

tions issued thereunder
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Committee has the meaning set forth in Section



Company means GK Services Inc Minnesota

corporation

Deferred Stock Units has the meaning set forth in

Section

Employee means an individual who is common law

employee including an officer or director who is also an

employee of the Company or an Affiliate

Fair Market Value means on given date if there

should be public market for the Shares on such date

the
price at which Share was last sold i.e closing

market price on the
principal

United States market for

the Shares or if no sale of Shares shall have been

reported on such
principal

United States market on such

date then the immediately preceding date on which

sales of the Shares have been so reported shall be used

and ii if there should not be public market for the

Shares on such date the Fair Market Value shall be the

value established by the Committee in good faith

Incentive Stock Option means any Option designated as

such and granted in accordance with the requirements of

Section 422 of the Code

Non-Qualified Stock Option means an Option other than

an Incentive Stock Option

Option means right
to purchase Stock awarded under

Section 10

Other Stock-Based Awards means Awards granted pur

suant to Section 12

Participant means person described in Section

designated by the Committee to receive an Award under

the Plan

Performance Cycle means the period of time as speci

fied by the Committee over which Performance Shares or

Performance Units are to be earned

Performance Shares means an Award made pursuant to

Section which entitles Participant to receive Shares

their cash equivalent or combination thereof based on

the achievement of performance targets during Perfor

mance Cycle

Performance Units means an Award made pursuant to

Section which entitles Participant to receive cash

Stock or combination thereof based on the achieve

ment of performance targets during Performance Cycle

Plan means this 2006the GK Services Inc

Restated Equity Incentive Ian 2U1O as amended

trom time to time

Qualifying Performance Criteria has the meaning set

forth in Section 16.2

Restricted Stock means Stock granted under Section

that is subject to restrictions imposed pursuant to said

Section

Restricted Stock Unit means grant under Section of

the
right to receive Share subject to vesting and such

other restrictions imposed pursuant to said Section

together with dividend equivalents with respect to such

Share if and as so determined by the Committee

Share means share of Stock

Stock means the Class Common Stock $.5O par value

per share of the Company as such class of Stock may be

redesignated or renamed from time to time

aa Stock Appreciation Right means right
awarded to

Participant pursuant to Section 11 that entitles the

Participant to receive in cash Stock or combination

thereof as determined by the Committee an amount

equal to or otherwise based on the excess of the Fair

Market Value of Share at the time of exercise over

the exercise
price

of the right as established by the

Committee on the date the Award is granted

bb Stock Award means an award of Stock granted to

Participant pursuant to Section

cc Term means the period during which an Option or

Stock Appreciation Right may be exercised or the period

during which the restrictions placed on Restricted Stock

Unit or Restricted Stock are in effect

2.2 Gender and Number Except when otherwise indicated by

context reference to the masculine gender shall include when

used the feminine gender and any term used in the singular

shall also include the plural

Administration

3.1 Administration of the P/an The Plan shall be administered by

the Compensation Committee of the Board or such other

committee selected by the Board and consisting of two or more

members of the Board the Committee Any power of the

Committee may also be exercised by the Board except to the

extent that the grant or exercise of such authority would cause

any Award or transaction to become subject to or lose an

exemption under the short-swing profit recovery provisions of

Section 16 of the Act or cause an Award not to
qualify

for

treatment as performance based compensation under Sec

tion 162m of the Code To the extent that any permitted

action taken by the Board conflicts with action taken by the

Committee the Board action shall control The Committee may

delegate any or all aspects of the day-to-day administration of

the Plan to one or more officers or employees of the Company

or any Affiliate and/or to one or more agents

3.2 Powers of the Committee Subject to the express provisions

of this Plan the Committee shall be authorized and empowered

to take all actions that it determines to be necessary or

appropriate in connection with the administration of this Plan

including without limitation to prescribe amend and

rescind rules and regulations relating to this Plan and to define

terms not otherwise defined herein ii to determine which

persons are eligible to be granted Awards under Section to

which of such persons if any Awards shall be granted

hereunder and the timing of any such Awards iii to grant
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Awards to Participants and determine the terms and conditions

of Awards including the number of Shares subject to Awards

the exercise or exercise
price

of such Shares and the circum

stances under which Awards become exercisable or vested or

are forfeited or expire and the extent to which reimburse

ment to the Company or any Affiliate of any payment ot

cash or Shares under any Award shall be required which

terms may but need not be conditioned upon the passage of

time continued employment the satisfaction of performance

criteria the occurrence of certain events or other factors iv to

establish and certify the extent of satisfaction of any perfor

mance goals or other conditions applicable to the grant

issuance exercisability vesting and/or ability to retain any

Award to prescribe and amend the terms of Award

Agreements or other documents relating to Awards made under

this Plan which need not be identical and the terms of or form

of any document or notice required to be delivered to the

Company by Participants
under this Plan vi to determine

whether and the extent to which adjustments are required

pursuant to Section 25 vii to
interpret

and construe this Plan

any rules and regulations under this Plan and the terms and

conditions of any Award granted hereunder and to make

exceptions to any such provisions in good faith and for the

benefit of the Company and viii to make all other determina

tions deemed necessary or advisable for the administration of

this Plan

3.3 Determinations by the Committee All decisions determina

tions and interpretations by the Committee regarding the Plan

any rules and regulations under the Plan and the terms and

conditions of or operation of any Award granted hereunder

shall be final and binding on all Participants Beneficiaries

heirs assigns or other persons holding or claiming rights under

the Plan or any Award The Committee shall consider such

factors as it deems relevant in its sole and absolute discretion

to making such decisions determinations and interpretations

including without limitation the recommendations or advice of

any officer or other employee of the Company and such

attorneys consultants and accountants as it may select

Shares Available Under the Plan Limitation on Awards

4.1 Aggregate Limits Subject to adjustment as provided in

Section 25 the aggregate number of Shares issuable pursuant

to all Awards under this Plan shall not exceed

20000003000000 Shares Awards of Stock Appreciation

Rights Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units Deferred Stock

Units and Stock cannot exceed 667000 Shares of the

lAfi flAil Shares authorizea aia

amountsl000000 Shares of the 3000000 Shares autho

rized Awards of Performance Units that entitle Partic

ipant to payment only of cash and not of Stock shall

not reduce the number of Shares available for issuance

under the Plan Shares available for issuance under the

Plan may be increased by the number ot adjusted ompany

5llis available for issuance under any equity incentive plan

assumed by the Company in connection with merger or other

acquisition but only if and to the extent determined by the

Committee in its sole discretion The Shares issued pursuant to

Awards granted under this Plan may consist in whole or in
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part of authorized but unissued Stock or treasury Stock not

reserved for any other purpose

4.2 Issuance of Shares For purposes of this Section the

aggregate number of Shares available for Awards under this

Plan at any
time shall not be reduced by Shares subject to

Awards that have been canceled expired or forfeited but shall

be reduced by the portion of Awards settled in cash other

than Awards of Performance Units that entitleTPic

ipant to payment only of cash and not ot Stock or

withheld in connection with the exercise or settlement of an

Award Net Share counting shall not be used to determine the

number of Shares available for Awards nor shall Shares

tendered in connection with the exercise of an Award affect the

number of Awards available for issuance under the Plan

4.3 Tax Code Limits No Participant may be awarded in any

calendar year Awards covering an aggregate of more than

250000 Shares which limits shall be calculated and adjusted

pursuant to Section 25 only to the extent that such calculation

or adjustment will not affect the status of any Award thereto

fore issued or that may thereafter be issued as performance

based compensation under Section 162m of the Code The

maximum amount payable pursuant to that portion of

Performance Unit granted under this Plan in any calendar year

to any Participant that is intended to satisfy
the requirements

for performance based compensation under Section 162m of

the Code shall be dollar amount not to exceed $5000000

Participation Participation
in the Plan shall be limited to Employ

ees prospective employees directors or advisors of the Company or

an Affiliate selected by the Committee Options intending to qualify as

Incentive Stock Options may only be granted to Employees of the

Company or any subsidiary within the meaning of the Code Participa

tion is
entirely

at the discretion of the Committee and is not

automatically continued after an initial period of participation

Performance Shares and Performance Units An Award of Perfor

mance Shares or Performance Units under the Plan shall entitle the

Participant to future payments or Shares or combination thereof

based upon the level of achievement with respect to one or more pre

established performance criteria including Qualifying Performance

Criteria established for Performance Cycle

6.1 Amount ofAward The Committee shall establish maximum

amount of Participants Award which amount shall be

denominated in Shares in the case of Performance Shares or in

dollars in the case of Performance Units

6.2 Communication ofAward Each Award Agreement evidencing

an Award of Performance Shares or Performance Units shall

contain provisions regarding the target and maximum

amount payable to the Participant pursuant to the Award

ii the performance criteria and level of achievement versus the

criteria that shall determine the amount of such payment

iii the Performance Cycle as to which performance shall be

measured for determining the amount of any payment iv the

timing of any payment earned by virtue of performance

restrictions on the alienation or transfer of the Award
prior

to actual payment vi forfeiture provisions and vii such

further terms and conditions in each case not inconsistent with



this Plan as may be determined from time to time by the

Committee

6.3 Performance Criteria Performance criteria established by the

Committee shall relate to corporate group unit or individual

performance and may be established in terms of earnings

growth in earnings ratios of earnings to equity or assets or

such other measures or standards determined by the Commit

tee provided however that the performance criteria for any

portion of an Award of Performance Shares or Performance

Units that is intended by the Committee to
satisfy

the require

ments for performance-based compensation under Code Sec

tion 162m shall be measure based on one or more

Qualifying Performance Criteria selected by the Committee and

specified at the time the Award is granted Multiple perfor

mance targets may
be used and the components of multiple

performance targets may be given the same or different

weighting in determining the amount of an Award earned and

may relate to absolute performance or relative performance

measured against other groups units individuals or entities

6.4 Discretionary Adjustments Notwithstanding satisfaction of

any performance goals the amount paid under an Award of

Performance Shares or Performance Units on account of either

financial performance or personal performance evaluations may

be reduced by the Committee on the basis of such further

considerations as the Committee shall determine

6.5 Payment ofAwards Following the conclusion of each Perfor

mance Cycle the Committee shall determine the extent to

which performance criteria have been attained and the

satisfaction of any other terms and conditions with respect to

an Award relating to such Performance Cycle The Committee

shall determine what if any payment is due with respect to an

Award and whether such payment shall be made in cash Stock

or combination thereof Payment shall be made in lump

sum or installments as determined by the Committee at the

time the Award is granted commencing as promptly as

practicable following the end of the applicable Performance

Cycle subject to such terms and conditions and in such form as

may be prescribed by the Committee Payment in Stock
may

be

in Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units as determined by

the Committee at the time the Award is granted

6.6 Termination of Employment Unless the Committee provides

otherwise

Due to Death or Disability If Participant who is an

Employee ceases to be an Employee or if Participant

who is director ceases to be director before the end of

Performance Cycle in either case by reason of death or

permanent disability the Performance Cycle for such

Participant for the purpose of determining the amount of

Award payable shall end at the end of the calendar

quarter immediately preceding the date on which said

Participant ceased to be an Employee or director as the

case may be The amount of an Award payable to

Participant or the Beneficiary of deceased Participant

to whom the preceding sentence is applicable shall be

paid at the end of the Performance Cycle and shall be

that fraction of the Award computed pursuant to the

preceding sentence the numerator of which is the

number of calendar quarters during the Performance

Cycle during all of which said Participant was an

Employee or director and the denominator of which is

the number of full calendar quarters in the Performance

Cycle

Due to Reasons Other Than Death or Disability Upon

any other termination of employment as an Employee or

director of Participant during Performance Cycle

participation
in the Plan shall cease and all outstanding

Awards of Performance Shares or Performance Units to

such Participant shall be cancelled

Restricted Stock Awards An Award of Restricted Stock under the

Plan shall consist of Shares the grant issuance retention vesting

and/or
transferability

of which are subject during specified periods of

time to such conditions and terms as the Committee deems appropri

ate Restricted Stock granted pursuant to the Plan need not be

identical but each grant of Restricted Stock must contain and be

subject to the terms and conditions set forth below

7.1 AwardAgreement Each Award of Restricted Stock shall be

evidenced by an Award Agreement Each Award Agreement

shall contain provisions regarding the number of Shares

subject to the Award or formula for determining such number

ii the purchase price of the Shares if any and the means of

payment iii such terms and conditions on the grant issuance

vesting and/or forfeiture of the Restricted Stock as may be

determined from time to time by the Committee iv restrictions

on the
transferability

of the Award and such further terms

and conditions in each case not inconsistent with this Plan as

may be determined from time to time by the Committee

Shares issued under an Award of Restricted Stock may be issued

in the name of the Participant and held by the Participant or

held by the Company in each case as the Committee may

provide

7.2 Vesting and Lapse of Restrictions The grant issuance reten

tion vesting and/or settlement of Shares of Restricted Stock

shall occur at such time and in such installments as determined

by the Committee or under criteria established by the Commit

tee The Committee shall have the
right

to make the timing of

the grant and/or the issuance ability to retain vesting and/or

settlement of Shares of Restricted Stock subject to continued

employment passage of time and/or such performance criteria

as deemed appropriate by the Committee

7.3 Rights as StockholderShareholder Unless otherwise deter

mined by the Committee participant shall have all voting

dividend liquidation and other rights with respect to Restricted

Stock held by such Participant as if the Participant held

unrestricted Stock provided that the unvested portion of any

award of Restricted Stock shall be subject to any restrictions on

transferability or risks of forfeiture imposed pursuant to Sec

tions 7.1 7.2 and 7.4 Unless the Committee otherwise

determines or unless the terms of the applicable Award

Agreement or grant provides otherwise any non-cash dividends

or distributions paid with respect to shares of unvested

Restricted Stock shall be subject to the same restrictions and

vesting schedule as the Shares to which such dividends or

distributions relate
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7.4 Termination of Employment Unless the Committee provides

otherwise

Due to Death or Disability
If Participant who is an

Employee ceases to be an Employee or if
Participant

who is director ceases to be director prior to the lapse

of restrictions on Shares of Restricted Stock in either case

by reason of death or permanent disability all restrictions

on Shares of Restricted Stock held for the Participants

benefit shall immediately lapse

Due to Reasons Other Than Death or Disability Upon

any other termination of employment as an Employee or

director
prior

to the lapse of restrictions participation in

the Plan shall cease and all Shares of Restricted Stock

held for the benefit of Participant shall be forfeited by

the Participant

7.5 Certificates The Committee may require that certificates

representing Shares of Restricted Stock be retained and held in

escrow by designated employee or agent of the Company or

any Affiliate until any restrictions applicable to Shares of

Restricted Stock so retained have been satisfied or lapsed Each

certificate issued in respect to an Award of Restricted Stock

may at the election of the Committee bear the following

legend

This certificate and the shares of stock represented hereby are

subject to the terms and conditions including forfeiture provi

sions and restrictions against transfer contained in the

2006GK Services Inc Restated Equity Incentive Plan

2010 and the Kestricted Stock Award Release from such

terms and conditions shall obtain only in accordance with the

provisions of the Plan and the Award copy of each of which is

on file in the office of the Secretary of GK Services Inc

StockAwards

8.1 Grant Participant may
be granted one or more Stock

Awards under the Plan Stock Awards shall be subject to such

terms and conditions consistent with the other provisions of

the Plan as may be determined by the Committee

8.2 Rights as StockholderShareholder Participant shall

have all voting dividend liquidation and other rights with

respect to Shares issued to the Participant as Stock Award

under this Section upon the Participant becoming the holder

of record of the Shares granted pursuant to such Stock Award

provided that the Committee may impose such restrictions on

the assignment or transfer of Shares awarded pursuant to

Stock Award as it considers appropriate

Restri cted Stock Units Restricted Stock Units are Awards denomi

nated in units under which the issuance of Shares is subject to such

conditions and terms as the Committee deems appropriate Restricted

Stock Units granted pursuant to the Plan need not be identical but

each grant of Restricted Stock Units must contain and be subject to

the terms and conditions set forth below Restricted Stock Units
may

be granted without vesting or forfeiture restrictions Such Restricted

Stock Units may also be called Deferred Stock Units in the discretion

of the Committee
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9.1 AwardAgreement Each Award of Restricted Stock Units shall

be evidenced by an Award Agreement Each Award Agreement

shall contain provisions regarding the number of Restricted

Stock Units subject to such Award or formula for determining

such number ii the purchase price of the Shares subject to the

Award if any and the means of payment iii such terms and

conditions on the grant issuance vesting and/or forfeiture of

the Restricted Stock Units as may be determined from time to

time by the Committee iv restrictions on the transferability
of

the Award and such further terms and conditions in each

case not inconsistent with this Plan as may be determined from

time to time by the Committee

9.2 Vesting and Lapse of Restrictions The grant issuance reten

tion vesting and/or settlement of Restricted Stock Units shall

occur at such time and in such installments as determined by

the Committee or under criteria established by the Committee

The Committee shall have the right to make the timing of the

grant and/or the issuance ability
to retain vesting and/or

settlement of Restricted Stock Units subject to continued

employment passage of time and/or such performance criteria

as deemed appropriate by the Committee

9.3 Rights as StockholderShareholder Participants shall have

no voting rights with respect to Shares underlying Restricted

Stock Units unless and until such Shares are reflected as issued

and outstanding shares on the Companys stock ledger Shares

underlying Restricted Stock Units shall be entitled to dividends

or dividend equivalents only to the extent provided by the

Committee If an Award of Restricted Stock Units includes

dividend equivalents an amount equal to the dividends that

would have been paid if the Restricted Stock Units had been

issued and outstanding Shares as of the record date for the

dividends shall be paid to the Participant in cash subject to

applicable withholding taxes in accordance with the terms of

the Award as determined by the Committee to the extent

consistent with Section 409A of the Code

9.4 Termination of Employment Unless the Committee provides

otherwise

Due to Death or Disability
If Participant who is an

Employee ceases to be an Employee or if
Participant

who is director ceases to be director in either case by

reason of the Participants death or permanent disability

all restrictions on the Restricted Stock Units of the

Participant shall lapse in accordance with the terms of

the Award as determined by the Committee

Due to Reasons Other Than Death or Disability
For

Awards designated Restricted Stock Units by the Commit

tee if Participant ceases employment as an Employee

or director for any reason other than death or permanent

disability
all Restricted Stock Units of the Participant and

all rights to receive dividend equivalents thereon shall

immediately terminate without notice of any
kind and

shall be forfeited by the Participant The forgoing sen

tence shall not apply to an Award designated as

Deferred Stock Unit by the Committee unless the Com

mittee provides to the contrary in the Award



10 Options The Committee may grant an Option or provide for the

grant of an Option either from time-to-time in the discretion of the

Committee or automatically upon the occurrence of
specified events

including without limitation the achievement of performance goals

which may include Qualifying Performance Criteria Except to the

extent provided herein no Participant or Beneficiary of deceased

Participant shall have any rights as stockholdershareholder with

respect to any
Shares subject to an Option granted hereunder until

said Shares have been issued Options granted pursuant to the Plan

need not be identical but each Option must contain and be subject to

the terms and conditions set forth below

10.1 Type ofOption Each Option shall be

evidenced by an Award Agreement identifying the Option

represented thereby as an Incentive Stock Option or Non-

Qualified Stock Option as the case may be and the number of

Shares to which the Option applies

10.2 Exercise Price The exercise price under each Option shall be

established by the Committee and shall not be less than the Fair

Market Value of the Shares subject to the Option on the date of

grant provided however that the exercise
price per Share with

respect to an Option that is granted in connection with

merger or other acquisition as substitute or replacement

award for options held by optionees of the acquired entity may

be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on the date such

Option is granted

10.3 Exercisabiity The Committee shall have the
right to make

the timing of the ability to exercise any Option subject to

continued employment the passage of time and/or such

performance requirements as deemed appropriate by the

Committee

10.4 Exercise Term Each Option shall have Term established by

the Committee provided that no Incentive Stock Option shall be

exercisable after ten years from the date of grant

10.5 Payment for Shares The exercise
price

of the Shares with

respect to which an Option is exercised shall be payable at the

time of exercise in accordance with procedures established by

the Company The exercise price of any Option may be paid in

cash or to the extent allowed by the Committee an irrevocable

commitment by broker to pay over such amount from sale

of the Shares issuable under an Option the delivery either

physically or by attestation of previously-owned Shares or

combination thereof

10.6 No Repricing Other than in connection with change in the

Companys capitalization as described in Section 25 an Option

may not be re-priced without stockholdershareholder

approval including canceling previously awarded Options and

re-granting them with lower exercise price

10.7 No Reload Grants Stock Options shall not be granted under

the Plan in consideration for and shall not be conditioned upon

the delivery of Shares to the Company in payment of the

exercise price and/or tax withholding obligation under any

other employee stock option or stock appreciation right

10.8 IncentiveStockOptions In the case of an Incentive Stock

Option each Option shall be subject to any terms conditions

and provisions as the Committee determines necessary or
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desirable in order to qualify
the Option as an Incentive Stock

Option Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this

Section 10 in the case of an Incentive Stock Option if the

Participant owns stock possessing more than 10 percent of the

combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company

10% tockhoIderSharehoIder the exercise price of such

Option must be at least 110 percent of the Fair Market Value of

the Common Stock on the date of grant and the Option must

expire within period of not more than five
years from the date

of grant and termination of employment will be deemed to

occur when the person to whom an Award was granted ceases

to be an employee as determined in accordance with Sec

tion 3401c of the Code and the regulations promulgated

thereunder of the Company and its subsidiaries Options

designated as Incentive Stock Options may not be issued

more than ten years alter the date that the Pian was

adopted or the date the Plan was approved by share

holders whichever is later It this ilan as restated is

approved by the shareholders in accordance with Minne

sota Statute Section 3U2A.437 at the next annual meet

ing the Plan shall be considered to have been adopted

as the date the next annual meeting with respect

to the number ot Shares available tor issuance as ot that

date Notwithstanding anything in this Section 10 to the

Options designated as Incentive Stock Options shall

not be
eligible for treatment under the Code as Incentive Stock

Options and shall be deemed Non-Qualified Stock Options to

the extent that either the aggregate Fair Market Value of

Shares determined as of the time of grant with respect to

which such Options are exercisable for the first time by the

Participant during any calendar year under all plans of the

Company and any Affiliate exceeds $100000 taking Options

into account in the order in which they were granted and

ii such Options otherwise remain exercisable but are not

exercised within three months of termination of employment

or such other period of time provided in Section 422 of the

Code

10.9 Termination of Employment

Due to Death or Disability If Participant who is an

Employee ceases to be an Employee or if Participant

who is director ceases to be director in either case by

reason of death or permanent disability
each outstand

ing Option shall become exercisable to the extent and for

such period or periods determined by the Committee but

not beyond the expiration date of said Option If

Participant dies before exercising all outstanding Options

the outstanding Options shall be exercisable by the

Participants Beneficiary

Due to Reasons Other Than Death or
Disability

Unless

the .ommittee provides otherwise upon any
other

termination of employment as an Employee or director

all rights of the Participant under this Plan shall immedi

ately
terminate without notice of any kind

11 Stock Appreciation Rights

11.1 General An Award of Stock Appreciation Right shall entitle

the Participant subject to terms and conditions determined by

the Committee to receive upon exercise of the right an amount



equal to or otherwise based on the excess of the Fair Market

Value of Share at the time of exercise over the exercise

price of the right as established by the Committee on the date

the Award is granted Stock Appreciation Rights may
be granted

to Participants from time to time either in tandem with or as

component of an Option granted under Section 10 other

Awards granted under the Plan or stock options granted under

any other Company equity compensation plan tandem SARs

or without reference to other Awards or stock options free

standing SARs Any Stock Appreciation Right granted in

tandem with an Option may be granted at the same time such

Option is granted or at any time thereafter before exercise or

expiration of such Option The Committee may provide that the

exercise of tandem SAR will be in lieu of the exercise of the

stock option or Award in connection with which the tandem

SAR was granted tandem SAR may not be exercised at any

time when the per Share Fair Market Value of the Shares to

which it relates does not exceed the exercise price of the Option

associated with the tandem SAR The provisions of Stock

Appreciation Rights need not be the same with respect to each

grant or each recipient All freestanding SARs shall be granted

subject to the same terms and conditions applicable to Options

as set forth in Section 10 and all tandem SARs shall have the

same vesting exercisability
forfeiture and termination provi

sions as such Award or stock option to which they relate

Subject to the foregoing sentence and the terms of the Plan

the Committee may impose such other conditions or restrictions

on any Stock Appreciation Right as it shall deem appropriate

11.2 Exercise Price The per Share
price

for exercise of Stock

Appreciation Rights shall be determined by the Committee but

shall be price that is equal to or greater than 100% of the Fair

Market Value of the Shares subject to the Award on the date of

grant provided however that the per Share exercise
price

with

respect to Stock Appreciation Right that is granted in

connection with merger or other
acquisition as substitute or

replacement award for stock appreciation rights held by

awardees of the acquired entity may be less than 100% of the

Fair Market Value on the date such Award is granted

11.3 No Repricing Other than in connection with change in the

Companys capitalization as described in Section 25 Stock

Appreciation Right may not be re-priced without stockholder

shareholder approval including canceling previously awarded

Stock Appreciation Rights and re-granting them with lower

exercise price

11.4 No Reload Grants Stock Appreciation Rights shall not be

granted under the Plan in consideration for and shall not be

conditioned upon the delivery of Shares to the Company in

payment of the exercise price and/or tax withholding obligation

under any other employee stock option or stock appreciation

right

11.5 Termination of Employment

Due to Death or Disability

If Participant who is an Employee ceases to be an

Employee or if Participant who is director

ceases to be director in either case by reason of

death or permanent disability
each outstanding
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freestanding SAR shall become exercisable to the

extent and for such period or periods determined

by the Committee but not beyond the expiration

date of said Stock Appreciation Right

ii If Participant who is an Employee ceases to be an

Employee or if Participant who is director

ceases to be director in either case by reason of

death or permanent disability each outstanding

tandem SAR shall become exercisable to the extent

and for such period or periods determined by the

Committee but not beyond the expiration date of

said Stock Appreciation Right If Participant dies

before exercising all tandem SARs the outstanding

tandem SARs shall be exercisable by the Partic

ipants Beneficiary

Due to Reasons Other Than Death or Disability
Unless

the committee provides otherwise upon any other

termination of employment as an Employee or director

all rights of the Participant under this Plan shall immedi

ately
terminate without notice of any kind

11.6 Payment Upon exercise of Stock Appreciation Right pay

ment shall be made in the form of cash Shares or combina

tion thereof as determined by the Committee at the time the

Award is granted However notwithstanding any other provi

sions of this Plan in no event may the payment whether in

cash or Stock upon exercise of Stock Appreciation Right

exceed an amount equal to 100% of the Fair Market Value of

the Shares subject to the Stock Appreciation Right at the time

of grant

12 Other Stock-BasedAwa rds The Committee in its sole discretion

may grant or sell Awards of Shares and Awards that are valued in

whole or in part by reference to or are otherwise based on the Fair

Market Value of Shares Such Other Stock-Based Awards shall be in

such form and dependent on such conditions as the Committee shall

determine including without limitation the right to receive or vest

with respect to one or more Shares or the equivalent cash value of

such Shares upon the completion of specified period of service the

occurrence of an event and/or the attainment of performance objec

tives Other Stock-Based Awards may be granted alone or in addition

to any other Awards granted under the Plan Subject to the provisions

of the Plan the Committee shall determine the number of Shares to

be awarded to Participant under or otherwise related to such Other

Stock-Based Awards whether such Other Stock-Based Awards shall be

settled in cash Shares or combination of cash and Shares and all

other terms and conditions of such Awards including without

limitation the vesting provisions thereof and provisions ensuring that

all Shares so awarded and issued shall be
fully paid and non-

assessable

13 Nontransferability of Rights Unless the Committee provides other

wise no rights
under any Award will be assignable or transferable

and no Participant or Beneficiary will have any power to anticipate

alienate dispose of pledge or encumber any rights
under any Award

and ii the rights and the benefits of any Award may be exercised and

received during the lifetime of the Participant only by the
Participant

or by the Participants legal representative The Participant may by

completing and signing written beneficiary designation form which

is delivered to and accepted by the Company designate beneficiary



to receive any payment and/or exercise any rights with respect to

outstanding Awards upon the Participants death If at the time of the

Participants death there is not on file fully effective beneficiary

designation form or if the designated beneficiary did not survive the

Participant the person or persons surviving at the time of the

Participants death in the first of the following classes of beneficiaries

in which there is survivor shall have the right to receive any

payment and/or exercise any rights
with respect to outstanding

Awards

Participants surviving spouse

Equally to the Participants children except that if any of the

Participants children predecease the Participant but leave

descendants surviving such descendants shall take by right
of

representation the share their parent would have taken if living

Participants surviving parents equally

Participants surviving brothers and sisters equally or

The
legal representative of the Participants estate

If person in the class surviving dies before receiving any payment

and/or exercising any rights with respect to outstanding Awards or

the persons share of any payment and/or rights
in case of more than

one person in the class that persons right to receive any payment

and/or exercise
any rights

with respect to outstanding Awards will

lapse and the determination of who will be entitled to receive any

payment and/or exercise any rights
with respect to outstanding

Awards will be determined as if that person predeceased the

Participant

14 Termination of Employment

14.1 Transfers of employment between the Company and an Affili

ate or between Affiliates will not constitute termination of

employment for purposes of any Award

14.2 Subject to compliance with applicable law the Committee
may

specify
whether any authorized leave of absence or absence for

military or government service or for any other reasons will

constitute termination of employment for purposes of the

Award and the Plan

15 Change in ControL In the event of Change in Control after the

Effective Date the Committee may subject to ectionSections 25

and 30 but shall not be obligated to accelerate vest or cause

the restrictions to lapse with respect to all or any portion of an

Award cancel Awards for fair value as determined in the sole

discretion of the Committee which in the case of Options and Stock

Appreciation Rights may equal the excess if any of the value of the

consideration to be paid in the Change in Control transaction to

holders of the same number of Shares subject to such Options or Stock

Appreciation Rights or if no consideration is paid in any such

transaction the Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to such

Options or Stock Appreciation Rights over the aggregate exercise

price of such Options or Stock Appreciation Rights and which for

Performance Shares and Performance Units may be determined as if

the Performance Cycle ended as of the close of the calendar quarter

preceding the consummation of the Corporate TransitionTransac

tion with pro rata portion of the Award payable based upon the

iiiiiiber of completed calendar quarters in the Performance Cycle

provide for the issuance of substitute Awards that will substantially
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preserve the otherwise applicable terms of any affected Awards

previously granted hereunder as determined by the Committee in its

sole discretion or provide that for period of at least 30 days prior

to the Change in Control Options or Awards shall be exercisable as to

all Shares subject thereto and that upon the occurrence of the Change

in Control such Option or Awards shall terminate and be of no further

force and effect

16 Qualifying Performance-Based Compensation

16.1 General The Committee may specify
that all or portion of

any Award is intended to satisfy the requirements for perfor

mance-based compensation under Section 162m of the Code

provided that the performance criteria for any portion of an

Award that is intended by the Committee to satisfy
the

requirements for performance-based compensation under

Section 162m of the Code shall be measure based on one or

more Qualifying Performance Criteria selected by the Commit

tee and specified at the time such Award is granted The

Committee shall
certify

the extent to which any Qualifying

Performance Criteria has been satisfied and the amount

payable as result thereof prior
to payment settlement or

vesting of any Award that is intended to satisfy
the require

ments for performance-based compensation under Sec

tion 162m of the Code Notwithstanding satisfaction of any

performance goals the number of Shares issued or the amount

paid under an Award may be reduced by the Committee on the

basis of such further considerations as the Committee shall

determine

16.2 Qualifying Performance Criteria For purposes
of this Plan

the term Qualifying Performance Criteria shall mean any one

or more of the following performance criteria either individu

ally alternatively or in any combination applied to either the

Company as whole or to business unit or Affiliate either

individually alternatively or in any combination and measured

either annually or cumulatively over period of years on an

absolute basis or relative to pre-established target to previous

years results or to designated comparison group in each case

as specified and determined by the Committee cash flow

earnings per share of the Company earnings before

interest taxes and amortization share price performance

return on capital return on assets or net assets

revenue net earnings or net income operating

income or net operating income operating profit or net

operating profit operating margin or profit margin return

on operating revenue return on invested capital market

segment share brand recognition/acceptance customer

satisfaction return on equity or total stockholder

return total shareholder return growth in sales

productivity ratios expense targets working

capital targets or operating elhciencies he .om

mittee may appropriately adjust any evaluation of performance

under Qualifying Performance Criteria to exclude any of the

following events that occurs during Performance Cycle

asset write-down ii litigation or claim judgments or

settlements iii the effect of changes in or under provisions

under tax laws accounting principles or other such laws or

provisions affecting reported results iv accruals for reorgani

zations or restructuring programs and any extraordinary

nonrecurring items as described in FASB Accounting

-I

-I

Fr

Fr

-I



Standards Codification 255-20 formerly Accounting Princi

ples
Board Opinion No 3030 and/or in managements discus

sion and
analysis

of financiflondition and results of operations

appearing in the Companys annual report to stockholders

shareholders for the applicable year Any Qualifying Perfor

mance criteria must be objectively determinable must be

established by the Committee while the outcome for the

Performance Cycle is substantially
uncertain and while no more

than 90 days or if less 25 percent of the number of days in the

Performance Cycle have passed and must otherwise meet the

requirements of Section 162m of the Code

17 Effective Date of the Plan The Plan was initially adopted by the

Board on August 23 2006 as the Sices Inc 2006 Equity

Incentive Plan and was approved by the shareholders at their

November 16 2006 annual meeting ihe Plan as restated

herein including the increase in the number of Shares

available for issuance was approved by the board on

August 19 2010 subject to approval 01 the shareholders of-the

Company at thetheir next annual meeting If this Plan as restated

is not approved bTThºshareholders in accordance with Minnesota

Statute Section 302A.437 at the next annual meeting thhthe Plan

as restated shall be void but the Plan as in existence bYbre its

restatement shall remain in ettect he elan shall remain

available br the grant ot Awards until all shares available for grant

have been awarded and all Awards have been settled Notwithstand

ing
the foregoing the Plan may be terminated at such earlier time as

the Board may determine Termination of the Plan will not affect the

rights
and obligations of the Participants and the Company arising

under Awards theretofore granted and then in effect

18 Right to Terminate Employment Nothing in the Plan shall confer

upon any Participant the
right to continue in the employment of the

Company or any Affiliate or affect any right which the Company or any

Affiliate may have to terminate employment of the Participant

19 Compliance With Laws Listing
and Registration of Shares All

Awards granted under the Plan and all issuances of Stock or other

securities under the Plan shall be subject to all applicable laws rules

and regulations and to the requirement that if at any time the

Committee shall determine that the
listing registration or qualifica

tion of the Shares covered thereby upon any securities exchange or

under any state or federal law or the consent or approval of
any

governmental regulatory body is necessary or desirable as condition

of or in connection with the grant of such Award or the

issueissuance or purchase of Shares thereunder such Award may not

be exercised in whole or in part or the restrictions on such Award

shall not lapse unless and until such
listing registration qualification

consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any

conditions not acceptable to the Committee

20 Conditions and Restrictions Upon Securities Subject to Awards The

Committee may provide that the Shares issued upon exercise of an

Option or Stock Appreciation Right or otherwise subject to or issued

under an Award shall be subject to such further agreements restric

tions conditions or limitations as the Committee in its discretion may

specify prior to the exercise of such Option or Stock Appreciation Right

or the grant vesting or settlement of such Award including without

limitation conditions on vesting or transferability forfeiture or

repurchase provisions and method of payment for the Shares issued

upon exercise vesting or settlement of such Award including the
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actual or constructive surrender of Shares already owned by the

Participant or payment of taxes arising in connection with an Award

Without limiting the foregoing such restrictions may address the

timing and manner of any re-sales by the Participant or other

subsequent transfers by the Participant of any Shares issued under an

Award including without limitation restrictions under an insider

trading policy or pursuant to applicable law restrictions designed

to delay and/or coordinate the timing and manner of sales by the

Participant and holders of other Company equity compensation

arrangements and restrictions as to the use of specified

brokerage firm for such re-sales or other transfers

21 Withholding Taxes The Company or an Affiliate shall be entitled to

withhold and deduct from future wages of Participant or from

other amounts that may be due and owing to Participant from the

Company or an Affiliate including all payments under this Plan or

make other arrangements for the collection of including through the

sale of Shares otherwise issuable pursuant to the applicable Award

all legally required amounts necessary to satisfy any and all federal

state local and foreign withholding and employment-related tax

requirements attributable to an Award including without limitation

the grant exercise or vesting of or payment of dividends with respect

to an Award or disqualifying disposition of Common Stock received

upon exercise of an Incentive Stock Option or require Participant

promptly to remit the amount of such withholding to the Company

before taking any action with respect to an Award To the extent

specified by the Committee withholding may be satisfied by with

holding Stock to be received upon
exercise or vesting of an Award or

by delivery
to the Company of previously owned Stock In addition

the Company may reasonably delay the issuance or delivery of Shares

pursuant to an Award as it determines appropriate to address tax

withholding and other administrative matters

22 Deferral of Payments The Committee may in an Award Agreement

or otherwise provide for the deferred delivery of Shares upon

settlement vesting or other events with respect to Restricted Stock or

Restricted Stock Units or in payment or satisfaction of an Award of

Performance Shares or Performance Units Notwithstanding anything

herein to the contrary in no event will any deferral of the delivery of

Shares or any other payment with respect to any Award be allowed if

the Committee determines in its sole discretion that the deferral

would result in the imposition of additional tax under Sec

tion 409A1B of the Code Shares that are allocated after the

Effective Date in connection with the deferral of an Award under the

Director Deferred Compensation Plan which includes dividend equiv

alents that are to be allocated under that plan after the Effective Date

in connection with deferrals under the 1996 Director Stock Option

Plan or Shares that are allocated after the Effective Date under any

other deferred compensation plan allowing for payment in Shares that

refers
specifically

to this Plan shall be issued under this Plan Such

issuances shall reduce the number of Shares available for Awards

under this Plan

23 No Liability of Company The Company and any Affiliate which is in

existence or hereafter comes into existence shall not be liable to

Participant Beneficiary or any
other person as to the non-issuance

or sale of Stock as to which the Company has been unable to obtain

from any regulatory body having jurisdiction
over the matter the

authority deemed by the Companys counsel to be necessary to the

lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder any tax

consequence to any Participant Beneficiary or other person due to the



receipt exercise or settlement of any Award granted hereunder or

any provision of law or legal restriction that prohibits or restricts

the transfer of Shares issued pursuant to any Award

24 Amendment Modification and Termination of the Plan The Board

or Committee may at any time terminate suspend or modify the Plan

except that the Board or Committee will not without authorization of

the stockholdersshareholders of the Company effect any change

other than through adjustment for changes in
capitalization as

provided in Section 25 which will

increase the total amount of Stock which may be awarded

under the Plan

increase the individual maximum limits in Section 4.3

change the class of persons eligible to participate
in the Plan

reduce the exercise
price

of outstanding Options or Stock

Appreciation Rights or

otherwise amend the Plan in any manner requiring stockhol

dershareholder approval by law or under
listing requirements

of any exchange or interdealer quotation system on which the

Shares are listed

No termination suspension or modification of the Plan will adversely

affect any right acquired by any Participant or any Beneficiary under

an Award granted before the date of termination suspension or

modification unless otherwise agreed to by the Participant but it will

be conclusively presumed that any adjustment for changes in capital

ization provided for in Section 25 does not adversely affect
any right

25 Adjustment for Changes in Capitalization

In the event that the number of Shares shall be increased or

decreased through reorganization reclassification combina

tion of shares stock split reverse stock split spin-off stock

dividend other than regular quarterly cash dividii or

otherwise then each Share that has been authorized for

issuance under the Plan whether such Share is then currently

subject to or may become subject to an Award under the Plan

as well as the per share limits set forth in Section shall be

appropriately adjusted by the Committee to reflect such

increase or decrease unless the Company provides otherwise

under the terms of such transaction The terms of any outstand

ing
Award shall also be adjusted by the Committee as to price

number of Shares subject to such Award and other terms to

reflect the foregoing events

In the event there shall be any other change in the number or

kind of outstanding Shares or any stock or other securities into

which such Shares shall have been changed or for which it shall

have been exchanged whether by reason of merger consol

idation or otherwise then the Committee shall in its sole

discretion determine the appropriate adjustment if any to be

effected In addition in the event of such change described in

this paragraphsubsection the Committee may accelerate the

time or times at which any Award
may

be exercised and may

provide for cancellation of such accelerated Awards that are not

exercised within time prescribed by the Committee in its sole

discretion Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein

any adjustment to Options granted pursuant to this Plan

intended to qualify as Incentive Stock Options shall comply with
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the requirements provisions and restrictions of the Code and

no change shall be made that would result in the

imposition of additional tax under Section 4U9A1B of

the code

No right to purchase fractional Shares shall result from any

adjustment in Awards pursuant to this Section 25 In case of

any such adjustment the Shares subject to the Award shall be

rounded down to the nearest whole Share Notice of any

adjustment shall be given by the Company to each Participant

which shall have been so adjusted and such adjustment

whether or not notice is given shall be effective and binding

for all

purposes of the Plan

26 Transferability Unless the Award Agreement or an amendment

thereto authorized by the Committee expressly states that the Award

is transferable no Award granted under this Plan nor any interest in

such Award may be sold assigned conveyed gifted pledged

hypothecated or otherwise transferred in any manner other than by

will or the laws of descent and distribution The Committee may grant

an Award or amend an outstanding Award to provide that the Award

is transferable or assignable in the case of transfer without the

payment of any consideration to any family member as such term is

defined in Section A.1a5 of the General Instructions to Form S-8

under the Securities Act of 1933 as such may be amended from time

to time and in any transfer described in clause or ii of Section

A.1a5 of the General Instructions to Form S-8 under the 1933 Act

as amended from time to time provided that following any such

transfer or assignment the Award will remain subject to substantially

the same terms applicable to the Award while held by the Participant

to whom it was granted as modified as the Committee shall

determine appropriate and as condition to such transfer the

transferee shall execute an agreement agreeing to be bound by such

terms provided further that an Incentive Stock Option may be

transferred or assigned only to the extent consistent with Section 422

of the Code Any purported assignment transfer or encumbrance that

does not qualify under this Section 26 shall be void and unenforceable

against the Company

27 International Participants With respect to Participants who reside

or work outside the United States of America and who are not and

who are not expected to be covered employees within the meaning

of Section 162m of the Code the Committee may in its sole

discretion amend the terms of the Plan or Awards with respect to

such Participants in order to conform such terms with the require

ments of local law or to obtain more favorable tax or other treatment

for Participant the Companyor an Affiliate Notwithstanding the

provisions of Sections 10.2 and 11.2 where applicable toreign

law requires that compensatory stock right be priced based

upon specific price averaging method and period an Award

granted in accordance with such applicable foreign law will be

treated as meeting the requirements of Section 10.2 or 11.2

provided that the averaging period does not exceed 30 days

28 Other Benefit Plans All Awards shall constitute special incentive

payment to the Participant and shall not be taken into account in

computing the amount of salary or compensation of the Participant

for the purpose of determining any benefits under any pension

retirement profit-sharing bonus life insurance or other benefit plan

of the Company or under any agreement between the Company and



the Participant unless such plan or agreement specifically provides

otherwise

29 Choice of Law The Plan shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to

conflicts of laws and except as otherwise provided in the pertinent

Award agreement any and all disputes between Participant and the

Company or any Affiliate relating to an Award shall be brought only in

state or federal court of competent jurisdiction sitting in Minneap

olis Minnesota

30 Section 409A Notwithstanding other provisions of the Plan or any

Award agreements thereunder no Award shall be granted deferred

accelerated extended paid out or modified under this Plan in

manner that would result in the imposition of an additional tax under

Section 409A of the Code upon Participant In the event that it is

reasonably determined by the Committee that as result of

Section 409A of the Code payments in respect of any Award under

the Plan may not be made at the time contemplated by the terms of

the Plan or the relevant Award agreement as the case may be

without causing the
Participant holding such Award to be subject to

taxation under Section 409A of the Code the Company will make such

payment on the first day that would not result in the Participant

incurring any tax
liability

under Section 409A of the Code

uJ

ILl

A-il



This page intentionally left blank



This page intentionally left blank



This page intentionally left blank



Executive Management Team Corporate Information

Douglas Milroy

Chief Executive Officer

Jeffrey L.Wright

Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

Jeffrey Cotter

Vice President

General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary

Timothy Curran

Senior Vice President

U.S Field

David Euson

Vice President

Marketing and Sales

Karen Kirwan

Vice President and

Chief Information Officer

JacquelineT Punch

Senior Vice President

Human Resources

Richard Stutz

Senior Vice President

Operations and Sourcing

Robert Wood

President

GK Services Canada Inc

Corporate Address

GK Services Inc

5995 Opus Parkway

Minnetonka Minnesota 55343

952 912-5500

www.gkservices.com

Common Stock

The common stock of

GK Services Inc trades on

the Global Select Market of

The NASDAQ Stock Market

under the symbol GKSR

Annual Meeting

Our annual shareholders meeting

will be held at our corporate

headquarters 5995 Opus Parkway

Minnetonka Minnesota 55343

on Thursday November 42010 at

1000a.m Central DaylightTime

Independent Auditors

Ernst Young LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota N.A

St Paul Minnesota

800 468-9716

Investor Inquiries

To receive an Annual Report

on Form 10-K or additional

information contact

Shayn Carison Director

of Investor Relations at the

corporate address phone

number or website

Audit Committee

Lynn Crump-Caine

ErnestJ Mrozek

Alice Richter

Compensation Committee

John Bronson

Patrick Doyle

Wayne Fortun

Corporate

Governance Committee

John Bronson

Lenny Pippin

Board of Directors

Lenny Pippin

Chairman of the Board

Former President and

Chief Executive Officer

Schwan Food Company

John Bronson

Former Senior Vice President

Williams-Sonoma Inc

Lynn Crump-Caine

Founder and

Chief Executive Officer

Outsidein Consulting

Former Executive Vice President

Worldwide Operations

McDonalds Corporation

Patrick Doyle

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Dominos Pizza Inc

Wayne Fortun

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Hutchinson Technology Inc

Douglas Milroy

Chief Executive Officer

Ernest Mrozek

Former Vice Chairman

and Chief Financial Officer

ServiceMaster Global Holdings Inc

Alice Richter

Former Partner

KPMG LLP

Jeffrey Wright

Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

Committee Chairperson

Presiding Director



MIX

reponsibIeSOorCe

FSC C005259


